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DEAR STOCKHOLDER

In 2010 the U.S economyand by extension the U.S commercial

real estate marketscontinued to slowly dig out of the biggest and

deepest financial hole since the Great Depression We are all finding

out that recovery is process and not single event As the economy

rebounds am happy to report that your company has continued our

sustained progress

In my tetter tast year said that we woutd continue to work on further

deeveraging of the company white at the same time being opportunistic about

starting to grow the portfotio again We were abe to achieve both goak in 2010



LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

First the growth In December we dosed on $32.5 million purchase

of an 800000-square-foot warehouse distribution facility Ieased to

Cooper Tire Rubber Company in Indianapolis

The building is one of the brgest Golil LEED-certified distribution centers in the

country and serves as key hub for Cooper Tire The initiat capitalization rate is

approximatety 8/s and the average capitalization rate over the remaining tease

term which expires in 2021is over g0/0

Our return to portfolio growth atso inctuded our first build-to-suit transaction under

our new Construction to Acquisition Program CAP We dosed on this transaction

during the third quarter The buitding is 150000-square-foot warehouse facility

in Louisville with 10-year net tease to the U.S subsidiary of Michelin Group Our

devetopment partner built the building which is finishing construction as write

this tetter Upon comptetion we will buy out our partner for an agreed upon price

and CapLease will own the entire property The economics are attractive with

capitalization rate during the tease term of about 0.5Io for building with yatue

of around $10 million We are continuing to work with strong group of experienced

build-to-suit developers to evaluate number of additional development

opportunities under our new program We expect that we will be able to execute on

additional transactions in this sector in the months and years ahead



Mso during the third quarter we demonstrated our ftexibe approach to finding

attractive business opportunities by acting as fee advisor to borrower with

whom we have direct rdationship The transaction was complnx $45 million oan

undertaken in connection with the purchase and subsequent tong-term tease of

hospitaL We assisted the borrower on fee basis with all aspects of the structuring

of the transaction induding the arrangement and pbcement of the nan without

risking any of our own capitat

These transactions demonstrate our strong market franchise and the deep

retationships that we have built over our more than 15 years in the singte-tenant

net-tease business Your acquisition team remains ctosety connected to the market

and that deep well of experience allowed us to direcily source these high quatity

assets at very attractive returns Its great start for our re-energized growth ptan

and there is more to come

CAPLEA5E 2010 ANNUAL REPONT



LEPER TO STOCKHOLDERS

Ever since the financial crises peaked real estate investors have focused

heavily on leverage as an important metric when valuing public real

estate companies While this thinking is evolving as markets recover

the basic viewpoint that lower is better remains prevalent

Given the cash flow stability of our high credit quality $2 billion portfolio coupled

with our conservative
liability structures we always have beenand remain

comfortable with our leverage at CapLease

That said we believe that as we continue to evolve and grow as public company

it is prudent for us to operate with greater on-hand cash liquidity and lower overall

leverage than we have in the past To that end we have significantly lowered

our leverage over the past several years with focus on that part of the capital

structure where our debt is recourse to the parent company Our work in this area in

2010 was an extension of those earlier efforts

CAPLEASE 2010 ANNUAL REPORT
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We also reduced the outstanding balance

on our recourse convertible senior notes during

the year by $17.4 million leaving $35 million

outstanding at year-end

Ifl



During the year we further reduced overatt debt by heafthy 5/o or $74 miltion

To provide perspective that debt reduction equates to approximatety $1.25 per

share tast year atone In totat we have reduced debt by l2/o over the past two

years More specifically for 2010 we towered our recourse debt on our credit tine by

about $37 mittion before borrowing back approximatety $16 million at the very end

of the year to temporarily fund about hatf of the Cooper Tire transaction We atso

reduced the outstanding batance on our recourse convertibte senior notes during the

year by $17.4 mittion teaving $35 mittion outstanding at year-end The remaining

debt reduction consisted of schedued amortization on our first mortgage debt on

our secured term toan and within our CDO

At the owned property evet our teverage was approximatey 66/s at year-end based

on undepreciated book vatue and continues to dectine Additionally our schedued

amortization will continue for the next severa years at the rate of about $30 million

per year net of principat collected on our debt investments which will further tower

our everage tevets and buitd equity

ii

13fl
Long-Term

Mortgage Loaes

4O.5 37.P
A- or A3 or above Betow A- or A3
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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

In addition to this absolute debt reduction we improved our financial

flexibility by extending our secured revolving credit agreement for three

years until July 2013 We are able to borrow under the agreement at an
attractive rate of one-month Libor plus 275 basis points

Our borrowing capacity under the
facility

is $140 million which is more than

sufficient for us to execute our business pan as currenfly envisioned without having

to pay significant unused capacity fees As part of the renegotiation and extension
the Dodge Omaha property was released from the coRatera securing the line and

we now own that property unencumbered

Our modest portfolio expansion and continued debt reduction and extension

activities were not our ony successes in 2010 as we abo demonstrated our access

to the capita markets During the year we raised roughty $65 million in new

capitat$4O mittion in perpetuat preferred stock and the remainder in common

stockthrough smatt targeted equity issuances Finally and very importanUy we

raised our common dividend in the fourth quarter by 8I which follows the 20y/o

increase that we delivered at the end of 2009

I-



LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

.13.6%
4.4% Aon Corporation

3.5% Invesco Holdings Company Limited

2.9% CVS Corporation

2.8% ITT Industries Inc

have talked fair bit here about what changed during the year It is also

noteworthy to point out what didnt change much and that is our 11.2 million-

square-foot portfolio We believe we have among the strongest and most stable

portfolios in the public REIT universe As in 2009and the year before that as well

as the prior yearour top 10 tenants by investment value are all rated investment

grade with an average senior unsecured credit rating from Standard Poors of

That portfolio is also well diversified With the exception of NestlØ Holdings rated

AA at about 10% and the U.S Government at 9.7% none of the remaining tenants

in the portfolio represents more than 4.7/n of our assets

Besides featuring excellent industry and credit diversity the portfolio continues to

be well diversified by property type and geography About 49/s of our properties

are office buildings 12% are leased to the government 28% are warehouse or an

office/warehouse combination and ll/n are retail As for geographical diversity

we own properties in attractive locations in 25 states In total this portfolio is

approximately 96% occupied

28
Industrial/Warehouse

RATINGS OF TOP 10 TENANTS DY INVESTMENT VALUE

49% of total investments

9.7w 9.9%
U.S Government NestlØ Holdings Inc

BBB
3.9%
Tiffany Co

78%
4.7k TJX Companies Inc

3.1% Lowes Companies Inc

4.4w
The Kroger Co
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LETTER TO STOCKHOLDERS

As we look forward into 2011 the investment market continues to be

challenging as the supply of existing product remains constrained and

new building has only just begun Even so transaction flow increased

very meaningfully at the end of 2010 and the beginning of 2011

Our pipeline of potentiat transactions kept pace and as write this tetter is the

strongest it has been in over three years We expect that strength to continue and

our pipeline flow to acceterate as the year progresses From capitat perspective

both the debt and equity markets remain open and vibrant for public REITs

As the economy continues to recover so will the commerciat reat estate markets in

generaL and our singte-tenant net-tease sector in particuar Our great country is still

growing and companies witt need to grow with it by building and occupying the types

of high quality reat estate we have in our portfolio CapLease is well positioned to

capitalize on this coming growth We have market-teading franchise seasoned team

and portfolio that remains neary fully occupied Our liquidity is strong and we have

demonstrated access to additionat capita as needed to fund our growth

am as optimistic as ever and excited about our prospects for continuing our return to

portfolio growth in 2011 Nonethetess we still have great deat of work to do Your

senior management team founded this company and we continue to personally own

significant amount of stock Therefore our interests are aligned with yours as our fellow

owners There will inevitabty be bumps ahead as we navigate growing the portfolio

managing the existing asset base and reacting to any and all manner of externat events

However we will do so from stronger position than at any time in our history

In wrapping up want to direct my personat thanks to the CapLease team for

their continued dedication My view continues to be that our team inctuding our

outstanding Board of Directors is the strongest asset we have atso want to thank

you our stockhoftlers who have shown your continued support took forward to

interacting with you as the year progresses Our door is atways open

PauL McDoweLL

Choirmon of the Boord ond Chief Executive Officer

March 31 2011
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BUSINESS

Part

Item Business

ExpLanatory Note for Purposes of the Safe Harbor

Provisions of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of

1934 as amended

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking

statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securi

ties Exchange Act of 1g34 as amended which involve certain

risks and uncertainties Our actual results or outcomes may

differ materially from those projected Important factors that

we believe might cause such differences are discussed in Item

IA Risk Factors of this Form 10-K or otherwise accompany

the forward-looking statements contained in this Form 10-K In

assessing aft forward-looking statements readers are urged to

read carefully all cautionary statements contained in this Form

10-K We undertake no obligation to publicly release the results

of any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect

events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the

occurrence of unanticipated events

OVERVIEW

We are real estate investment trust or REIT that invests

primarily in single tenant commercial real estate assets subject

to long-term leases to high credit quality tenants We focus on

properties that are subject to net lease or lease that requires

Our primary business objective is to generate stable long-term

and attractive returns based on the spread between the yields

generated by our assets and the cost of financing our portfolio

We reinitiated portfolio growth during the second half of 2010

as we purchased one property for purchase price of $32.5

the tenant to pay all or substantially all property operating ex

penses such as utilities real estate taxes insurance and routine

maintenance We also continue to be opportunistic and have

made and expect to continue to make investments in single ten

ant properties where the owner has exposure to property operat

ing expenses when we determine we can sufficiently underwrite

that exposure and isolate predictable cash flow

Our primary business line is and we expect will continue to be

the ownership of single tenant properties We also have portfo

lio of first mortgage loans and other debt investments on single

tenant properties and may continue to make such debt invest

ments from time to time on an opportunistic basis in the future

Our tenants including those underlying our debt investments

are primarily large public cumpanies or their significant uperat

ing subsidiaries and governmental entities with investment grade

credit ratings defined as published senior unsecured credit

rating of BBB-/Baa3 or above from one or both of Standard

Poors SP and Moodys Investors Service Moodys We

also imply an investment grade credit rating for tenants that are

not publicly rated by SP or Moodys but are 1000/0 owned by

an investment grade parent ii for which we have obtained

private investment grade rating from either SP or Moodys or

iii are governmental entity branches or units of another invest

ment grade rated governmental entity

Our portfolio produces stable high quality cash flows gener

ated by long-term leases to primarily investment grade tenants

As of December 31 2010 we had an approximately $2.0 billion

investment portfolio including the following assets by type

in thousands

INVB5TMBNT

$1 64889

million and funded $3.2 million toward our first development

joint venture which has an expected net investment of $8.1

million We also continued to strengthen our balance sheet

through debt reduction with $74.0 million of principal retired

during the year Since the beginning of 2008 we have retired an

PERCENTAGE

82.2Owned Properties

Debt Investments

Loans

Long-term mortgage loans 190831 9.5Io

Corporate credit notes 19117 1.0/o

Mezzanine and other investments 988 O.O0/o

Commercial mortgage loan securitizations 66830 3.30/0

Certificated mortgage loan investments 79134 3.9/o

Other 326 O.0/o

TotaL $2006124 100.0%

Here and elsewhere in Item of this Form 10K references to our Investment represent our carry value for jinoncial reporting purposes before depreciation and omortiza

Hon With respect to our loan portfolio we have adjusted our carry value to exclude $0.5 million general lass reserve
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BUSINESS

aggregate of $260.3 million of principal on our debt including

$167.5 million of recourse borrowings During 2011 we expect

to continue our portfolio growth momentum and continue to

reduce our leverage

We have been in the net lease business since 1994 and

completed our initial public offering in March 2004 Prior to

our initial public offering we were primarily tender focused

on originating first mortgage loans on net lease properties

and selling substantially all of the loans we originated either

through whole-loan or small pool sates or through gain-on-sale

commercial mortgage-backed securitizations

MULTI-TENANT PROPERTIES

As described above and throughout this Annual Report on Form

10-K we invest primarily in single tenant commercial reat estate

assets However as result of lease non-renewals or lease ter

minations we have ctassified three properties as mufti-tenant

properties as each is no longer teased primarily by single

tenant The first property is located in Johnston Rhode Island

and is currently vacant The other two properties are located in

Omaha Nebraska one on West Dodge Road which we call the

Dodge Building and the other on Farnam Street which we

call the Landmark Building We refer to these three proper

ties as the Multi-Tenant Properties in this Form 10-K and have

excluded them from certain of our statistical measures When we

refer to our Single Tenant Portfolio in this Form 10-K we mean

our entire portfolio e.g all owned properties loans and securi

ties other than the three Multi-Tenant Properties and when

we refer to our Single Tenant Owned Property Portfolio in this

Form 10-K we mean our owned property portfolio other than the

three Multi-Tenant Properties See Our PortfolioOwned Proper

tiesMulti-Tenant Properties for additional information about

the Multi-Tenant Properties

INVESTMENT STRATEGY

We focus on the following core business strategies

High Credit QuaLity Tenants We invest primarily in owned

real properties and real estate loans where the underlying

tenant is of high credit quality As of December 31 2010 ap

proximately 900/0 of our Single Tenant Portfolio was invested

in properties leased to investment grade or implied invest

ment grade tenants and the weighted average underlying

tenant credit rating on our Single Tenant Portfolio was A-

Further our top 10 tenant exposures which comprise approxi

mately 4g/e of our entire portfolio were all rated investment

grade or implied investment grade and had weighted aver

age credit rating of As of December 31 2010 our Single

Tenant Portfolio had the following credit characteristics

PERCENTAGECredit Rating11121

Investment grade rating of A- or A3 and above $774506 40.5/o

Investment grade rating of below A- or A3 70%7 37.1/o

Implied investment grade rating 245715 12.8/o

Non-investment grade rating 180852 9.5/o

Unrated151 1723

$1g12763

0.1

100.000/0

Long-Term Assets HeLd for Investment We invest in com

mercial real estate assets subject to tong-term leases As of

December 31 2010 the weighted average underlying tenant

remaining lease term on our Single Tenant Portfolio was ap

proximately years including approximately years in the

Single Tenant Owned Property Portfolio We intend to hold

our assets for the long-term capturing the stable cash flows

that will be produced from the underlying high credit quality

tenants

Net Lease Focus We focus on properties that are subject to

net lease where the tenant is typically responsible for all

or substantially all of the propertys operating expenses We

believe that this asset class offers more stable and predict

able returns than non-net leased properties and will allow us

to grow our business more rapidly than we need to expand

our general and administrative costs and headcount

Match-Fund with Long-Term Fixed Rate Non-Recourse

Debt We seek to match-fund or substantially match-fund

our assets with long-term fixed rate non-recourse financ

ing By match-funded debt we mean the maturity of the

debt matches as closely as possible the lease maturity of the

asset financed Our financing strategy allows us to invest in

greater number of assets and enhance our asset returns The

use of non-recourse debt enables us to isolate the default risk

to solely the asset or assets financed We also seek to employ

amortizing debt on our assets or debt that will diminish over

time as we make scheduled principal payments

in thousands

IN VESTMENT

Reflects the tenants or lease guarantors actual or implied SP rating or equiva

lent rating jf rated only by Moodys or in the case of most of our CMOS securi

ties actual ratings of the securities In addition to the Multi Tenant Properties

table does not include two development properties with an aggregate investment

of $4247

Four of our owned real properties within the Single Tenant Owned Property Port

folio where our aggregate
investment is $270ga3 are leased to more than one

tenant and for purposes of determining the underlying tenants credit rating on

these properties we have considered the credit rating of only our ptimary tenant

Includes ptimatily our mezzanine and other investments as described under Our

Portfolio Loan Investments

CAPLEASE 2010 ANNUAL NEPORT 13
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OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

EstabLished Investment and PortfoLio Management

CapabiLities We have an experienced in-house team of

investment professionals that source structure underwrite

and dose our transactions In addition we have developed

an extensive national network of property owners develop

ers investment sale brokers tenants borrowers mortgage

brokers lenders institutional investors and other market

participants that helps us to identify and evaluate variety

of single tenant investment opportunities We have devel

oped highly skilled asset management function for our

assets which among other things monitors lease expirations

and property operations and manages the renewal or re-let

process on our investments

Experienced Senior Management Team Our senior

management team is comprised of individuals with expertise

in commercial real estate credit capital markets asset

management and legal and has worked together for many

years through various business cycles We have substantial

experience investing at all levels of the capital structure of

single tenant properties Since 1996 we have originated

and underwritten more than $4.0 billion in single tenant

transactions including debt equity and mezzanine and

involving more than 500 properties with more than 100

different tenants Since our initial public offering in March

2004 we have purchased more than $1.6 bilhon of single

tenant properties

Stringent Underwriting Process Since the founding of our

predecessor entity in 1994 we have built and maintain today

strong credit philosophy and underwriting discipline We

have comprehensive underwriting and due diligence process

that is overseen by our investment committee which consists

of our key employees including the chief executive officer

president chief financial officer and chief investment officer

Our investment committee formally reviews and approves

each investment we make prior to funding and all portfolio

divestitures We also have an investment oversight committee

of the board of directors that approves investments in excess

of $50 million

Financing Expertise We have substantial experience in

financing single tenant assets We have developed various

financing structures that have enabled us to efficiently

finance our assets and we expect to continue to do so in

the future as credit markets recover The structures we have

created have enabled us to enhance the returns on our

portfolio without reducing credit quality in search of yield

Market Expertise We have recognized expertise in the net

lease marketplace We are highly skilled in analyzing single

tenant leases and have developed since 1994 market lead

ing franchise in our sector

OUR PORTFOLIO

Owned Properties

Owned properties comprise approximately 8201o of our current

portfolio on an investment basis All of our owned properties

have been acquired since the closing of our initial public offer

ing We invest in most commercial property types e.g office

warehouse GSA and retail and our investment underwriting

includes thorough analysis of the credit quality of the underly

ing tenant and the strength of the related lease We also analyze

the propertys real estate fundamentals including location and

type of the property vacancy rates and trends in vacancy rates in

the propertys market rental rates within the propertys market

recent sales prices and demographics in the propertys market

We believe that over time the value of our owned real estate will

appreciate For more detail on our underwriting process please

see Underwriting Process below We target properties that have

one or more of the following characteristics

included in primary metropolitan markets such as Philadel

phia Washington D.C Chicago and New York/New Jersey

fungible asset type that will facilitate re-let of the property

if the tenant does not renew

barriers to entry in the propertys market such as zoning

restrictions or limited land for future developmerft and

core facility of the tenant

As of December 31 2010 we had an approximately $1.6 billion

owned property portfolio We believe the strength of this portfo

Uo is exhibited by the following

approximately 11.2 million rentable square feet with 95.9Io

occupancy

62 properties in 25 states and leases with 32 different ten

ants across the Single Tenant Owned Property PortfoUo

no tenant represents more than S/o of our entire portfolio

except NestlØ Holdings Inc at 9.9/o three properties and

the United States Government at 9.7/s seven properties

95/o investment grade or implied investment grade tenants in

the Single Tenant Owned Property Portfolio

weighted average tenant credit rating of in the Single Ten

ant Owned Property Portfolio

weighted average remaining lease term of approximately

seven years in the Single Tenant Owned Property Portfolio

and

well diversified portfolio by property type geography tenant

and tenant industry

14 CAPLEASE 2010 ANNUAL REPORT
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INDUSTRY

Insurance

Food Beverage

Government

Financial

Grocery

Retail Department

Stores

Retail ewelry

Automotive

Engineering

Building Materials

Healthcare

Communications

Hotel

Retail Drug

Publishing

Telecommunications

WEIGHTED

AVERAGE

CREDIT
in thousands

RATINGvI INVE5ThIENT121

$298907

AA- 258724

AAA 211306

BBB- 145828

BBB 108986

93016

PERCENT

OP TOTAL

18.8/s

16.3%

13.3/n

9.2/n

6.9/n

5.8/n

The occupancy rate at each year end and average annual rent

per square foot for each of the years for our owned property

portfolio for each of the last three years were as follows

2010 2009 20DB

Occupancy rate 95.9 0/0 95.3/e 99.8/o

Average annuaL rent per

square foot $11.78 $12.85 $12.55

Tenant Industry Diversification

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the

tenant industry concentrations in our owned property portfolio

as of December 31 2010

NUMBER OF

TENANTS

Property Type Diversification

The following pie chart summarizes the property types conipris

ing our owned property portfolio as of December 31 2010

PROPERTY TYPE DIVERSIPICATION

Office 49%

Warehouse 22%

GSA US Government 12%
ReL

Retail 11%

Officemarehouse 50/

Office/Wareheeseledustriat 10/

Other

A- 77640 49/n

BB 59828 3.8/n

888 57417 3.6/n

52879 3.3/n

AA- 49084 3.1/n

BBB 47499 3.0/n

BBB 47325 3.0/n

A- 21720 1.4/n

888 20837 1.3/n

888 16250 1.0k

23163 1.5/

$1590409 100.0%

Other 14 NR

TotaL 51

Reflects actual or implied SP rating or equivalent rating if rated only by

Moodys of tenants or lease guarantors

Ooes nat include our Johnston Rhode Island property or two development

properties Louisville Kentucky and Simi Volley California none of which ore

currently occupied by tenant Also does not include portion of our invest

ment uttributed to vacant space in the Omaha Nebraska pruperties

CAPLEASE 2010 ANNUAL REPORT 15



BUSINESS

Geographk Diversification Lease Expirations

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the The following table Sets forth certain information regarding

top 20 states where our owned properties are located as scheduled lease expirations in our owned property portfolio as

of December 31 2010 of December 31 2010

NUMBER OF
in thousands

PERCENT

STATE PROPERTIES IN VESTMENT OF TOTAL in thousands
NUMBER OF SOUARE FEET _____________

Pennsylvania $205937 12.5/s YEAR OF LEASE EXPIRING SUBJECT TO 2010 ACTUAL PERCENT OF

EXPIRATION LEASES1 EXPIRING LEASE ANNUAL RENT ANNUAL RENTii

California 202479 12.3%
2011 137820 $6259

New Jersey 131123 8.0/o

2012 6H1 2834736 21775 17.8/o

Maryland 130003 7.9/o

2013 1441 421804 7174 5.90/0

Texas 110166 6.7/o

2014 90420 843 O.7/o

Illinois 108462 6.6/o

2015 10 651309 8514 7.0/o

Indiana 91477
2016 1192035 15036 12.3/s

Virginia 90049 5.50/0

2017 1122727 15953 13.1/o

Colorado 70004 4.2k
2018 130303 1773 1.5/o

Kansas 54143 3.3/o

2019 189993 5693 4.7/o

Nebraska 46157 2.8/o

2020 290659 6666 5.5/o

Rhode Island 42956 2.6%
Thereafter 12 3694780 32366 26.5/o

Alabama 40406 2.5/o

Washington 39612 2.4/o
On six of our owned properties we have mare than one tenant

Represents lease expiration dates as percentage of 2010 actual annual rent

Connecticut 37685 2.3/o

an all
properties

other than the .lahnstan Rhade Island
praperty

which is

Kentucky 36836 2.2/o currently vacant

Georgia 36348 2.2/s
97% of the leases expiring in 2012 by square faatage represedt the three

Nestle properties and the US Government NIH property

Tennessee 34169 2.1%
77% of the leases

expinng in 2013 by square footage represent
the Choice

Wisconsin 29165 1.8k
property

in Silver Spring /10 and Omnicam property
in living Texas

Florida 27266 1.7/o

Other 84449 5.1/o

TotaL 62 $1648892 100.0%
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The following is tabuar presentation of our owned property

portfoho as of December 31 2010
in thousands

2011

PURCHASE LEASE FORM OF ESTIMATED PURCHASE

TENANT OR GUARANTOR LOCATION PROPERTY TYPE SOUARE FEET BATE MATURITY111 OWNERSHIP ANNUAL RENT121 PRICE INVESTMENT1

Abbott Laboratories Office 111776 11/2004 10/2016 Fee $1010 $12025 $12065

6480 Busch Blvd Columbus OH

Abbott Laboratories Office 131341 8/2005 8/2017 Fee 1616 20325 20362

1850 Norman Drive North Waukegan IL

Aetna Life Insurance Company Office 122605 10/2006 11/2016 Fee 1829 24255 25688

1333 1385 East Show Avenue Fresno CA

ALLstate Insurance Company Office 191681 12/2005 12/2015 Fee 2114 27172 27236

401 McCullough Drive Charlotte NC

ALLstate Insurance Company Office 165808 12/2005 12/2015 Fee 2251 28928 28935

1819 Electric Road aba State Hwy 419

Roanoke VA

AMVESCAP PLC Office 263770 3/2006 10/2016 Fee 5288 69300 70004

4340 4345 4350 South Monaco St Denver CO

Aon Corporation4 Office 412409 8/2004 4/2017 Fee 6982 85750 88100

1000 Milwaukee Aye Glenview IL

Baxter InternationaL Inc Warehouse 125500 10/2004 9/2016 Fee 810 10500 10779

555 North Daniels Way Bloomington IN

Bunge North America Inc Industrial 101520 4/2007 4/2026 Fee 667 10100 10268

6700 Snowden Road Fart Worth 7X

Cadbury Holdings Limited Office 149475 1/2005 3/2021 Fee 3740 48000 50231

945 Route 10 Whippany NJ

CapitaL One FinanciaL Corporation Office 159000 6/2005 2/2015 Fee 2287 27900 31175

3905 Dallas Parkway PIano IX

Choice HoteLs InternationaL Inc.151 Office 223912 11/2004 5/2013 Fee 5545 43500 47325

10720 10750 10770 Columbia Pike

Silver Spring MD

Cooper Tire Rubber Company Warehouse 807042 12/2010 5/2021 Fee 2520 32500 32562

500 Bartram Parkway Franklin IN

County of YoLo CaLifornia Office 63000 1/2007 6/2023 Fee 1057 16400 16857

25 North Cottonwood Street Woodland CA

Crozer-Keystone HeaLth System Medical Office 22708 8/2004 4/2019 Ground 446 4477 5879

Morton Avenue Ridley PA Lease

CVS Corporation Retail 88420 9/2004 1/2014 Fee 771 10450 14101

100 Mazzea Drive Randolph MA

Farmers Group Inc Office 271000 1/2007 1/2017 Fee 3099 41812 41879

3039-3041 Cochran Street Simi Valley CA

Farmers New WorLd Life Insurance Office 155200 12/2005 12/2020 Fee 2666 39550 39612

Company

3003 77th Avenue Southeast Mercer Island WA

GeneraL Motors FinanciaL Company Inc Office 246060 12/2006 8/2017 Fee 3209 43000 43374

4001 Embarcadero Drive Ariington IX

III Industries Inc Office 167285 5/2005 3/2019 Fee 5387 46081 56747

12975 Woridgote Drive Herndon VA

Johnson ControLs Inc Warehouse 301275 12/2006 8/2016 Fee 2096 27000 27266

6750 Bryan Daiiy Road Larga FL

KoninkLijke AhoLd N.y Retail 70020 6/2006 4/2026 Fee 1439 18575 21104

4001 New Falls Rood Levittown PA

Lowes Companies Inc.151 Retail 181160 5/2005 8/2024 Fee 3467 52860 52879

26501 Alisa Creek Rd Aliso Vieja CA

MicheLin North America Inc Warehouse N/A 9/2010 N/A Joint 664 3222 3222

DeveLopment Property7 Venture/

5600 Cone Run Rd Louisville 11 Fee

Continued
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TENANT OR GUARANTOR LOCATION PROPERTY TYPE SQUARE FEET DATE MATURITY111 OWNERSHIP ANNUAL RENT121

in thousands

PURCHASE LEASE FORM OF ESTIMATED PURCHASE

2011

N/A Ground345842 4/2007

133685 4/2007

292714 4/2007

N/A 5/2007

1045150 4/2007

764177 4/2007

751021 4/2007

101120 6/2005

194665 4/2006

69287 11/2006

685135 4/2007

130000 4/2007

367740 9/2005

154849 11/2006

PRICE

$55443

1786 10785

3003 30097

1000

6301 74215

3762 43837

4007 52357

1409 18100

1492 20750

1405 16195

5208 64037

5625 33628

4982 75000

2144 28530

Multi-Tenant currently vacant

1301 Atwood Avenue Johnston Ni

Multi-Tenant Dodge building

9394 West Dodge Road Omaha NE

Multi-Tenant Landmark building

1299 Farnam Street Omaha NE

N/A Development Property

2423 Galena Avenue Simi Valley CA

NestlØ Holdings Inc

555 Nestle Way Breinigsville PA

NestlØ Holdings Inc.18t

2909 Pleasant Center Road Fort Wayne IN

NestlØ Holdings Inc.191

Nestle Way Lathrap CA

Omnicom Group Inc

1660 North Westridge Circle living IX

Pearson Plc

3833 Greenway and 2201 Noria Road Lawrence KS

T-Mobile USA Inc

695 Grassmere Park Nashville TN

The Kroger Co

Varlaus locations in ltY jIve 64 faur and TN twa

The Travelers Corporation

200 Constitution Plaza Hartford CT

Tiffany Co
15 Sylvan Way Pamippany NJ

Time Warner Entertainment Company L.P

1320 Narth Dr Martin Luther King Jr Drive

Milwaukee WI

TJX Companies Inc

2760 Red Lion Road Philadelphia PA

United States Government DEA
1003 17th crreet North Birmingham AL

United States Government EPA
300 Ninnesata Avenue Kansas City KS

United States Government FBI
200 McCarty Avenue Albany NY

United States Government FBI
1100 18th Street North Birmingham AL

United States Government NIHHI
6116 Executive Dvd Bethesda MD

United States Government SSA
1029 Comma La Costa Austin IX

United States Government VA
Lot 37 Santiago De las Caballeros Avenue Pance PR

Walgreen Co

4601 Westfield Avenue Pennsauken NJ

Walgreen Co

700 Frederick Blvd Portsmouth VA

Office

Office

Office

Undeveloped

Land

Warehouse

Warehouse

Warehouse

Office

Office

Office

Retail

Office

Office/

Warehouse

Office

Warehouse

GSA US

Government

GSA US

Government

GSA US

Government

GSA US

Government

GSA US

Government

GSA US

Government

GSA US

Government

Retail Orug

Retail Orug

Various

Various

N/A

12/2012

12/2012

12/2012

5/2013

4/202

1/2017

1/202

10/2011

9/202

12/2016

6/202

12/2020

3/2023

9/2018

4/2020

5/2012

2/2016

2/2015

10/202

7/2018

Lease

Ground

Lease

Ground

Lease

Fee

Estate

for Years

Estate

for Years

Estate

for Years

Fee

Fee

Fee

Estate

for Years

Fee

Fee

Fee

Fee

Fee

Fee

Fee

Fee

Fee

Fee

Fee

Fee

Fee

INvEsTMENT

$42956

13235

32922

1025

85938

48136

64151

18333

20837

16250

87882

37685

77640

29165

93016

13770

33306

17285

26636

82678

7016

13758

3252

4370

1015500

35616

71979

98184

96278

207055

23311

56500

18500

13905

3/2006

8/2005

8/2005

10/2006

8/2005

9/2005

8/2005

11/2004

11/2004

11/2004

6215

1297

2652

1312

2797

7673

710

1300

297

358

90125

13369

29250

16350

21850

81500

6900

13218

3089

4167

Total 11216180 $126695 $1547474 $1648892

Except in the case of our Multi-Tenant Properties includes lease maturity for our primary tenant Four of aur owned properties within the
Single Tenant Owned Property

Partfalia are leased to mare than one tenant see footnotes through and 10 belaw

Reflects scheduled base rent due far 2011 under our lease with the tenant or tenants Does nat reflect straight line rent
adjustments required

under
generally accepted ac

counting principles GAAP Alsa does nat inriude expense recoveries or above or below market rent amortization adjustments required by GAAP
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Includes carry value af any related intangible assets under GAAP

As af December 31 2DID appraximately 2% af the praperty was leased ta ane ather tenant

As af December 31 2D1 appraximately 22% af the praperty was leased ta six ather tenants

As af December 31 2010 appraximately 18% af the praperty was leased ta twa ather tenants

We are currently funding canstructian af the praperty thraugh ajaint venture with the develaper We will acquire the develapers interest in the jaint venture upan campletian

af canstructian estimated in beginning afsecand quarter 2011 at which time the lease with the tenant which is far ten year term will cammence

Praperty is 100% subleased ta General Mills Dperatians Inc thraugh and until the scheduled lease maturity

Praperty is 100% subleased ta Del Mante Carp aratian thraugh and until the scheduled lease maturity

50 As af December 31 2DID approximately 6% af the praperty was leased ta three ather tenants

Estate for Years and Ground Leased Properties

With respect to cerlain of our owned properties we own the

improvements on the land and control the land through an estate

for years with an option to enter into ground lease at the expi

ration of the estate for years NestlØ and roger properties For

each of these properties we also have an option to purchase the

land at the expiration of the estate for years and on the last day

of the primary term and each renewal term-of the ground lease for

fair market value If we exercise the purchase option the fair mar

ket value will be agreed to by us and the seller or if the parties

cannot agree determined through an appraisal process For certain

of our other owned properties we own the improvements on the

land and control the land through ground lease Crozer-Keystone

Health System Omaha Nebraska properties and Johnston Rhode

Island property We have the right to transfer our interest in all

of these properties at any time and our interest in all of these

properties will revert to the land owner at the expiration of the

ground lease estate unless we have purchased the lend or extend

ed the leasehold estate The approximate duration of our interest

PERCENT NUMBER OF

in these properties assuming the full estate for years term if any

and all ground lease options are exercised is as follows Nestle

properties 62 years Kroger properties 71 years Omaha Nebraska

properties 65 years Crozer-Keystone Health System property 36

years and Johnston Rhode Island property 49 years

Multi-Tenant Properties

We have classified three owned properties within our portfolio as

Multi-Tenant Properties one in Johnston Rhode Island and two

in Omaha Nebraska

The property in Johnston Rhode Island is currently vacant

and has been so since the prior tenant vacated in October 2009

We are actively marketing the building to prospective tenants

and expect to re-let the property over time on multi-tenant

basis though we cannot make any assurance as to when and on

what terms we will be able to do so

The following table summarizes certain additional information

about the two Omaha Nebraska properties the Dodge Building

and the Landmark Building as of December 31 2010

LOCATION LEASED TENANTS MAJOR TENANTS LEASE MATURI1Y

1299 Farnam Street Omaha NE 67% 13 Pacific Life Insurance Company Jun 2012 Adesta LLC Aug 2013 Stinson

Morrison Hecker LLP Jun 2015 Booz Allen Hamilton Inc Jun 2013

9394 West Dodge Road Omaha NE 97% Hayneedle Inc Feb 2016 The Maids International Inc Aug 2016 Union

Pacific Railroad Company Jun 2018 Dex Media Inc Jun 2013

Reflects the date af the tenants early terminatian aptian where applicable which if exercised wauld require the tenant ta pay an early terminatian fee

We continue to actively market the remaining space in the Dodge ing tenant thus reducing our risk over time and eliminating the

Building and the Landmark Building to prospective tenants and

expect to fill that space over time though we cannot make any

assurance as to when and on what terms will be able to do so

Loan Investments

Loan investments comprise approximately ll/a of our current

portfolio Our existing loan investments are described in greater

detail below and include long-term mortgage loans corporate

credit notes and single mezzanine investment With the excep

tion of the one mezzanine investment all of our loans are secured

by first mortgage on the related property and an assignment of

the tenants lease and rents Most of the loans we hold in portfolio

are fully amortizing over the primary lease term of the underly

refinance risk associated with balloon payment at maturity The

following summarizes each type of loan we have made

Long-Term Mortgage Loans We have made long-term fully

or nearly fully amortizing loans secured by first mortgages on

properties subject to long-term net leases typically at least

15 years As of December 31 2010 our portfolio included

$190.8 million of long-term mortgage loans

Corporate Credit Notes Our corporate credit notes represent

one of two notes comprising single first mortgage loan on

net lease property Through process we have patented

we split the loan cash flows and establish priorities to the

collateral among the two notes The corporate credit note gen

erally ranges from 10/o to 2O/ of the full initial loan amount
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is fully amortizing and has junior claim on the real estate

mortgage but senior claim on the rents in the event of

tenant bankruptcy and lease rejection We have retained the

corporate credit note in our portfolio and typically sold the re

lated real estate note to third party such as securitization

vehicle or an insurance company As of December 31 2010

our portfolio included $1.1 million of corporate credit notes

Mezzanine and Other Investments Our only mezzanine

investment as of December 31 2010 was $1.4 million of

remaining principal on our indirect investment in franchise

loans to YUM Brands Inc franchisees

We may make long-term mortgage loans and corporate credit notes

from time to time in the future We may also make in the future

variety of other loan and loan type products primarily to owners of

single tenant properties including mezzanine loans bridge loans

development loans and preferred equity financings We expect

these investments wilt be shorter term in nature than our other

loan products and will be subordinate to other financing

As of December 31 2010 we had an approximately $210.g

million loan portfolio We believe the strength of our loan port

folio is exhibited by the following

weighted average remaining tease term on the underlying

leases of approximately 16 years

91 investment grade or implied investment grade underly

ing tenants

loan investments on 63 properties in 25 states with 22 differ

ent underlying tenant obligors and

weighted average underlying tenant credit rating of BBB

The following is tabular presentation of our loan portfolio as of

December 31 2010

in thousands

TENANT OR GUARANTOR

Long-Term Mortgage Loans

Autozone Inc

Douglas and Valdasta GA

Bank of America N.A

Glenview IL

Bank of America N.A

Mt Ainj MD Bank Branch

Best Buy Co Inc

Chkaga IL

City of Jasper Texas

Jasper Vt

CVS Corporation

Asheville NC

CVS Corporation

Athal MA

CVS Corporation

Bangor PA

CVS Corporation

Bluefleld WV

CVS Corporation

Evansville IN

CVS Corporation

Greensboro GA Retail Drug

CVS Corporation

Oak Ridge NC Retail Drug

CVS Corporation

Shelby Twp MI

CVS Corporation

Sauthingtan CT

CVS Corporation

Stow DH

CVS Corporation

Sunbuty PA

PROPERTY TYPE SQUARE FEET

ORIGINAL

LEASE LOAN PRINCIPAL PRINCIPAL

COUPON EXPIRATION MATURITY BALANCE BALANCE

Retail

Bank Branch

LOAN

CARRY TO REALTY

VALUE VALUE

Retail

Office

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

RetaiL Drug

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

13383 6.50 4/2024 11/2022 $2108 $1650 $1650 61

4500 6.34 12/2028 12/2028 4317 4247 4241 75

4500 6.42 12/2026 12/2026 346g 324g 324g 73%

45120 6.40 3/2025 3/2025 18522 16691 16691 86

12150 7.OD/o 12/2024 11/2024 1136 1498 1462 75

10880 6.53 1/2026 1/2026 236D 2034 2080 80

13013 6.46 1/2025 1/2D25 1502 1235 1.235 65

13013 6.28 1/2026 1/2026 2521 2064 2035 14

ID125 8.D0o 1/2021 1/2021 143g 1087 1161 64

12900 6.22k 1/2033 1/2033 3.351 3149 3149 12

11glo 6.52% 1/2030 1/2030 1395 1241 1241 73

10880 6.99 1/2025 8/2024 3243 2762 2762 11

11970 5.98 1/2031 1/2031 2540 2401 2401 84

10125 8.26 1/2020 1/2020 1768 1530 1665 75%

10125 8.26 1/2020 1/2020 2407 2029 2205 71

10125 7.50% 1/2021 1/2021 182w 1341 1316 64

Continued

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

RetaiL Drug
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217586 193421 190837

154 147 73%

174 173 670/o

586 577 65/a

186 183 62/s

Continued

TENANT OR GUARANTOR

LEASE

PROPERTY TYPE SOUARE FEET COUPON EXPIRATION

in thousonds

ORIGINAL

LOAN PRINCIPAL PRINCIPAL

MATURITY BALANCE BALANCE VALUE VALUE0

LOAN

CARRY TO REALTY

CVS Corporation

Woshington DC Retail Drug 7920 8.10% 1/2023 1/2023 $2781 $2089 $2201 63/a

CVS Corporation

Willimontic CT Retail Drug 10125 8.26/a 1/2023 1/2023 2028 1804 1982 74/a

Harris Ban kcorp Inc

Chicogo IL Bank Branch 4750 6.81/a 8/2025 8/2025 4467 3943 3943 65/a

Home Depot USA Inc

Cheiseo MA Retail 117034 5.36/a 1/2036 1/2031 8501 7807 7807 85/a

Home Depot USA Inc

Tullytown PA Retail 116016 6.62% 1/2033 1/2033 8447 8274 8274 96/a

Kohts Corporation

Chicogo IL Retail 133000 6.69/a 5/2030 5/2030 48270 45110 45110 88/a

KoninkLijke AhoLd N.y

Bensolena PA Retail 67000 7.24/a 5/2020 5/2020 3153 2549 2587 73/a

KoninkLijke AhoLd N.y

North Kingstown RI Retail 125772 7.50/a 11/2025 11/2025 6794 6075 6059 67/a

Koninktijke Ahotd N.y

Tewksbury MA Retail 58450 7.50/a 1/2027 1/2027 6625 5969 5965 68/a

KoninkLijke AhoLd N.y

Upper Dorby Township PA Retail 54800 7.29/a 4/2024 4/2024 6867 5763 5554 79/a

Lowes Companies Inc

Frominghom MA Retail 156543 0.96/a 10/2031 9/2031 5545 5585 1530 82/s

Lowes Companies Inc

Motornoros PA Retail 162070 6.61/a 5/2030 5/2030 7208 6923 6923 92/a

NationaL City Bank

Chicego
IL Bank Branch 5274 5.89/a 12/2024 12/2024 3114 2723 2782 69/a

Neiman Narcus Group Inc

Los Vegos NV Retail 167000 6.06/a 11/2022 11/2021 8267 5821 6223 61/a

United States PostaL Service

Scommon Boy AK Post Office 2080 7.05% 10/2021 10/2021 1015 759 771 59/a

University of Connecticut

HeaLth Center

Forrnington CT

Medical

Office 100000 94/a 11/2029 11/2024 22800 1R592 19150 75/a

WaLgreen Co

Doilos IX Retail Drug 14550 6.46/a 12/2029 12/2029 3534 3126 3126 73%

WaLgreen Co

Montebello CA Retail Drug 14414 6.10/a 3/2030 2/2030 4680 4147 4147 61/a

WaLgreen Co

Nocogdoches lx Retail Drug 14820 6.80/a 9/2030 9/2030 3649 3350 3350 66/a

WaLgreen Co

Rosemeod CA Retail Drug 12004 6.26/a 12/2029 12/2029 5334 4804 4804 67/a

Corporate Credit Notes

ALbertsons LLC

Los Angeles CA Retail Drug 16475 6.50/a 7/2028 9/2013 437

ALbertsons LLC

Norwoik CA Retail Drug 14696 6.33/a 11/2028 12/2013 470

Best Buy Co Inc

Oiothe KS Retail 48744 5.40/a 1/2018 6/2013 1779

Best Buy Co Inc

Wichito Foils lx Retail 30038 6.15/a 1/2017 11/2012 743
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PROPERTY TYPE SQUARE FEET COUPON EXPIRATION MATURITY

10880 5.54/o 1/2022 1/2015

10880 5.85/a 4/2025 5/2013

11970 6.12k 6/2025 8/2013

12150 6.40/a 1/2025 10/2012

10125 7.60% 1/2024 12/2011

10125 6.12/s 1/2025 10/2013

10125 6.12/s 1/2025 10/2013

30313 5.78/a 10/2018 3/2015

159699 5.89/o 1/2019 2/2015

106396 5.900/0 9/2018 10/2014

518409 9.32/a 5/2013 5/2013

138134 5.28/o 1/2026 9/2015

65862 7.35/a 11/2021 12/2011

34196 7.35/a 11/2021 12/2011

32700 7.35/a 11/2021 12/2011

95720 7.68/a 12/2021 1/2012

23942 6.41/a 6/2015 9/2012

15120 6.20/s 1/2021 1/2013

14266 5.49% 3/2030 5/2015

12804 6.10/o 10/2028 12/2013

14490 5.50/s 1/2023 6/2013

LOAN

CARRY TO REALTY

RALANCE RALANCE VALUE VALUEO

$285 $136 $133 55/o

501 164 162 72/a

879 290 287 71/a

857 201 199 72/a

322 44 44 59/0

435 152 150 65/a

346 136 134 66/a

362 196 194 62%

2737 1345 1337 73/s

1374 629 625 68/a

20000 12664 12664 71/s

1140 642 635 77/s

707 97 96 64%

321 44 44 63/o

299 41 41 66/s

939 140 140 65/a

408 106 105 60%

595 156 156 63/a

786 401 401 79%

571 210 208 67/a

953 290 282 68/a

19117

TENANT OR GUARANTOR

LEASE

in thousands

ORIGINAL

LOAN PRINCIPAL PRINCIPAL

CVS Corporation

Clemmons NC

CVS Corporation

Commerce /41

CVS Corporation

Garwood NJ

CVS Corporation

Kennett Square PA

CVS Corporation

Knox IN

CVS Corporation

Rockinghom NC

CVS Corporation

Rutherford College i/C

FederaL Express Corporation

Bellingham WA

FedEx Ground Package System Inc

McCook IL

FedEx Ground Package System Inc

Rena NV

HercuLes Incorporated

Wilmington DE

Lowes Companies Inc

Windham NE

PerkinELmer Inc

Beltsville MD

PerkinELmer Inc

Daytona Beach FL

PerkinEtmer Inc

Phelps NY

PerkinEtmer Inc

Warwick RI

StapLes Inc

Odessa Vt

Walgreen Co

Delray Beach FL

WaLgreen Co

Jefferson City TN

WaLgreen Co

Riverside CA

WaLgreen Co

Woterford NI

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

Warehouse

Warehouse

Warehouse

Office

Retail

Office/

Industrial

Office/

Industrial

Office/

Industrial

Industrial

Retail

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

Retail Drug

Mezzanine and Other Investments

West End Mortgage Finance

Fund L.P

Various Other N/A 5.00% N/A Delinquent 7154 1444 988 N/A

7154 1444 988

TotaL $262986 $214049 $210942

All percentages have been rounded to the nearest whole
percentage

Loan to realty value is the coda
of the principal balance of the loon as of December 31 2010 to the op

praised value of the real estate that secures the loon ot the time the loon was mode The current value of the real estate may be different The loon to realty value for each

corporate credit note includes the principal balance of the portion of the loon we hove sold
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Commerdal Mortgage-Backed and Other Real Estate Securities

As of December 31 2010 real estate securities aggregated ap

proximately $146.0 million or approximately 7/o of our port

folio We invest in commercial mortgage-backed securities or

CMBS and other real estate securities Our CMBS investments

incl.ude senior subordinate and interest-ony classes of primarily

net lease nan securitizations or pass through trusts Our other

rear estate securities represent our pro rata investments in one

or more first mortgage loans on properties net leased to single

tenant We believe we are well-positioned to evaluate net tease

CMBS investments and other rear estate securities due to our

expertise with net lease roan assets and our experience in struc

turing CMBS transactions We structured four CMBS securitiza

tions aggregating approximately $1.5 billion prior to our initial

public offering As result of our familiarity with the collatera

induded in these transactions many of our CMBS investments to

date have been made in classes of our prior securitizations

The weighted average credit rating on our securities portfolio

was BB as of December 31 2010 with 400/a of the portfolio rated

investment grade or implied investment grade These statistics

reflect the actual ratings on our CMBS securities and underlying

tenant ratings on our other real estate securities

Our CMBS and other real estate securities as of December 31

2010 are summarized in the following table

in thousands

SECURITY DESCRIPTION CUSIP NO FACE AMOUNT CARRY VALUE AMORTIZED COST COUFON MATURITY DATE

Investments in CommerciaL Mortgage Loan Securitizations

BACM 2006-4 Class 05950WAT5 $8000 $400 $400 6.01/a Aug 2016

Banc of America 2007-1 Class 059497AB3 500 173 173 5.56/o Feb 2017

BSCMS 1999 CLFI Class 07383FCC0 3326 7.10/a May 2028

BSCMS 1999 CLF1 Class 07383FCD8 251 6.41/a Sep 2025

CALFS 1997-CTL1 Class 140281AF3 6000 5375 5951 6.16/a Apr 2016

CMLBC 2001 CMLB-i Class 201736AJ4 9526 9658 10033 7.88/a JuL 2022

CMLBC 2001-CMLB Class 201736AL9 9526 4945 8953 7.88/a Feb 2023

CMLBC 2001-CMLB-i Class 201736AM7 11907 1109 6978 5.25/a Mar 2024

CMLBC 2001 CMIB-1 CLass 201736AN5 6383 320 1149 6.25/a Oct 2025

JP Morgan 2006 LOP9 CLass AJ 46629PAF5 200 99 99 5.41/s Oec 2016

NLFC 1999-LTL-1 CLass 63859CCL5 11081 6483 5926 5.000/a Mar 2022

NLFC 1999-LTL-1 Class 10 63859CCG6 4392 3917 4392 0.53/a Jan 2024

Wachovia 2007-C30 CLass AJ 92978OAJ6 200 95 95 5.41/a Feb 2017

Wachovia 2007-C31 Class AJ 92978TAJ0 200 96 96 5.56/a May 2017

Wachovia 2007-C33 Class AJ 92978NAK0 200 96 96 5.90k JuL 2017

WBCMT 2004 CIS CLass 18OML-D 929766Y62 15000 15013 15013 5.59/a Nov 20120

WBCMT 2004-C15 Class 18OML-F 929765YH0 8000 7223 8008 5.59/a Nov 2O12

WBCMT 2006-C27 CLass 92977OAK4 11000 10601 11148 5.89/a Aug 2016

BACMS 2002-2 CLass V-i 7-Eleven Inc 05947UJE9 502 493 493 8.72/a Sep 2019

BACMS 2002-2 CLass V-2 Sterling JeweLers 05947UJF5 920

107214

734

66830

735

79738

8.58/a Jan 2021

Investments in Certificated Loan Transactions

Alcatel.-Lucent USA Inc as tenant 72817ffAA5 34722 34000 35172 6.70/a Sep 2020

CVS Corporation as tenant 126650885 17480 16702 17480 5.88/a Jan 2028

Koninklijke Ahold N.V as tenant OO8S8SAAS 8032 8336 8142 7.82/a Jan 2019

Yahoo Inc as tenant 984332AC0 21739

81973

20096

79134

21497

82291

6.55/o Aug 2026

Total

Represents face amount or in tha rosa of the NLFC 199 9-LTL Closs ID bond

$189187

our amortized cost

$145964 $162029

As of
December 31 2010 we were not receiving scheduled interest poyments on the SIC/Ill bonds doss ond Closs We hove odopted the cost-recovery method in which

oIl receipts ore opplied to reduce our cost basis on limited number of our securities investments

The security hod on original scheduled maturity in November 2009 and therefore the Company held the security beyond its original scheduled maturity dote

The weighted average life of our securities portfolio as of

December 31 2010 was 7.2 years
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PORTFOLIO FINANCING

Our strategy is to finance our assets with secured long-term fixed

rate non-recourse first mortgage debt We seek to finance our

assets as soon as practicable after we invest through match-

funded or substantially match-funded debt meaning that

we seek to obtain debt whose maturity matches as closely as

possible the lease maturity of the asset financed By doing so

we seek to lock-in the positive spread on the assets represent

ing the difference between our yield and our cost of financing

for the long-term Through non-recourse debt we seek to limit

the overall company exposure in the event we default on the

debt to the amount we have invested in the asset or assets

financed We also seek to employ amortizing debt on our assets

or debt that will diminish over time as we make scheduled

principal payments

Since our initial public offering oisr long-term fixed rate fi

nancings have been in the form of mortgage debt on most of our

owned properties and two term financings including one CDO We

have used term financings to finance most of our loan and CMBS

investments and to finance portion of our owned properties

We issued an entirely fixed rate on balance sheet CDO financ

ing in March 2005 We aggregated approximately $300 million

face amount of assets into the pool and we issued $285 million

face amount of multi-class notes and $15 million of preferred

equity through the CDO trust The net amount of the debt we

initially issued was $268.1 million inclusive of $0.4 million

discount to face as we retained the three most junior note

classes aggregating face amount of $16.5 million and the full

$15 million of preferred equity The CDO notes have stated

maturity in January 2040 although the actual life of the notes is

expected to be substantially shorter Our weighted average effec

tive financing rate inclusive of original issue discount and debt

issuance and hedge costs on our CDO is approximately 5.6/a

We have completed $129.5 million original principal

balance secured term loan with European based institutional

lender in December 2007 Upon closing of the financing we

pledged approximately $163.1 million principal amount of

collateral to secure our obligations under the loan The interest

coupon on the loan is fixed at 5.81/s annually until the loan

matures in January 2018 Our effective financing rate on the

loan is 6.0/s annually inclusive of hedge and closing costs

We have financed certain of our portfolio assets pursuant to

credit agreement we entered into with Wells Fargo Bank in April

2008 and amended and restated in July 2010 We have $105.3

million outstanding under the agreement as of December 31

2010 Our borrowings are scheduled to mature in July 2013 The

agreement is floating rate LIBOR based recourse borrowing

facility We may pursue variety of strategies for the assets

financed pursuant to the agreement which may include obtain

ing long-term fixed rate financing when market conditions

permit pursuing selected asset sales and retiring the debt on

selected assets and holding the assets unlevered Through

combination of voluntary and scheduled principal repayments

we reduced the borrowings under the agreement by $20.9 million

during 2010

As of December 31 2010 the following statistics summarize

various aspects of our overall portfolio financing position

leverage of approximately 72/o which includes secured and

unsecured debt

$928.4 million of non-recourse first mortgage debt at

weighted average coupon of 5.62% and weighted average

effective financing rate of 5.6Io

$254.2 million of non-recourse CDO debt at weighted aver

age effective financing rate of approximately 5.6%

$101.9 million of non-recourse other term debt at coupon

of 5.81/o and an effective financing rate of 6.O/o and

$105.3 million of recourse debt to Wells Fargo Bank under the

credit agreement described above at an effective financing

rate of 3.3/s

We expect our leverage levels to decrease over time as result

of one or more of the following factors scheduled principal

amortization on our debt voluntary debt reduction including po

tentially through selected asset sales and lower or flo leverage

on new asset acquisitions

HEDGING STRATEGY

For assets that have not yet been financed with long-term

fixed rate debt we may employ hedging strategy to manage

our exposure to interest rate fluctuations prior to the time we

obtain long-term fixed rate financing We do so by entering into

hedging transactions that we expect to offset the impact to us

of changes in interest rates As interest rates increase the hedge

transactions are intended to offset the increased interest cost on

the expected future financing with gains on the hedge positions

Our hedging transactions have historically consisted primarily

of forward starting interest rate swaps Interest rate swaps are

agreements between two parties to exchange at particular inter

vals payment streams calculated on specified notional amount

We do not hedge those assets that we have financed with

long-term fixed rate debt as our yields and spreads on thnce

assets are fixed and therefore not impacted by fluctuations in

interest rates

We will continue to seek to manage our interest rate exposure

taking into account market conditions the cost of the hedg

ing transactions and the limitations on hedging transactions

imposed by the REIT tax rules As of December 31 2010 we had

no open hedge transactions
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REVENUE CONCENTRATIONS IN 2010

Other than the United States Government and Nestle Holdings

Inc which accounted for approximatety 12.4/a and 8.8/o respec

tivety of our total revenue and approximatety 15.OO/o and 1O.6Io

respectivety of our total revenue from our owned properties seg

ment we had no greater than lO/o revenue concentrations based

on total revenue or on totat revenue by segment basis during

2010 Approximatety 11.2/a and 1O.4/ respectivety of our totat

revenue from our debt investments segment during 2010 was

obtained from investments where Kohts Corporation and CVS Cor

poration is the tenant or tease guarantor but not our obtigor

INVESTMENT NETWORK

Our tevet of new investment activity is influenced by market

conditions We reinitiated our portfolio growth activities during

2010 and we expect to continue our portfolio growth momen

tum during 2011

We maintain comprehensive marketing advertising and

public retations program that supports our investment efforts

The objective of the program is to build our name recognition

and reinforce our position as an industry leader in the single

tenant market segment We betieve based upon our experience

and responses from customers that we have been successful in

achieving our objectives of market awareness and prominence

Property Acquisitions

Since our initiat public offering we have leveraged our relation

ships within our lean origination business and our knowledge of

the single tenant business to develep relationships with invest

ment sate brokers through which we identify reat property for

purchase In addition we source property acquisition opportuni

ties directty from growing number of developers and owners or

investors in reat estate assets

During 2010 we launched development joint venture

program designed to source build-to-suit investments at higher

rates of return retative to completed projects We believe that

by entering into projects with established develeper partners

we can provide the capitat needed to get projects built while

at the same time securing tong-term investment assets for our

company at yields significantty higher than those avaitabte for

completed properties The program is being met with significant

interest from devetopers and tenants and we commenced fund

ing our first project for Michelin North America Inc during

2010 which is scheduled for completion during the beginning of

the second quarter of 2011

Loan Origination

We source toan business through our national network of

independent mortgage brokers In addition we originate toans

directly from develepers and owners or investors in net leased

properties significant portion of our toan business has histori

catty been with repeat customers

UNDERWRITING PROCESS

Once prospective investment opportunity is identified the

potentiat transaction undergoes comprehensive underwriting

and due diligence process that is overseen by our investment

committee which consists of our key employees inctuding the

chief executive officer president chief financial officer and chief

investment officer The focus of our asset underwriting fails into

four primary areas

credit and financial reviews of the tenant as wett as an

assessment of the tenants business the overall industry seg

ment and the tenants market position within the industry

lease quality inctuding an anatysis of the term tenant termi

nation and abatement rights tandtord obligations and other

lease provisions

real estate fundamentats review and anatysis and

an analysis of the risk adjusted returns on the investment

Prior to entering into any transaction our underwriter and ana

tyst assisted by our chief investment officer and chief financial

officer as necessary conducts review of the tenants credit

quality This review may include reviews of publicty available

information including any public credit ratings financial state

ments debt and equity analyst reports and reviews of corporate

credit spreads stock prices market capitalization and other

financiat metrics

White we have no defined minimum credit rating or balance

sheet size for tenants we anticipate that majority of the

tenants underlying our investments wilt have investment grade

or implied investinent grade credit ratings For those tenants

that either are below investment grade or are unrated we may

conduct additional due diligence including additional financiat

reviews of the tenant and more comprehensive review of the

business segment and industry in which the tenant operates

Assuming that the credit of the tenant under the tease is sat

isfactory thorough review is then conducted into the quality of

the tease focusing primarily on the tandtords obligations under

the tease and those provisions of the tease that wnutd permit the

tenant to terminate or abate rent prior to the conclusion of the

primary lease term We anatyze the tease to ensure that att or

substantiatty aft of the property expenses are borne by the tenant

or that any property expenses not borne by the tenant are suf

ficiently underwritten to assure that we can isolate predictabte

cash flow from the asset For our toan investments we isolate

any tease provisions that provide for tenant abatement or termi

nation rights or landlords obligations and determine whether

to appty appropriate forms of tease enhancements including as
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necessary specialized insurance reserves or debt service cover

age covenants In addition each lease is reviewed by outside

counsel and lease summary is provided to our underwriter for

use in underwriting the transaction

We conduct review with respect to the quality of the real

estate subject to the lease In all cases the property is reviewed

from traditionat real estate perspective including quality of

construction and maintenance location and value of the real

estate and technical issues such as title survey and environmen

tal Appraisals and environmental and as necessary engineer

ing reports are obtained from third parties and reviewed by our

underwriter and/or legal counsel The level of additional review

will then vary depending on the credit of the tenant below

investment grade tenants generally require more stringent

review of real estate fundamentals For our owned properties we

thoroughly review the propertys real estate fundamentals includ

ing location and type of the property yacancy rates and trends

in vacancy rates in the propertys market rental rates within the

propertys market recent sales prices and demographics in the

propertys market As described in detail under Our Portfolio

Owned Properties above we target properties with one or more of

the following located in primary metropolitan market fungible

asset type barriers to entry in the market and core facility of

the tenant In addition we may evaluate or engage third-party

provider to evaluate alternative uses for the real estate and the

costs associated with converting to such alternative uses as well

as examine the surrounding real estate market in greater detail

In the case of loan to property owner our real estate due dili

gence includes review of the background and financial capabili

ties of the owner/borrower

In the case of CMBS investments our underwriter assisted by

our chief investment officer and chief financial officer thorough

ly evaluates the credit the legal and financial structures and the

collateral quality underlying the transaction

In addition to our review of the quality of any individual

transaction our investment committee also

evaluates our current portfolio including consideration of

how the subject transaction affects asset diversity and credit

concentrations in the tenant industry or credit level

determines whether we can implement appropriate legal and

financial structures including our ability to control the asset

in variety of circumstances such as an event of default by

the tenant or the borrower as applicable

evaluates the leveraged and unleveraged yield on the asset

and how that yield compares to our target yields for that asset

class and our analysis of the risk profile of the investment and

determines our plans for financing and hedging the asset

We use integrated systems such as customized software and

models to support our decisions on pricing and structuring

investments Before issuing any form of commitment to fund an

investment transaction the transaction must be approved by our

investment committee The committee meets frequently and on

an as-needed basis to evaluate potential investments

In addition we have three-member investment oversight

committee of our board of directors which approves all transac

tions in excess of $50 million Our chief executive officer is

the only member of this committee who is an employee of our

company

We believe that we can continue to grow our business more

rapidly than we need to expand our general and administrative

costs and headcount

ASSET MANAGEMENT

We manage diverse portfolio of primarily single tenant com

mercial real estate assets For our owned properties where we

are responsible for day-to-day management of the property we

typically hire third-party property managers who are overseen by

employees of our company Our owned property investments also

require that we perform variety of asset management functions

such as

meeting periodically with our tenants

monitoring lease expirations and tenant space requirements

and renewing leases as they mature or re-lettingspace

monitoring the financial condition and credit ratings of our

tenants

performing physical inspections of our properties

making periodic improvements to properties where required

monitoring portfolio concentrations e.g tenant industry

and

monitoring real estate market conditions where we own

properties

ASSET SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM

We also have created an on-going asset surveillance system that

tracks the status of our investments and investment oppor

tu nities

links into management program that includes the underly

ing asset origination or acquisition documents

loads expected asset cash flows from our underwriting files

into the system

imports data from the system into our financial accounting

system

monitors actual cash flows on each asset through servicer

reports

immediately identifies issues such as non-payment of rent

and servicer advances of rent or debt service through servicer

exception reports

automatically generates system e-mail notifications when the

credit ratings of underlying tenants change and

26 CAPLEA5E 2111 ANNUAL REPORT



BUSINESS

computes coverage and compliance tests for our CDO

transactions

Through this single system we are able to track and document

the entire Ufecyde of our assets

CLOSING PROCESS

From the time we begin to consider an investment until the

investment is dosed the prospective transaction undergoes

variety of defined steps and procedures In connection with the

dosing process we will typically need to rely on certain third

parties not under our control induding tenants borrowers sell

ers lenders brokers outside counsel insurance companies title

companies environmental consuftants appraisers engineering

consuftants and other product or service providers Our person-

net carefully manage the dosing process and have developed

streamUned set of procedures checkUsts and retationships with

many of the third-party providers with whom we do business on

an on-going basis

As set forth under Underwriting Process above each

transaction goes through mutti-stage underwriting process

including review by our investment committee Transaction

underwriting and the documentary process surrounding it is

supported by the use of standardized transaction documents

including dosing checkhsts and form acquisition and loan

documents and is further supported by proprietary underwriting

and pricing software All of our transactions are dosed by our

in-house dosing staff That staff seeks to dose our property

acquisitions four to eight weeks after purchase and sale

agreement is signed and dose loan transactions four to eight

weeks after the appUcation is signed while at the same time

maintaining our underwriting standards

COMPETITION

We are subject to significant competition in each of our busi

ness segments We compete with speciafty finance companies

insurance companies commercial banks investment banks

savings and nan associations mortgage bankers mutual funds

institutional investors pension funds hedge funds other lend

ers gnvernmental bodies and individuals and nther entities

induding REITs We may face new competitors and due to our

focus on single tenant properties located throughout the United

States and because many of our competitors are locally and/or

regionatly focused we wilt not encounter the same competitors

in each region of the United States

Many of our competitors have greater financiat and other

resources and may have other advantages over our company

Our competitors may be wilting to accept tower returns on their

investments and may succeed in buying the assets that we have

targeted for acquisition We may atso incur costs on unsuccessfut

acquisitions that we wilt not be abte to recover

ENVIRONMENTAL MAilERS

Under various federat state and tocat environmentat taws cur

rent owner of reat estate may be required to investigate and ctean

up contaminated property Under these laws courts and govern

ment agencies have the authority to impose cleanup responsibit

ity and tiability even if the owner did not know of and was not

responsibte for the contamination For example liability can be

imposed upon us based on the activities of our tenants or prior

owner In addition to the cost of the cleanup environmental

contamination on property may adversely affect the value of

the property and our abiUty to sell rent or finance the property

and may adversely impact our investment in that property

Prior to acquisition of property we obtain Phase environ

mental reports These reports are prepared in accordance with

an appropriate level of due diligence based on our underwrit

ing standards and generally include physical site inspection

review of relevant federal state and local environmental and

health agency database records one or more interviews with

appropriate site-related personnel review of the propertys chain

of title and review of historic aerial photographs and otber

information on past uses of the property and nearby or adjoining

properties We may also obtain Phase II investigation which

may include limited subsurface investigations and tests for sub

stances of concern where the results of the Phase environmen

tal reports or other information indicates possible contamination

or where our consultants recommend such procedures

We believe that our portfolio is in compliance in all material

respects with all federal state and local laws and regulations

regarding hazardous or toxic substances and other environmental

matters

At December 31 2010 we were not aware of any environ

mental concerns that would have material adverse effect on

our financial position or results of operations

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31 2010 we had 19 employees We have an

experienced staff many nf the members nf which have been

previously employed by the real estate departments from major

financial institutions law firms and rating agencies We believe

that our relations with our employees are good None of our

employees are unionized

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We are required to file annual quarterly and current reports proxy

statements and other information with the SEC Investors may

CAPLEA5E 2010 ANNUAL REPORT 27



RISK FACTORS

read and copy any document that we file including this Annual

Report on Form 10-K at the SECs Public Reference Room at 100

Street N.E Washington D.C 2054g Investors may obtain infor

mation on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling

the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 In addition the SEC maintains an

Internet site at http//www.sec.gov that contains reports proxy

and information statements and other information regarding

issuers that file electronically with the SEC from which investors

can electronically access our SEC filings

We also make available free of charge on or through our

Web site www.caplease.com our Annual Report on Form 10-K

Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q Current Reports on Form 8-K

and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to

Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1g34

as amended as soon as reasonably practicable after we electron

ically file such material with or furnish it to the SEC Investors

can access our filings with the SEC by-visiting the investor rela

tions section of our web site at www.caplease.com

The information on our web site is not and shall not be

deemed to be part of this report or incorporated into any

other filings we make with the SEC

Item 1A Risk Factors

Set forth below ond elsewhere in this Annuol Report on Form 10-K

ond in other documents we file or furnish with the SEC ore risks

ond uncertointies thot could odversely offect our business ond

operotions ond couse octuol results to differ moteriolly from the

results contemploted by ony forword-looking stotements mode by

us or on our beholf

RISKS RELATED TO OPERATIONS

Current market conditions expose us to variety of risks

Current economic conditions remain weak and while commercial

real estate market conditions have improved various signs of

weakness persist particularly in those markets hardest hit by

the recent downturn Current market conditions could negatively

impact us in number of ways including by adversely impact

ing our ability to add new assets to the portfolio the economic

terms that we can renew or re-let and sell or refinance our owned

properties as well as our ability to do so at aft and/or causing

us to record impairment charges on our assets Current economic

conditions may also cause one or more of the tenants to whom

we have exposure to fail or default in their payment obligations

which could cause us to record material losses or resuft in

material reduction in our cash flows and hence our liquidity

If we Lower or eLiminate our dividend the market vaLue of

our common stock may decLine

The level of our common stock dividend is established by our

board of directors from time to time based on variety of

factors including market conditions our cash available for

distribution our funds from operations and our maintenance

of REIT status Various factors could cause our board of direc

tors to decrease or eliminate our common stock dividend level

including our desire due to market conditions or otherwise to

maintain higher levels of liquidity tenant defaults resufting in

material reduction in our cash flows or material less resulting

from an adverse change in one or more of the tenants underlying

our investments We have not established minimum dividend

payment level and we cannot assure you that we wilt be able to

pay dividends in the future If we tower or eliminate our com

mon stock dividend the market vatue of common stock in our

company could be adversely affected

REIT distribution requirements could adversely affect our

ability to execute our business plan and may require us to incur

debt or sell assets to make such distributions

To maintain our status as REIT we must distribute annually

at least go% of our taxable income To the extent we satisfy this

requirement but distribute less than 100/o of our taxable income

we will be subject to federal corporate income tax arid may be

subject to 4Io nondeductible excise tax on our undistributed

taxable income We generally intend to distribute each year all or

substantially all of our taxable income so as to comply with the

REIT requirements and to avoid federal income tax and nonde

ductible excise tax

From time to time we may generate less cash flow than tax

able income for example if we are required to use cash income

we receive from our assets to make principal payments on our

indebtedness or due to timing differences in when we record

income for tax purposes

As result of the foregoing we may be required to take one

or more of the following steps in order to comply with the REIT

distribution requirements and to avoid corporate income tax and

the 4% nondeductible excise tax

sell assets in adverse market conditions

borrow on unfavorable terms

distribute amounts that would otherwise be invested in fu

ture investments capital expenditures or repayment of debt

distribute shares of our common stock rather than cash or

utilize cash on hand to fund distributions

Thus compliance with the REIT distribution requirements may

hinder our ability to grow which could adversely affect the value

of our common stock
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We conduct significant part of our business with WeLLs

Fargo Bank N.A and its affiLiates and their continued busi

ness with us is not guaranteed

We reLy on WeLLs Fargo Bank N.A and its affiLiates in various

aspects of our business For exampLe

WeLLs Fargo Bank and its affiLiates provide us with asset

financing through revoLving credit agreement

We have obtained mortgage financing on our owned properties

from WeLLs Fargo Bank as successor to Wachovia Bank N.A

in the past and we expect to continue to do so in the future

AffiLiates of WeLLs Fargo Bank have performed investment

banking services for us incLuding in connection with our

initiaL pubLic offering our COO transaction and each of our

foLLow-on pubLic equity offerings

These parties are not obLigated to do business with us and any

adverse deveLopments in their business or in our reLationship

with them couLd resuft in these parties choosing not to do busi

ness with us or significant reduction in our business with them

Termination of our business or significant reduction in our busi

ness with these parties couLd have materiaL adverse effect on

our business operating resufts financiaL condition and Liquidity

The market price of our stock may be adverseLy impacted by

our pace of investment activity

The markets in which we compete for investments are com

petitive and our pace of investment activity continues to be

impacted by competitive and market conditions If our pace of

investment activity does not match market expectations the

market price of our stock couLd be adverseLy affected

RISKS RELATED TO PORTFOLIO ASSETS

SingLe tenant Leases invoLve significant risks of tenant

defauLt

We focus our investment activities on ownership of reaL prop

erties and Loans on reat properties that are Leased to singLe

tenant Therefore the financiaL faiLure of or other defauLt in

payment by singLe tenant under its Lease is LikeLy to cause

compLete reduction in the operating cash flows from that invest

ment and significant reduction in the vaLue of our investment

and couLd cause significant reduction in our revenues cash

flows and hence our Liquidity and significant impairment Loss

recorded directLy to our Statement of Operations Current eco

nomic conditions may put financiaL pressure on and increase the

LikeLihood of the financiaL faiLure of or other defauLt in payment

by one or more of the tenants to whom we have exposure

Credit ratings may prove to be inaccurate

We consider credit ratings assigned by SP and/or Moodys to

our tenants their guarantors or parent companies and to our

structured CMBS securities when making investment and Leasing

decisions credit rating is not guarantee of continued finan

ciaL performance and onLy reflects the rating agencys opinion

of an entitys abiLity to meet its financiaL commitments such as

its senior unsecured obLigations in accordance with their stated

terms rating may uLtimateLy prove not to accurateLy reflect the

credit risk associated with particuLar tenant In addition rat

ings may be changed quaLified suspended pLaced on watch or

withdrawn over time If tenants rating is downgraded quaLi

fled suspended pLaced on watch or withdrawn such tenant may

be more LikeLy to defauLt in its obLigations to us and investors

may view our cash flows as Less stabLe

An adverse change in the financiaL condition of one or more

tenants underLying our investments couLd have materiaL

adverse impact on us

We reLy on rent payments by the underLying tenant for our cash

flows and make portfoLio investments based on the financiaL

strength of such tenant and our expectations of their continued

payment of rent under the Lease Therefore adverse changes in

the financiaL condition of the tenants or the certainty of their

abiLity to pay rents couLd have materiaL adverse impact on us

For exampLe

The bankruptcy or insoLvency of any of our tenants couLd re

suLt in that tenant ceasing to make rentaL payments resuLting

in reduction of our cash flows and Losses to our company

In addition to the rent Loss due to our focus on net Leased

properties our expenses wiLL LikeLy increase as the tenant wiLL

no Longer pay or reimburse us for the operating costs at the

property

The credit quaLity of the underLying tenant or tenants is

frequentLy significant factor in determining the vaLue of our

investments and an adverse change in the subject tenants

financiaL condition or decLine in the credit rating of such

tenant may resuLt in decLine in the vaLue of our investments

and resuLting impairment charge directLy to our Statement

of Operations

An adverse change in the financiaL condition of one or more

of the tenants underLying our investments or decLine in the

credit rating of one or more of the tenants underLying our

investments couLd resuLt in margin caLL if the reLated asset

is being financed on our WeLLs Fargo Bank credit agreement

and couLd make it more difficuLt for us to arrange Long-term

financing for that asset incLuding by increasing our cost of

financing

We own the subordinate cLasses in our CDO financings and

subordinate equity in any other term financings If the under

Lying tenant on any asset financed in our CDO or other term

financing faiLs to make rentaL payments our cash flows may

be redirected to the senior owners
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Our assets may be subject to impairment charges which

couLd materiaLLy adverseLy affect our financiaL condition and

resuLts of operations

We periodically evaluate our investments for impairment indica

tors If we determine that an impairment has occurred and

solely in the case of our securities investments the impairment

is due to credit factors we would be required to reduce the

carrying value of the investment and record toss directly to

the Statement of Operations in the applicable period The judg

ment regarding the existence of impairment indicators is based

on variety of factors such as market conditions the status of

significant teases the financial condition of major tenants our

expectations regarding future cash flows and the estimated fair

value of our investment and/or related collateral During 2009

and 2010 we incurred substantial impairment charges includ

ing an $11.9 million impairment toss in 2009 on our property in

Johnston Rhode Island and $7.7 million other-than-temporary

impairment toss in 2010 on one of our securities investments

We may continue to take similar impairment charges in the fu

ture These impairments could have material adverse effect on

our financial condition and results of operations

Bankruptcy Laws wiLL Limit our remedies if an underLying

tenant becomes bankrupt and rejects the Lease

We
rely on rent payments from the underlying tenant to service

our financing of the asset and generate the spread we expect to

earn If the tenant becomes insolvent or bankrupt they have

the right under the United States Bankruptcy Code to reject the

lease and rent payments could cease In such case our rem

edies will be limited under the Bankruptcy Code The premises

may not be recoverable promptly from the tenant and our claim

for damages which will be unsecured and is limited to rent

under the lease for the greater of one year or 15/s but not more

than three years of the remaining term plus rent already due

but unpaid may not be sufficient to cover our debt service and

any other expenses with respect to the property

We are subject to tenant credit concentrations that make us

more susceptibLe to adverse events with respect to certain

tenants

We are subject to tenant credit concentrations the most signifi

cant of which are the following as of December 31 2010

approximately $198.2 million or 9.9/a of our assets rep

resent investments in three properties leased to or leases

guaranteed by NestlØ Holdings Inc and

approximately $194.4 million or 9.7/o of our assets repre

sent investments in seven properties leased to the United

States Government

Any bankruptcy insolvency or failure to make rental payments

by or any adverse change in the financial condition of one or

more of these tenants or any other tenant to whom we may

have significant credit concentration now or in the future

could result in material reduction of our cash flows and hence

our liquidity or material losses to our company

We are subject to tenant industry concentrations that make

us more susceptibLe to adverse events with respect to certain

industries

We are subject to industry concentrations the most significant

of which are the following as of December 31 2010

approximately $298.9 million or 14.9/s of our assets rep

resent investments in properties leased to or leases guar

anteed by companies in the insurance industry e.g Aon

Corporation Allstate Insurance Company Farmers New World

Life Insurance Company Aetna Life Insurance Company and

Travelers Corporation

approximately $258.7 million or 12.9/s of our assets repre

sent investments in properties leased to or leases guaranteed

by companies in the food and beverage industry e.g NestlØ

Holdings Inc and Cadbury Schweppes Holdings US
approximately $211.3 million or 10.Slo nf our assets repre

sent investments in properties leased to or leases guaranteed

by federal or state governmental entities or branches or units

thereof e.g United States Government and County of Yolo

California

approximately $T45.8 million or 7.3/s of our assets repre

sent investments in properties leased to or leases guaranteed

by companies in the financial industry e.g Capital One

Financial Corporation General Motors Financial Company Inc

and AMVESCAP PLC

approximately $138.1 million or 6.9/o of our assets repre

sent investments in properties leased to or leases guaranteed

by companies in the retail department stores industry e.g
TJX Companies Inc and Kohls Corporation and

approximately $137.5 million or 6.9% of our assets repre

sent investments in properties leased to or leases guaranteed

by companies in the retail grocery industry e.g The Kroger

Co and Koninklijke Ahold N.y.

Any downturn in one or more of these industries or in any other

industry in which we may have significant credit concentra

tion now or in the future could result in material reduction of

our cash flows and hence our liquidity or material losses to our

company

We are subject to geographic concentrations that make us

more susceptibLe to adverse events in these areas

We are subject to geographic concentrations the most signifi

cant of which are the following as of December 31 2010
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approximately $225.6 million or 11.3/o of our assets repre

sent investments in properties located in the Philadelphia

Pennsylvania metropolitan area

apprnximately $189.0 million or 9.5/s of our assets repre

sent investments in properties located in the Washington

D.C metropolitan area

approximately $182.6 million or 9.1/o of our assets repre

sent investments in properties located in the Chicago Illinois

metropolitan area

approximately $150.4 million or 7.5/a of our assets repre

sent investments in properties located in the New York City

and Northern New Jersey area

approximately $106.3 million or 5.3/o of our assets rep

resent investments in properties located in the Dallas/Fort

Worth Texas metropolitan area and

approximately $104.2 million or 5.2/o of our assets rep

resent investments in properties located in the Southern

California area

An economic downturn or other adverse events or conditions

such as terrorist attacks or natural disasters in one or more of

these areas or any other area where we may have significant

credit concentration now or in the future could result in

material reduction of our cash flows and hence our liquidity or

material losses to our company

Our investments in assets backed by beLow investment grade

credits have greater risk of defauLt

We invest in assets where the underlying tenants credit rating

is below investment grade approximately $180.9 million or

9.50/0 of our portfolio as of December 31 2010 These invest

ments will have greater risk of default and bankruptcy than

investments in properties leased exclusively to investment grade

tenants

Our investments in assets where the underLying tenant does

not have pubLicLy avaiLabLe credit rating expose us to

certain risks

We have historically been successful at obtaining attractively

priced term financing for our assets due in part to the high

credit quality of the underlying tenant When we invest in

property or loan where the underlying tenant does not have

publicly available credit rating we rely on our own estimates of

the tenants credit rating and usually subsequently obtain pri

vate rating from SP or Moodys to allow us to finance the asset

as we had planned If our lender SP or Moodys disagrees with

our ratings estimates we may not be able to obtain our desired

level of leverage and/or our financing costs may exceed those

that we projected This outcome could have an adverse impact

on our returns on that asset and hence our operating results

RISKS RELATED TO OWNERSHIP OF REAL ESTATE

It may be difficuLt for us to buy and seLL reaL estate quickLy

and the vaLue of these investments may decLine

Real estate investments are relatively illiquid Our ability to

vary our portfolio by selling and buying properties in response

to changes in economic and other conditions is limited We may

encounter difficulty in disposing of properties when tenants

vacate either at the expiration of the applicable lease or oth

erwise If we decide to sell any of our properties our ability to

sell these properties and the prices we receive on their sale may

be affected by many factors including any limits of our form

of ownership such as an estate for years or ground lease the

number of potential buyers the number of competing properties

on the market and other market conditions as well as whether

the property is leased and if it is leased the terms of the lease

In addition the mortgage debt we put on the property and REIT

tax requirements limit our ability to quickly re-sell properties we

have purchased As result we may be unable to sell our prop

erties for an extended period of time without incurring loss

which would adversely affect our results of operations liquidity

and financial condition

We may not be abLe to renew our Leases or re-Lease our

properties

Upon the maturity of leases at our properties we may not be

able to renew the leases or re-let all or portion of that prop

erty or the terms of renewal or re-letting including the cost

of concessions to tenants may be less favorable to us than the

current lease terms If we are unable to renew existing leases or

re-let promptly all or substantial portion of the space located

in our properties or if the rental rates upon renewal or re-letting

are significantly lower than the current rates our funds from

operations and cash available for distribution to stockholders

will be adversely affected due to the resulting reduction in rental

receipts and increase in property operating costs

Current economic weakness could adversely impact our ability

or the terms under which we are able to renew leases as they

mature or re-let vacant space

Operating expenses of our properties couLd reduce our cash

fLow and funds avaiLabLe for future dividends

For certain of our owned properties we are responsible for

operating costs of the property In these instances our lease

requires the tenant to reimburse us for all or portion of these

costs either in the form of an expense reimbursement or

increased rent Our reimbursement may be limited to fixed

amount or specified percentage annually To the extent

operating costs exceed our reimbursement our returns and net

cash flows from the property and hence our overall operating

results and cash flows could be materially adversely affected
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We have greater exposure to operating costs when we invest

in owned properties Leased to the United States Government

Our teases with the United States Government are typicat Govern

ment Services Administration or GSA type teases These leases

do not provide that the United States Government is wholly

responsibte for operating costs of the property but inctude an

operating cost component within the rent we receive that

increases annuatty by an agreed upon percentage based upon the

Consumer Price Index or CPI Thus we have greater exposure to

operating costs on our properties teased to the United States

Government because if the operating costs of the property

increase faster than the CPI we wilt bear those excess costs

We are subject to risks associated with the deveLopment of

properties

We have begun and expect to continue to make new invest

ments through our construction to acquisition program where

we fund all or substantially all of the construction costs for

build-to-suit project through joint venture with the developer

during the construction period and then acquire the developers

interest in the joint venture upon completion of the project We

entered into our first joint venture under this program during

the third quarter 2010 which contemplates the construction of

warehouse/distribution building in Louisville Kentucky with

construction budget of $8.4 million We are subject to certain

risks associated with the devetopment of this or any other prop

erty we intend to devetop including the following

Completion of the project in timely and workmanlike man

ner will be dependent upon the efforts of various parties

outside of our control such as our devetoper partner and the

general contractor and any subcontractors Construction could

be delayed if these parties fail to perform their obligations

or for variety of other reasons outside of our control which

could subject us to tosses for failure to timety detiver the

completed project to the tenant or result in termination of

the underlying tease

Unanticipated environmentat conditions at the property coutd

also delay completion of the project or force us to abandon

the project if we determine that remediation of the condi

tions woutd be too expensive

Construction costs may exceed originat estimates which could

adversely impact our expected return from the investment

Our investments in properties subject to an estate for years

or ground Lease are subject to various unique risks

Our ownership interest in certain of our owned properties

includes an estate for years in or ground tease of the land

along with fee title to the improvements on the tand An estate

for years and ground tease are more limited forms of owner

ship than fee interest as they generally mean that another

unrelated party has present or future interest in the tand Our

estate for years and ground lease investments are subject to

variety of risks which coutd materially adversety impact the value

of our investment such as

the existence of the estate for years or ground lease and the

interest of third party in the property coutd reduce the

vatue of our investment or make it more difficult or more

expensive to sell or obtain financing for our investment and

untess we have purchased the tand we will lose any remain

ing investment in these properties when the estate for years

and/or ground tease expires

An uninsured Loss or Loss that exceeds the insurance poLicy

Limits on our owned properties couLd subject us to Lost capi

taL or revenue on those properties

Our comprehensive loss insurance policies may inctude substan

tiat deductibles and certain exctusions For exampte our earth

quake insurance coverage for properties we own in California witt

typicatty inctude customary deductibte of 5Io of our insurable

vatue If we are subject to an uninsured toss or toss that is

subject to substantiat deductibte we coutd lose part of our

capital invested in and anticipated revenue from the property

which coutd harm our operating resutts and financial condition

and our ability to pay dividends

NoncompLiance with environmentaL Laws couLd adverseLy

affect our financiaL condition and operating resuLts

The reat properties we own are subject to various federat state

and tocat environmentat taws Under these taws courts and

government agencies have the authority to require the current

owner of contaminated property to ctean up the property even

if the owner did not know of and was not responsibte for the

contamination For example tiabitity can be imposed upon us

based on activities of one of our tenants or prior owner

Prior to acquisition of property we obtain Phase envi

ronmentat reports and in some cases Phase II environmental

report However these reports may not reveal att environmentat

conditions at property and we may incur materiat environmentat

tiabitities of which we are unaware The costs incurred to ctean up

contaminated property to defend against ctaim or to comply

with environmental taws could be materiat and could adversety

affect our financiat condition tiquidity and operating resutts

Our reaL estate investments are subject to risks particuLar to

reaL property

As an owner of reat property inctuding any reat property we

may acquire upon toan foreclosure we are subject to various

additional risks not otherwise discussed in these risk factors

and generally incident to the ownership of the reat estate These

risks may inctude those tisted betow

civit unrest acts of God inctuding earthquakes floods and

other naturat disasters which may resutt in uninsured tosses

32 CAPLEASE 2010 ANNEAL REPORT



RISK FACTORS

and acts of war or terrorism including the consequences

of the terrorist attacks such as those that occurred on

September 11 2001

adverse changes in nationat and tocat economic and market

conditions

the costs of comptying or fines or damages as resuft of non

compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act

changes in governmenta laws and regutations fiscal policies

and zoning ordinances and the rebted costs of compliance

with laws and regutations fiscal policies and ordinances

the ongoing need for capitat improvements particutarty in

cAder structures and

other circumstances beyond our controL

ShouW any of these events occur our financia condition liquid

ity
and operating results could be adversey affected

New ruLes reLating to the accounting for Leases couLd ad

verseLy affect our business

The Financial Accounting Standards Board and Internationat Ac

counting Standards Board have proposed accounting rules that

may take effect in 2012 or 2013 and would require companies

to capitalize all leases on their balance sheets by recognizing

the tenants rights and obligations If the proposa is adopted

in its current form our financial statements could be materi

ally impacted We wouftl be required to account for leases with

tenants on baance sheet with offsetting asset and liability

accounts for the expected future cash flows from the leases The

timing of recognition of income but not the amount from the

lease would also change with generally greater income expected

in the earlier years and tower amounts in the later years of the

Wase Further because this accounting change would remove

many of the differences in the way companies account for owned

property versus leased property it couW cause companies to

favor owning as opposed to leasing properties If the proposal is

adopted in its current form it coutd atso cause companies that

tease properties to prefer shorter Wase terms in an effort to

reduce the tease liability required to be recorded on the batance

sheet The proposat couW ako make tease renewat options tess

attractive as under certain circumstances the rutes would re

quire tenant to assume that renewat right wouW be exercised

and accrue liability retating to the tonger tease term

RISKS RELATED TO DEBT ASSETS

We invest in CMBS securities incLuding subordinate securi

ties which entaiL significant risks

We invest in commerciat mortgage-backed securities or CMBS

CMBS securities entitte the hotder to receive payments that

depend primarity on the cash flow from specified poot of com

merciat mortgage toans Our CMBS investments indude ctasses of

securities backed by pook of first mortgage toans on net tease

properties with most of the undertying loan collatera origi

nated by us in the mid to rate 1990s as well as investments in

generic CMBS poots or securities backed by toans on variety of

muttifamily and commercial properties such as regionat matts

other retait space office buitdings industriat or warehouse prop

erties hotets apartment buitdings mobite home parks nursing

homes and senior living centers Generally we have invested in

subordinate dasses of the securitization pooL or securities that

are in near first toss position in the event of Wsses on the

assets within the poot Consequentty in the event of toss on

one or more commercial rear estate toans contained in securiti

zation we couW Wse all or substantiat portion of our invest

ment in the retated security

As resutt of the genera weakening of economic conditions

and reated deterioration of commerciat reat estate fundamen

taft we have seen an increase in defaufts and delinquencies in

the undertying commerciat reat estate Wans in the CMBS poots

in which we have invested particutarty on our investments in

generic CMBS poots White we believe we have been reasonabte

in estimating the impact of these events on our portfolio the

actuat impact on our investments remains highty uncertain

Further continued weakness in generat economic and commer

ciat rear estate conditions coutd further adversety impact the

toans in the poots in which we have invested and hence our

investment in the transactions Our cash flows from the CMBS

securities coutd decline or temporarity or permanentty cease

and we couW Wse att or substantia portion of our investment

in our CMBS securities

Worsening economic conditions couLd cause the recovery

vaLue of the coLLateraL underLying our securities investments

to decLine which couLd cause materiaL reduction of our

cash fLows or materiaL Losses to our company

Our securities investments are collateralized by mortgage Wan

assets secured by properties located throughout the United

States If one or more of the undertying toans in the securitiza

tion defauft receipt of the scheduted payments on our securities

may become dependent upon the recovery value of the retated

cottaterat In such an event any economic downturn such as cur

rent economic conditions or other adverse events or conditions

in any Wcation where we have significant credit concentra

tion couW cause the recovery vaWe of the rdated cottatera to

decline and therefore coutd resutt in materiat reduction of

our cash flows or materiat tosses to our company
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The following table summarizes the geographic concentra

tions of 50/0 or more within our securities portfolio as of

December 31 2010

STATE

in thousands

ALLOCATED COST BASIS PERCENTAGE

Colorado $36316 22.4/s

New York 28664 17.7/o

CaLifornia 25650 15.8/o

We have Limited recourse in the event of defauLt on any of

our mortgage Loans

Our mortgage loan investments are non-recourse obligations of

the property owner and in the event of default we are generally

dependent entirely on the nan collateral to recover our invest

ment Our nan collateral consists primarily of mortgage on

the underlying property and an assignment of the tenants lease

In the event of default we may not be able to recover the

premises promptly and the proceeds we receive upon sale of the

property may be adversely affected by risks generally incident to

interests in real property including changes in general or local

economic conditions and/or specific industry segments declines

in real estate values increases in interest rates real estate

tax rates and other operating expenses including energy costs

changes in governmental rules regulations and fiscal policies

including environmental legislation acts of God and other

factors which are beyond our or our borrowers control Cur

rent economic conditions may reduce the proceeds we are able

to receive or our ability to renew existing leases or re-let the

property in the event we foreclose on the collateral As discussed

above bankruptcy laws will limit our remedies with respect to

the tenants lease There can be no assurance that our remedies

with respect to the loan collateral will provide us with recovery

adequate to recover our investment

We may experience Losses on our mortgage Loans

Our portfolio includes mortgage loans on properties subject to

net lease The typical net lease requires the borrower or ten

ant to maintain casualty insurance on the underlying property

These insurance policies may include substantial deductibles and

certain exclusions If the underlying property is subject to ca

sualty loss that is uninsured or subject to substantial deduct

ible rent payments on the related lease may cease our loan may

default and we could lose some or all of our investment

Our coLLateraL rights under our corporate credit notes are

Limited

Our collateral rights on our corporate credit notes are more

limited than the collateral rights we have under our long-term

mortgage Loans Our corporate credit notes represent one of two

notes comprising single first mortgage loan on net lease

property Both notes are secured by the same first mortgage and

assignment of the tenants lease and rents and the note holders

have agreed amongst themselves that the corporate credit note

holder will have junior claim on the real estate mnrtgage and

senior claim on the rents in the event of tenant bankruptcy

and lease rejection So our collateral rights with respect to the

real estate mortgage will be junior to the holder of the related

real estate note Further while we will have senior claim

on the lease assignment in tenant bankruptcy as discussed

above our claim for damages will be unsecured and limited to an

amount defined under the Bankruptcy Code the greater of one

years rent or 15/s but not more than three years of rent over

the remaining lease term plus rent already due but unpaid

Therefore there can be no assurance that our remedies with

respect to the loan collateral will provide us with recovery

adequate to recover our investment

We may make mezzanine investments and they wiLL LikeLy

have greater risk of Loss than mortgage Loans

We have made and may continue to make in the future mezza

nine and other generally subordinate investments These invest

ments generally involve higher degree of risk than our first

mortgage loans While we expect most of these investments will

be secured we expect our right to payment and secdrity interest

will be subordinated to one or more senior lenders Therefore we

may be limited in our rights to collect scheduled payments on

these investments and to recover any of our investment through

foreclosure of collateral

Our mezzanine investments may also include an interest

only payment schedule with the principal amount remaining

outstanding and at risk until the maturity of the obligation In

this case borrowers ability to repay its obligation may be

dependent upon liquidity event such as sale of the related

property or other collateral or refinancing of the debt

We may be subject to Losses from the investments we make

in franchise Loans

As of December 31 2010 our sole mezzanine investment was

$1.4 million of remaining principal under loan to third-party

borrower to support the borrowers capital contributions to

joint venture that makes franchise loans to franchisees of YUM

Brands Inc restaurant concepts such as Taco Bell Kentucky

Fried Chicken and Pizza Hut Our interest in the cash flows from

the related franchise loans is subordinate to the interest of se

nior lender and that lender has the right to redirect portion of

the borrowers cash flows to reduce its debt We cannot provide

any assurance that the borrower will have sufficient cash flows

to pay our debt service or that our collateral will be adequate

to allow us to recover our investment As result we could lose

some or all of our investment in this loan
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We may be required to repurchase assets that we have soLd

or to indemnify hoLders of the notes issued in our term

financings

If any of the assets we originate or acquire and sell or pledge to

obtain long-term financing do not compty with representations

and warranties that we make about certain characteristics of the

assets the borrowers and the undertying properties we may be

required to repurchase those assets repay the retated borrow

ings or replace the assets with substitute assets In addition

in the case of assets that we have sotd we may be required to

indemnify persons for losses or expenses incurred as result of

breach of representation or warranty Repurchased assets may

require significant attocation of working capitat to carry on

our books and our ability to borrow against such assets may be

limited Any significant repurchases repayments or indemnifica

tion payments coutd materially and adversely affect our financial

condition liquidity and operating results

Maintenance of our Investment Company Act of 1940 exemp

tion imposes Limits on our operations

We intend to continue to conduct our business in manner that

allows us to avoid registration as an investment company under

the Investment Company Act of 1940 the 1940 Act Under

Section 3c5C of the 1q40 Act entities that are primarily

engaged in the business of purchasing or otherwise acquiring

mortgages and other hens on and interests in real estate are

not treated as investment companies The position of the SEC

staff generally requires us to maintain at teast 55/e of our assets

directly in qualifying real estate interests in order for us to rety

on this exemption the 55/s Requirement To constitute

qualifying real estate interest under this 55/s Requirement

reat estate interest must meet various criteria Mortgage securi

ties that do not represent all of the certificates issued with

respect to an underlying pool of mortgages may be treated as

securities separate from the underlying mortgage toans and

thus may not qualify for purposes of the 55Io Requirement Our

ownership of these mortgage securities therefore is limited by

the provisions of the 1940 Act and SEC staff interpretations We

cannot assure you that efforts to pursue our investment strategy

witt not be adversety affected by operation of the 1940 Act

RISKS RELATED TO BORROWINGS

Our use of debt financing couLd have materiaL adverse

effect on our financiaL condition

We are subject to the risks normally associated with debt financ

ing inctuding the risk that our cash flows witt be insufficient

to meet required principat and interest payments on the debt

and the risk that we wilt be unabte to refinance our existing

indebtedness or that the terms of such refinancing witt not be

as favorable as the terms of our existing indebtedness As of

December 31 2010 the scheduled principat payments on our

tong-term debt over the next five years and thereafter were as

fottows

in thousands notional amounts where appropriate otherwise rarrying amounts

EXPECTED MATURITY DATES

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 THEREAFTER

Mortgages on real estate investments $35929 $131486 $69445 $67678 $266235 $357656

Collateralized debt obligations 10266 10949 26065 19221 187109

Credit agreement 8743 1976 88626

Secured term loan 13737 15380 13602 12349 13405 33407

Convertibte senior notes 596 34522

Other Long-term debt 30930

Inctuded in the above amounts are battoon payments on our debt

instruments Most of our debt provides for battoon payments

that are payable at maturity Our ability to make these balloon

payments witi depend upon our ability to refinance the retated

debt raise additional equity capital and/or sett assets or any

retated cottaterat Our ability to accomplish these goats witt be

affected by various factors existing at the relevant time such as

capitat and credit market conditions the state of the national and

regionat economies tocat real estate conditions avaitabte interest

rate levels the lease terms for and equity in and value of any re

lated cotlaterat our financial condition and the operating history

of the collateral if any We cannot provide any assurance that we

witt be abte to repay our debt or refinance it on terms as favorable

as the existing indebtedness or at alt If we are unable to obtain

sufficient financing to fund the scheduled battoon payments or to

selt the retated cottateral at price that generates sufficient pro

ceeds to make the scheduted batloon payments we could lose att

or substantiat portion of our investment in the asset financed

Our convertible senior notes and other tong-term debt are

unsecured and therefore it may be more difficult to generate

sufficient proceeds to repay these obligations in the future

These obligations are atso recourse meaning that our tender

witt have generat recourse against our assets if we fait to make

required payments on the debt
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If our debt cannot be repaid refinanced or extended we may

not be abte to make distributions to stockholders at expected

tevets or at atL Further if prevailing interest rates or other fac

tors at the time of refinancing resuft in higher interest rates or

other restrictive financiat covenants upon the refinancing then

such refinancing would adversety affect our cash flows and funds

avaitabte for operation and distribution

Our credit agreement with WeLLs Fargo Bank is secured

recourse obLigation and exposes us to interest rate and

margin caLL risks

We have financed certain of our investments pursuant to credit

agreement we have entered into with Wells Fargo Bank This

borrowing agreement exposes us to variety of risks inctuding

the following

It is priced at floating rates based on one-month LIBOR or

the London Interbank Offered Rater Therefore increases in

the one-month LIBOR rate will cause our borrowing costs to

increase and our net income to decrease

The agreement is recourse to all of our other assets In the

event we are unabte to satisfy our payment obligations under

the agreement from the assets securing our borrowings we

will remain obligated to satisfy these obligations out of other

assets of our company

We are subject to margin call risk under the credit agreement

documents Wells Fargo has the right in its sote discretion

to revatue our collateraL provided that Wells Fargo may not

reduce the vatue of any of our cottaterat other than CMBS

securities due to generat credit spread or interest rate fluc

tuations In the event Welts Fargo determines that the vatue

of our cottaterat has decreased it has the right to make

margin call margin call woutd require us to make up any

cottaterat shortfall with cash or additional portfotio assets

We may not have sufficient cash or portfolio assets to do

so failure to meet margin call coutd cause us to defauft

under the agreement and otherwise have materiat adverse

effect on our financiat condition and operating results

We have borrowed the futt amount permitted under the toan

documents based on the lenders current valuation of our

collateraL In order to borrow any additional amounts under

the credit agreement we will be required to post additional

collateraL Further Wells Fargo has the right to reject any

asset that we seek to finance pursuant to the credit

agreement

Leveraging our portfoLio is an important component of our

strategy and subjects us to increased risk of Loss

key component of our strategy is to borrow against or lever

age our assets to allow us to invest in greater number of

assets and enhance our asset returns However teverage also

subjects us to increased risk of toss We are highty teveraged

compared to certain of our competitors The use of teverage may

resutt in increased tosses to us in the fottowing ways

We rety on the cash flows from the assets financed to fund

our debt service requirements Therefore in the event of

tenant defautt on its rent payments our tosses are expected

to increase as we witt need to fund our debt service require

ments from other sources

To the extent we have financed our assets under our variabte

rate credit agreement with Welts Fargo Bank our debt service

requirements witt increase as short-term interest rates rise

In addition if short-term interest rates rise in excess of the

yietds on our assets financed we witt be subject to tosses

Our tenders witt have first priority ctaim on the collaterat we

ptedge and the right to forectose on the cottaterat Therefore

if we defautt on our debt service obligations we woutd be at

risk of losing the related cottaterat

Our credit agreement with Welts Fargo Bank is
futty recourse

tending arrangement Therefore if we defautt on this agree

ment our tenders witt have generat recourse to our companys

assets rather than limited recourse to just the assets financed

We may not be abLe to impLement our Long-term financing

strategy

Part of our business strategy is to secure tong-term financing of

our assets to enabte us to invest in greater number of assets

and enhance our asset returns Our ability to imptement our

tong-term financing strategy is subject to the fottowing risks

We may not be able to achieve our desired teverage tevet due

to decreases in the market vatue of our assets increases in

interest rates and other factors

We are subject to conditions in the mortgage COO and other

tong-term financing markets which are beyond our controL

inctuding the liquidity of these markets and maintenance of

attractive credit spreads

In the event of an adverse change in the financiat condition

of our underlying tenant it may not be possibte or it may be

uneconomicat for us to obtain tong-term financing for the

subject asset

Our inability to imptement our tong-term financing strategy may

cause us to experience tower teveraged returns on our assets

than woutd otherwise be the case and could have materiat

adverse effect on our operating resutts

Certain of our assets are cross-coLLateraLized and certain of

our indebtedness is cross-defauLted

As of Oecember 31 2010 our three NesttØ properties att serve as

cottaterat for singte mortgage note on the three properties In

addition our COO is secured by interests in 67 of our invest

ments our secured term lean is secured by interests in 28 of

our investments and our credit agreement with Wetts Fargo is
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secured by interests in 23 of our investments To the extent that

any of our investments are cross-collateralized the lender will

have recourse to any and all of the assets that secure the debt in

the event that we default under the nan documents Therefore

cross-cotlateralizing our investments generally exposes us to

increased risk of loss under the related financing arrangement

In addition our credit agreement with Welts Fargo Bank and

our convertible senior notes contain cross-default provisions

meaning that default under one obligation could resuft in the

other lender accelerating the maturity of our obligations to them

We may not be abLe to finance our investments on Long-

term basis on attractive terms which may require us to seek

more costLy financing for our investments or to Liquidate

assets

As part of our investment strategy we may acquire new assets

and finance them on floating rate recourse borrowing agree

ment with the expectation that we wilt obtain tong-term fixed

rate non-recourse financing in the future During the period we

finance these assets on recourse facility we bear the risk of

being unable to finance the assets on non-recourse basis at at

tractive prices or in timely matter or at alt If it is not possible

or economical for us to finance such assets on non-rernurse

basis we may be unable to pay down our recourse borrowings

or be required to liquidate the assets at loss in order to do so

If we sell an asset at less than what the lender has advanced to

us against that asset we witt remain liable to the lender for the

shortfall because of the recourse nature of the facility

The use of CDO financings with coverage tests may have

negative impact on our operating resuLts and cash fLows

We have used CDO financings in the past and may continue to

do so in the future We retain the subordinate classes of bonds

in our CDO financings The terms of the CDO securities issued

by us include cash flow coverage tests that are used primarily

to determine whether and to what extent principal and interest

proceeds on the underlying assets may be used to pay principal

of and interest on the subordinate classes of bonds in the CDO

These cash flow coverage tests consist of an overcottateratization

test and an interest coverage test The overcottateratization test

ensures that minimum amount of collateral principal amount

secures the related notes The interest coverage test ensures that

cash coupon payments generated from the CDO collateral will be

adequate to pay fees and interest due on the related notes

In the event the cash flow coverage tests are not satisfied

interest and principal that would otherwise be payable on the

subordinate classes may be re-directed to pay principal on the

senior bond classes Therefore failure to satisfy these coverage

tests could adversely affect our operating results and cash flows

and hence our liquidity

Hedging transactions may not effectiveLy protect us against

anticipated risks and may subject us to certain other risks

and costs

We may enter into hedging transactions to manage our exposure

to interest rate fluctuations prior to the time we obtain tong-

term fixed rate financing for our assets Our hedging strategy

exposes us to certain risks among them the following

No hedging activity can completely insulate us from the risks

associated with changes in interest rates and therefore our

hedging strategy may not have the desired beneficial impact

on our results of operations or financial condition

There witt be various market risks which we do not intend or

expect to hedge against including changes in credit spreads

Hedging transactions are entered into at the discretion of our

management team and they may conclude that it is not in our

companys best interest to hedge the interest rate risks with

respect to certain expected long-term financings particutarty

during periods of market dislocation We are not currently

carrying an open interest rate hedge to manage our exposure

to interest rate fluctuations for assets for which we may

obtain long-term financing in the future Our decision to do

so leaves us exposed to increases in long-term interest rates

fnr thnse assets and therefnre may
make it mnre difficult nr

more costly to obtain tong-term financing

Our hedging strategy may serve to reduce the returns which

we could possibly achieve if we did not utilize the hedge

Because we intend to structure our hedging transactions in

manner that does not jeopardize our status as REIT we are

limited in the type of hedging transactions that we may use

Hedging costs increase as the period covered by the hedge

increases and during periods of rising and volatile interest

rates We may increase our hedging activity and thus increase

our hedging costs during periods when interest rates are

volatile or rising

Our hedging transactions may not perform as expected

including during periods of market dislocation

If we do not obtain long-term financing in the time frame we

designate at the time of the hedge transaction our hedging

strategy may not have the desired beneficial impact on our

resufts of operations or financial condition

We may faiL to quaLify for hedge accounting treatment

We record derivative and hedge transactions in accordance with

United States generally accepted accounting principles Under

these standards we may fail to qualify for hedge accounting

treatment for number of reasons including if we use instru

ments that do not meet the appticabte accounting definition

of derivative such as short sates we fail to satisfy appti

cabte accounting hedge documentation requirements or we fail

initial or subsequent quarterly hedge effectiveness assessment

requirements If we fail to qualify for hedge accounting treat-
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ment our operating results may suffer because any losses on the

derivatives we enter into would be charged to our Statement of

Operations without any offset from the change in fair value of

the related hedged transaction

RISKS RELATED TO LEASE ENHANCEMENTS

Our Lease enhancement mechanisms may faiL

We have developed certain lease enhancement mechanisms de

signed to reduce the risks inherent in our net lease investments

These lease enhancement mechanisms include

casualty and condemnation insurance policies that protect

us from any tosses due to any rights the tenant may have to

terminate the underlying net lease or abate rent as result of

casualty or condemnation event and

borrower reserve funds that protect us from any losses due

to any rights the tenant may have to terminate the underly

ing net lease or abate rent as result of the failure of the

property owner to maintain and repair the property or related

common areas

These lease enhancement mechanisms may not protect us

against all losses For example our casualty and condemnation

policies typically contain exclusions relating to war insurrection

rebellion revolution or civil riot and radioactive matter earth

quakes in earthquake zones and takings other than by con

demnation by reason of danger to public health public safety or

the environment In addition amounts in the borrower reserve

fund may be insufficient to cover the cost of maintenance or

repairs and the borrower may fail to perform such maintenance

or repairs at its own expense The failure of our lease enhance

ment mechanisms may result in the loss of all or part of our

capital invested in and profits anticipated from our investment

and could adversely affect our financial condition liquidity and

operating results

We depend on our insurance carriers to provide and honor

Lease enhancements

There are limited number of insurance carriers from whom we

can obtain specialized lease enhancement insurance policies

and therefore our ability to replace one or more of our current

carriers is restricted Any of the fnllnwing develnpments with

respect to our carriers may have material adverse effect on our

financial condition liquidity and operating results

deterioration in our relationship with one or more of the

carriers

bankruptcy or other material adverse financial development

with respect to one or more of the carriers and

dispute as to policy coverage with one or more of the

carriers

We may determine not to appLy Lease enhancement mecha

nisms that wouLd otherwise protect us

In determining whether lease enhancement mechanism is

appropriate we examine the costs and benefits of the lease

enhancement mechanism in light of our analysis of the risks as

sociated with the underlying net lease As result of this analy

sis we may decline to apply lease enhancement mechanism

that would otherwise protect us Actual losses may exceed our

estimates and therefore our decision not to apply appropriate

lease enhancement mechanisms may result in the loss of all or

part of our capital invested in and profits anticipated from our

investment and could adversely affect our financial condition

liquidity and operating results

RISKS RELATED TO BUSINESS STRATEGY AND POLICIES

We face significant competition that couLd harm our business

We are subject to significant competition in each of our busi

ness segments We compete with specialty finance companies

insurance companies investment banks savings and loan as

sociations banks mortgage bankers mutual funds institutional

investors pension funds hedge funds other lenders governmen

tal bodies and individuals and other entities including REITs We

may face new competitors and due to our focus on single tenant

properties located throughout the United States and because

many of our competitors are locally and/or regionally focused

we may not encounter the same competitors in each region of

the United States Many of our competitors have greater finan

cial and other resources and may have other advantages over our

company Our competitors may be willing to accept lower returns

on their investments may have access to lower cost capital and

may succeed in buying the assets that we target for acquisition

We may incur costs on unsuccessful acquisitions that we will

not be able to recover Our failure to compete successfully could

have material adverse effect on our financial condition liquid

ity
and operating results

Our network of investment saLe brokers and independent

mortgage brokers may seLL investment opportunities to our

competitors

An important source of our investments is our network of invest

ment sale hrnkers and independent mortgage brnkers These

brokers are not contractually obligated to do business with us

Further our competitors also have relationships with many of

these brokers and actively compete with us in our efforts to

obtain investments from these brokers As result we may lose

potential transactions to our competitors causing our invest

ment pace to fail to meet market expectations which could have

material adverse effect on the market price of our stock
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Joint venture investments wiLL expose us to certain risks

We may from time to time enter into joint venture transactions

for portions of our exiting or future portfolio assets which may

include certain of our real properties and/or some or all of our

loan and securities investments Investing in this manner sub

jects us to certain risks among them the following

We will not exercise sole decision-making authority regarding

the joint ventures business and assets and thus we may not

be able to take actions that we betieve are in our companys

best interests

We may be required to accept liability for obligations of the

joint venture such as recourse carve-outs on mortgage loans

beyond our economic interest

Our returns on joint venture assets may be adversely affected

if the assets are not held for the long-term or period of

about ten years

Our abiLity to grow our business wiLL be Limited by our abiLity

to attract debt or equity financing and we may have dif

ficuLty accessing capitaL on attractive terms

We expect to fund future investments primarily from debt or

equity capitaL Therefore our ability to grow is dependent upon

the availability of debt or equity capital from public or institu

tional investors Further additional debt and/or equity capital

may not be available to us at an acceptable cost The capital

markets also have been and in the future may be adversely

affected by various other events or conditions beyond our

control such as the United States military involvement in the

Middle East and elsewhere the terrorist attacks on September

11 2001 the ongoing War on Terrorism by the United States and

the bankruptcy of major companies such as Lehman Brother

Holdings Inc and Enron Corp Events such as an escalation in

the War on Terrorism new terrorist attacks or additional

bankruptcies in the future as well as other events beyond our

control could adversely affect the availability and cost of capital

for our business As REIT we will also be dependent upon the

availability and cost of capital in the REIT markets specifically

which can be impacted by various factors such as interest rate

levels the strength of real estate markets and investors appetite

for REIT investments We cannot assure you that we will be

successful in attracting sufficient debt or equity financing to

fund future investments or at an acceptable cost

Future offerings of debt and equity may not be avaiLabLe to

us or may adverseLy affect the market price of our common

stock

We expect to continue to increase our capital resources by

making additional offerings of equity and debt securities in the

future which would include classes of preferred stock common

stock and senior or subordinated notes All debt securities and

other borrowings as well as all classes of preferred stock will

be senior to our common stock in liquidation of our company

Additional equity offerings could dilute our stockholders equity

reduce the market price of shares of our common stock or be of

preferred stock having distribution preference that may limit

our ability to make distributions on our common stock Market

conditions could cause us to seek sources of potentially less

attractive capital Our ability to estimate the amount timing

or nature of additional offerings is limited as these factors will

depend upon market conditions and other factors

We may faiL to manage our anticipated growth

As of December 31 2010 our company had ig employees As

our asset base and/or portfolio management duties continue to

grow we may experience significant strain on our manage

ment operational financial and other resources Our ability to

manage growth effectively will require us to continue to improve

our operational and financial systems potentially expand our

employee base and train and manage our employees and develop

additional management expertise Failure to manage growth

effectively could have material adverse effect on our financial

condition liquidity and operating results

The concentration of our companys common stock could have

an adverse impact on the vaLue of your investment

As of December 31 2010 approximately 41.4/s of our com

mon stock was owned by seven different institutional investors

based on SEC filings made by these investors This concentra

tion of ownership could have an adverse impact on the value of

your investment including as result of the following

Trading volume in our stock may be limited which will reduce

the liquidity of your investment

The sale of significant number of our shares in the open

market by significant stockholder or otherwise could cause

our stock price to decline

Although none of these investors on its own controls ma

jority of our common stock these owners could determine to

act together and given their significant concentration may be

able to take actions that are not in your best interest

Our board of directors may change our investment and opera

tionaL poLicies without stockhoLder consent

Our board of directors determines our investment and operation

al policies and may amend or revise these policies at any time

including our policies with respect to our REIT status invest

ment objectives acquisitions growth operations indebtedness

capitalization and distributions or approve transactions that

deviate from these policies without vote of or notice to our

stockholders Investment and operational policy changes could

adversely affect the market price of stock in our company and

our ability to make distributions to our stockholders
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The federaL income tax Laws governing REITs are compLex and

our faiLure to quaLify as REIT under the federaL tax Laws wILL

resuLt in adverse tax consequences

We intend to continue to operate in manner that will allow

US to qualify as REIT under the federal income tax laws The

REIT qualification requirements are extremely complex however

and interpretations of the federal income tax laws governing

qualification as REIT are limited Accordingly we cannot be

certain that we will be successful in qualifying as REIT At any

time new laws interpretations or court decisions may change

the federal tax laws or the federal income tax consequences of

our qualification as REIT

If we fail to qualify as REIT in any taxable year we will be

subject to federal income tax on our taxable income Our taxable

income would be determined without deducting any distribu

tions to our stockholders We might need to borrow money or

sell assets in order to pay any such tax If we cease to qualify as

REIT we no longer would be required to distribute most of our

taxable income to our stockholders Unless the federal income

tax laws excused our failure to qualify as REIT we could not

re-elect REIT status until the fifth calendar year after the year in

which we failed to qualify as REIT

Our ownership Limitations may restrict or prevent you from

engaging in certain transfers of our stock

In order to maintain our REIT qualification no more than 50k

in value of our outstanding stock may be owned directly or

indirectly by five or fewer individuals as defined in the federal

income tax laws to include various kinds of entities during

the last half of any taxable year Individuals for this purpose

include natural persons private foundations some employee

benefit plans and trusts and some charitable trusts In order to

preserve our REIT qualification our charter generally prohibits

any person from directly or indirectly owning more than ggo/0 in

value or in number of shares whichever is more restrictive of

any class or series of the outstanding shares of our capital stock

If anyone transfers shares in way that would violate our

ownership limits or prevent us from continuing to qualify as

REIT under the federal income tax laws we will consider the

transfer to be null and void from the outset and the intended

transferee of those shares will be deemed never to have owned

the shares or those shares instead will be transferred to trust

for the benefit of charitable beneficiary and will be either re

deemed by us or sold to person whose ownership of the shares

will not violate our ownership limits Anyone who acquires

shares in violation of our ownership limits or the other restric

tions on transfer in our charter bears the risk of suffering

financial loss when the shares are redeemed or sold if the market

price of our stock falls between the date of purchase and the

date of redemption or sale

Provisions of our charter and MaryLand Law may Limit the

abiLity of third party to acquire controL of our company

Our charter contains restrictions on stock ownership and

transfer

As described above our charter contains stock ownership limits

These limits may delay defer or prevent transaction or

change of control of our company that might involve premium

price for stock of our company or otherwise be in the best inter

est of our stockholders

Our board of directors may issue additional stock without

stockholder approval

Our charter authorizes our board of directors to amend the

charter to increase or decrease the aggregate number of shares

of stock we have authority to issue without any action by the

stockholders Issuances of additional shares of stock may delay

defer or prevent transaction or change of control of our

company that might involve premium price for stock of our

company or otherwise be in the best interest of our stockholders

Other provisions of our charter and bylaws may delay or pre

vent transaction or change of control

Our charter and bylaws also contain other provision that may

delay defer or prevent transaction or change of control of

our company that might involve premium price for our common

stock or otherwise be in the best interest of our stockholders

For example our charter and bylaws provide that two-thirds

vote of stockholders is required to remove director vacancies

on our board may only be filled by the remaining directors or if

no directors remain by the stockholders the number of direc

tors may be fixed only by the directors our bylaws may only be

amended by our directors and majority of shares is required to

call special stockholders meeting

Increased market interest rates may reduce the vaLue of our

stock

We believe that investors consider the dividend distribution rate

on shares of REIT stock expressed as percentage of the market

price of the shares relative to market interest rates as an im

portant factor in deciding whether to buy or sell shares of REIT

stock If market interest rates go up prospective purchasers of

REIT stock may expect higher dividend distribution rate Higher

interest rates would also
likely increase our borrowing costs

and might decrease cash available for distribution Thus higher

market interest rates could cause the market price of stock in our

company to decline
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The market price of our stock may vary substantiaLLy

Various factors can affect the market price of our stock induding

the following

actual or anticipated variations in our quarterly results of

operations

the extent of investor interest in our company rear estate

generally or commercial real estate specifically

the reputation of REITs generally and the attractiveness of

their equity securities in comparison to other equity securi

ties including securities issued by other real estate compa

nies and fixed income securities

changes in expectations of future financial performance or

changes in estimates of securities analysts

ftuctuations in stock market prices and volumes and

announcements by us or our competitors of acquisitions

investments or strategic alliances

We depend on our key personneL

We depend on the efforts and expertise of our senior manage

ment team There is no guarantee that any member of our senior

management team will remain employed with our company If

any member of our senior management team were to die become

disabed or otherwise leave our employ we may not be able to

replace him with person of equal skill ability and industry

expertise

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Legal Proceedings

From time to time we are involved in legal proceedings in the

ordinary course of business We do not believe that any matter

we are currently involved in wilt have material adverse effect

on our business results of operations or financia condition

However periodic settlements and/or professional or other

fees and expenses related to any matter coukl have an adverse

impact on our results of operations in the quartery or annual

period in which they are recognized

Item and Reserved

Item Properties

Our corporate offices are located at 1065 Avenue of the

Americas New York New York 10018 Our tease at this property

expires in September 2013

Our owned real properties are described above under

BusinessOur Portfolio Owned Properties
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Part II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity

Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases

of Equity Securities

Information and HoLders of Record

Our common stock has been listed for trading on the New York

Stock Exchange 2NYSE under the symbol LSE since our initial

pubhc offering on March 19 2004 On February 15 2011 the

reported dosing sale price per share of common stock on the

NYSE was $5.69 and there were 769 hoders of record of our com

mon stock The tabe below sets forth the quarterly high and ow

sales prices of our common stock on the NYSE for the periods

indicated

FISCAL YEAR LOW HIGH

2009

First Quarter $1.46 $2.43

Second Quarter 1.92 3.51

Third Quarter 2.63 4.45

Fourth Quarter 3.08 5.07

2010

First Quarter $3.99 $5.72

Second Quarter 4.44 6.30

Third Quarter 4.42 5.81

Fourth Quarter 5.45 6.32

Dividends

The table below sets forth the cash dividends paid on our com

mon stock for the periods indicated

QUARTER ENDED DIVIDEND PAYMENT DATE DIVIDEND PER SHARE

2009

March 31 2Q09 April 15 2009 $0.05

June 30 2009 July 15 2009 0.05

September 30 2Q09 October 15 2009 0.05

Oecember 31 2009 January 15 2010 0.06

2010

March 31 2010 April 15 2010 $0.06

June 30 2010 JuLy 15 2010 0.06

September 30 2010 October 15 2010 0.06

Oecember 31 2010 January 18 2011 0.065

We generally intend to distribute each year all or substantially

all of our REIT taxable income which does not necessarily equal

net income as calculated in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles to our stockholders so as to comply

with the REIT provisions of the Internal Revenue Code and to

avoid federal income tax and the nondeductible excise tax Our

dividend policy is determined from time to time by our board of

directors in their sole discretion and will depend on factors such

as our cash available for distribution our funds from operations

our maintenance of REIT status market conditions and such

other factors as our board of directors deems relevant

Tax Characteristics of 2010 Dividends

The following table summarizes the taxable nature of our

common dividends during 2010

TotaL common dividend per share tax basis
_____________

Capital gain

Ordinary income

Return of capital

0.245

0.00%

0.00/o

100 .000/o

100 00/o
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Stock Price Performance Graph

The graph bdow compares the cumubtive tota stockhc1der

return of our common stock with that of the Standard Poors

500 Composite Stock Price Index and the Standard Poors 500

REIT Index from December 31 2005 through December 31 2010

The graph assumes that you invested $100 at the dose of market

on December 31 2005 in our common stock and each of the in

dexes with dividends reinvested The comparisons in this graph

are provided in accordance with Securities and Exchange Com

mission disdosure requirements and are not intended to forecast

or be indicative of the future performance of our common stock

BASE PERIOD

COMPANY/INDEX 12/31/2005 12/31/2006 12/31/2007 12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010

CapLease Inc 100 118.11 92.90 20.61 55.90 77.73

SP 500 Index 100 115.19 122.16 76.96 91.33 111.99

i4 SP 500 REIT Index 100 141.75 117.51 69.11 86.40 113.81

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE FIVE-YEAR TOTAL RETURN
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following selected historica financial information for the five years ended December 31 2010 is derived from our audited consoli

dated financial statements The data should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements related notes and other

financial information included in this Form 10-K

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31

in thousands except per share amounts 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Statement of Operations Data

Revenues

Rental revenue $125662 $134496 $135026 $122604 $76127

Interest income from leans and securities 27620 30667 35040 35368 32446

Property expense recoveries 12159 11473 11457 11215 8828

Gains on sale of mortgage loans and securities 2923

Other revenue 974 1532 764 583 1903

Total revenues 166415 178168 182287 169770 122227

Expenses

Interest expense

Property expenses

Loss gain on derivatives

Loss on investments

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses stock based compensation

Depreciation and amortization expense on real property

Loan processing expenses

Total expenses

84850 90270 98217 96419 62350

24715 20442 19526

19496

18556

203

15511

413

7949 26885 3663 427 907

10659 10894 11669 10660 9769

2541 2118 1978 1621 2621

48409 51410 53132 46866 24782

268 309 314 306 268

179391 202328 207995 174652 115795

293 9829 1713 1363Loss gain on extinguishment of debt

Provision for income taxes 201

Loss income from continuing operations 13269 14532 23995 3519 6432

Income from discontinued operations 77 514 707 981 834

Net loss income before non-controlling interest in consolidated

subsidiaries 13192 14018 23288 2538 7266

Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiaries 52 51 124 33 17

Net loss income 13140 13967 23164 2505 7249

Dividends allocable to preferred shares 5618 2844 2844 2844 2844

Net Loss income aLLocable to common stockholders $18758 $16811 $26008 $5349 $4405

Earnings per share

Net loss income per common share basic and diluted $0.33 $0.34 $0.57 $D.13 $0.14

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding basic 56189 49297 45526 40739 31939

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding diluted 56189 49297 45526 40739 31941

Dividends declared per common share $0.25 $0.21 $0.60 $0.80 $0.80

Dividends declared per preferred share $2.03 $2.03 $2.03 $2.03 $2.03

Other data

Cash flows from operating activities $47689 $56614 $64359 $30945 $27443

Cash flows from investing activities 25051 70342 9547 309062 361854

Cash flows from financing activities 28442 96849 99514 307739 319520
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in thousands

AS OF DECEMBER 31

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

BaLance sheet data

Real estate investments net $1398399 $1408819 $1510413 $1563570 $1115001

Loans held for investment 210040 221211 285779 269293 273170

Commercial mortgage-backed secunties 145965 153056 161842 198187 183066

Cash and cash equivalents 32742 38546 8439 34047 4425

Structuring fees receivable 326 3410 1863 2576 3253

Total assets 1870271 1904415 2045525 2158067 1644300

Mortgages on real estate investments 928429 943811 972324 983770 794773

Cobateralized debt obligations 254210 263310 268265 268227 268190

Repurchase agreement obligations 232869 195485

Credit agreement 105345 126262 189262

Secured term loan 101880 114070 123719 129521

Convertible senior notes 33926 49452 66239 68017

Other long term debt 30930 30930 30930 30930 30930

Total stockholders equity 350472 313210 323578 356440 307656
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The followinq discussion should be reod in conjunction with the

consolidotedfinonciol stotements ond the notes to those finonciol

stotements included elsewhere in this filing Except where other

wise indicoted or where the context is cleor the portfolio stotistics

in Item of this Form 10-K represent or ore colculoted from our

cony volue for finonciol reporting purposes before depreciotion ond

omortizotion With respect to our loon portfolio we have odjusted

our carry volue to exclude $0.5 mi/lion generol loss reserve

OVERVIEW

We are REIT that invests primarily in singte tenant commerciat

reat estate assets subject to tong-term teases to high credit

quality tenants We focus on properties that are subject to net

tease or tease that requires the tenant to pay att or substan

tiatty att property operating expenses such as utitities reat es

tate taxes insurance and routine maintenance We atso continue

to be opportunistic and have made and expect to continue to

make investments in singte tenant properties where the owner

has exposure to property operating expenses when we deter

mine we can sufficientty underwrite that exposure and isotate

predictabte cash flow

Our primary business tine is and we expect witt continue to be

the ownership of singte tenant properties We also have portfo

tio of first mortgage toans and other debt investments on single

tenant properties and may continue to make such debt invest

ments from time to time on an opportunistic basis in the future

As resutt of tease non-renewats or tease terminations we

have ctassified three properties as mutti-tenant properties as

each is no tonger leased primarily by single tenant As of

December 31 2010 we had an approximately $2.0 bitlion

investment portfolio inctuding $1.6 bittion of owned properties

and $0.4 billion of toans and other debt investments

Our primary business objective is to generate stabte

tong-term and attractive returns based on the spread between

the yields generated by our assets and the cost of financing our

portfotio We betieve that our focus on assets teased to high

credit quatity tenants subject to tong-term teases wilt provide us

with stabte and predictabte stream of cash flows that witt

support our business and the payment of dividends to our

stockhotders for the foreseeable future

The principat sources of our revenues are rentat income on

our owned reat properties and interest income from our debt

investments toans and securities In order to grow our

revenues we wilt be primarity dependent on our abitity to add

new assets to our portfotio We are atso intensety focused on

growing revenues by re-tetting vacant space within our portfolio

As of December 31 2010 the occupancy rate in our owned

property portfotio was 95.0% with virtually alt of the vacant

space being in our office property in Johnston Rhode Island and

our two office buitdings in Omaha Nebraska We cannot provide

any assurance as to when and on what terms we will be abte to

re-let properties that are or may become vacant in our portfotio

The principat sources of our expenses are interest expense on

our assets financed depreciation expense on our reat properties

generat and administrative expenses and property expenses net

of expense recoveries With the exception of our credit agree

ment with Wetts Fargo Bank att of our debt is currentty fixed

rate and therefore the interest expense we pay is not subject

to fluctuation based on changes in market interest rates Our

credit agreement with Wetts Fargo Bank is floating rate debt and

therefore the interest expense we pay is expected to increase if

interest rates in particutar the one-month LIBOR rate increases

The average remaining tease term on our owned properties is

approximatety seven years atthough we have some teases that

are scheduled to mature over the next few years We are subject

to the risk that our tenants do not renew their teases at maturity

and that we are unable to promptty re-let the property or the

terms of renewat or re-letting may be tess favorabte to us than

the current tease terms any of which could resutt in reduction

in our revenues and an increase in our property operating costs

We rety on teverage to allow us to invest in greater number

of assets and enhance our asset returns Our overatt portfolio

leverage expressed as percentage of our total debt to our total

assets before depreciation and amortization on owned proper

ties and with other minor adjustments was approximately 72/s

as of December 31 2010 Our leverage ratios by segment as of

December 31 2010 were approximately 66/o for the owned prop

erties segment and 85/s for the debt investments segment See

Liquidity and Capital ResourcesLeverage below for informa

tion about our use of leverage ratios and how we compute them

We expect our leverage level to continue to decrease over

time as result of one or more of the following factors sched

uled principal amortization on our debt voluntary debt reduction

including potentially through selected asset sales and lower or

no leverage on new asset acquisitions During 2010 the focus

of our portfolio activity was on strengthening our balance sheet

through debt repayment and/or repurchase and on resuming

portfolio growth as market conditions permitted during the

secnnd half of the year

Our portfolio financing strategy is to finance our assets with

long-term fixed rate debt as soon as practicable after we invest

generally on secured non-recourse basis Through non-recourse

debt we seek to limit the overall company exposure in the event

we default on the debt to the amount we have invested in the

asset or assets financed We also had $170.2 million of recourse

debt obligations outstanding as of December 31 2010 includ

ing $105.3 million outstanding under our credit agreement with

Wells Fargo Bank which is scheduled to mature in July 2013

46 CAPLEASE 2011 ANNUAL REPORT



DISCUSSION ANALYSIS

We will be required to repay or refinance our debt obligations

at maturity which we expect afthough cannot provide any as

surance that we will be able to do To the extent we are unable

to refinance debt obligations we may rely on combination of

cash on hand cash from asset sales and cash from future debt

or equity capital raises to fund the liquidity needed to repay the

obligations Our ability to refinance debt sell assets and/or raise

capital on favorable terms will be highly dependent upon prevail

ing market conditions

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The performance of our existing portfolio and our ability to

add new assets will continue to be impacted by market condi

tions Commercial real estate market conditions are improving

although various signs of weakness still persist For example

delinquency rates on commercial real estate loans remains at

historic highs which has impacted the amount and terms of

credit available for new transactions Further overall transaction

volumes remain lower and interest rates remain at historic lows

which has driven significant competition for new investment

opportunities We cannot provide any assurance as to when and

at what yields and other terms we will be able to add new assets

to our portfolio

In addition while rents and property values have been

recovering in some markets weakness and uncertainty persists

particularly in those markets hardest hit by the recent down

turn We have series of leases maturing over the next several

years and commercial real estate conditions in the relevant

markets at lease maturity will have significant impact on our

ability to retain tenants or re-let vacant properties promptly and

on favorable terms as leases mature

We also have series of non-recourse mortgages on our

owned properties maturing over the next several years and lend

ing for commercial real estate transactions while improving

remains uneven and muted which could impact our ability to

sell properties and refinance maturing debt on favorable terms or

at all

We cannot make any assurance that capital markets will be

favorable to us at any time which could impact our ability to

raise capital to support our business including to add new as

sets to our portfolio and support additional investments in our

existing assets

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Our discussion and analysis of financial condition and results

of operations is based upon our consolidated financial state

ments which have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States or GAAP The

preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP

requires the use of judgments estimates and assumptions that

coubi affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities the

disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses Actual results could differ

from these estimates The following is summary of our account

ing policies that are most affected by judgments estimates and

assumptions The summary should be read in conjunction with

the more complete discussion of our accounting policies included

in Note to the consolidated financial statements in this Annual

Report on Form 10-K

Impairment on Owned Real Properties

We are required under GAAP to review our owned properties for

impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indi

cate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable

The evaluation includes estimating and reviewing anticipated

future undiscounted cash flows to be derived from the asset

If such cash flows are less than the assets carrying value an

impairment charge is recognized to earnings to the extent by

which the assets carrying value exceeds the estimated fair value

Estimating future cash flows is highly subjective and includes

an evaluation of factors such as the anticipated cash flows from

the property which may include rent from current leases in place

and projected future leases estimated capital expenditures and

an estimate of proceeds to be realized upon sale of the property

Our estimates could differ materially from actual results We did

not record any impairment losses on our owned properties during

2010 We recorded impairment losses on our owned properties of

$16.0 million in 200g including $11 million on the write-

down to estimated fair value of property in Johnston Rhode

Island that is now vacant and $4.1 million on the sale of one

property during 200w and second property sold during 2010

and $0.4 million in 2008

Impairment of Loan Investments

We are required under GAAP to periodically evaluate each of our

loan investments for possible impairment In accordance with

applicable accounting guidance our impairment analysis includes

both general reserve component on performing loans and

an asset-specific component on loans where we have deemed

it probable that we will not be able to collect all amounts due

according to the contractual terms Significant judgment is

required in the analysis of each component including under the

general reserve component making estimates of the likelihood

of default and lease rejection given the credit characteristics of

the tenant and estimates of stressed collateral values and po
tential bankruptcy claim recoveries and under the asset-specific

component evaluating factors such as the status of the loans

i.e current or expected payment or other defaults the credit

quality of the underlying tenants the present value of expected

future cash flows on the loans the fair market value of our
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collateraL and the amount and status of any senior debt These

estimates are highy subjective and coutd differ materially from

actua results As of December 31 2010 we had generat lean

leSs reserve of $0.5 million established in 2008 and an asset-

specific lean less reserve retated to mezzanine lean investment

of $0.4 million established in 2009

Purchase Accounting for Acquisition of Real Estate

We allocate the purchase price of renta reat estate acquired to

the following based on fair valees

acquired tangibte assets consisting of tand building and

improvements and

identified intangible assets and liabilities consisting of

above-market and belew-market teases in-ptace teases and

tenant retationships

In estimating the fair valee of the tangibte and intangibte assets

acquired we consider information obtained about each property

as result of our due diligence activities and other market data

and utilize various vatuation methods such as estimated cash

flow projections utilizing appropriate discount and capitaliza

tion rates estimates of reptacement costs and avaitabte market

information The fair valee of the tangibte assets of an acquired

property considers the valee of the property as if it were vacant

the dark valee

Above-market and betow-market lease vatues for acquired

properties are recorded based on the present vatue of the differ

ences between the contractuat amounts to be paid pursu

ant to each io-ptace tease and ii managements estimate of

fair market tease rates for each corresponding in-ptace tease

Fair market lease rates are measured over period equa to the

remaining term of the tease for above-market teases and the

initiat term pus the term of any betow-market rate renewat op

tions for belew-market teases In computing present vatue we

consider the costs which woutd need to be invested to achieve

the fair market tease rates We use discount rate which reflects

the risks associated with the teases acquired The capitalized

above-market tease valees are amortized as reduction of base

rentat revenue over the remaining term of the respective teases

and the capitalized belew-market lease valees are amortized as

an increase to base rentat revenue over the remaining initia

terms ptus the terms of any betow-market renewat optinns of the

respective teases

Other intangibte assets acquired inclede in-ptace leases and

tenant retationships which are vatued based on managements

evatuation of the specific characteristics of each tenants tease

and our overatt retationship with the respective tenant Fac

tors considered by management in its anaysis of in-ptace tease

vatues inctude an estimate of the dark vatue of the property car

rying costs during the hypotheticat expected time it woutd take

management to find tenant to lease the space for the existing

tease term lease-up period considering current market con

ditions and costs to execute similar teases Management esti

mates carrying costs inctuding such factors as reat estate taxes

insurance and other operating expenses during the expected

tease-up period considering current market conditions and costs

to execute simitar leases In estimating costs to execute simitar

teases management considers teasing commissions and other

retated expenses Characteristics considered by management in

vatuing tenant retationships inctude the nature and extent of our

existing business retationships with the tenant growth prospects

for devetoping new business with the tenant the tenants credit

quality and expectations of tease renewak The valee of in-plece

teases is amortized to expense over the remaining initiat terms

of the respective leases The vatue of tenant retationship intan

gibtes is amortized to expense over the anticipated life of the

retationships Through December 31 2010 we have assigned no

vatue to tenant reletionships on any of our acquisitions

Commerdal Mortgage-Backed Securities

llnder appticable accounting guidance we estimate the fair vatue

on our investments in securities quarterty Management evatu

ates variety of inputs and then estimates fair vatue based on

those inputs The primary inputs evatuated by management are

broker quotations index pricing market yieftls and credit spreads

on securities with simitar credit ratings and duration cottaterat

valees and liquidity of the security Our estimates of fair vatue

are subject to significant variability based on market conditions

inctuding interest rates and credit spreads We are then required

under GAAP to assess whether any unrealized tosses on securities

betow our carry vatue reflect decline in vatue which is other-

than-temporary If an other-than-temporarity impaired security

is intended to be sole or required to be sotd prior to the recovery

of its carrying amount the full amount of the impairment toss is

charged to earnings Otherwise tosses on the security must be

separated into two categories the portion which is considered

credit less which is charged to earnings and the portion due to

other factors which is charged to other comprehensive income

toss component of batance sheet equity Significant judg

ment is required in this anaysis Current credit market condi

tions have made these judgments even more chattenging In de

termining whether decline in valee is other-than-temporary we

consider whether the decline is due to factors such as changes in

interest rates or credit spreads indicator of temporary decline

or credit rating downgrades on the securities or credit defautts

on the undedying collaterat assets indicator of an other-than

temporary decline In estimating other-than-temporary impair

ment tosses management considers variety of factors inctud

ing the financiat condition and near-term prospects of the

credit inctuding credit rating of the security and the undeilying

tenant and an estimate of the likelihood and expected timing

of any default whether we expect to hole the investment
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for period of time Sufficient to allow for anticipated recovery

in fair value the length of time and the extent to which the

fair value has been below cost current market conditions

expected cash flows from the undedying collateral and an

estimate of underying collateral vafties and subordination

levels within the securitization pooL These estimates are highly

subjective and couftl differ materially from actual results We

recorded other-than-temporary impairment losses on our CMBS

securities of $7.9 million in 2010 $0.1 million in 2009 $1.0

milUon in 2008

Stock Bosed Compensotion

Pursuant to our 2004 stock incentive plan we have made and

expect to continue to make awards of common stock to our

employees with vesting subject to attainment of performance

criteria Under appUcable accounting guidance we are required

TENANT LOCATION

Cooper Tire Rubber Company

500 Bartrain Parkway Franklin IN

to estimate the probabiUty of vesting of these shares quarterly

and recognize expense generally equal to the fair market value

of the shares awarded on the grant date for any shares deemed

probable to vest over the period the employee is required to

perform services to receive the shares We base our estimates of

probability on an assessment of our actual results against the

relevant performance criteria These estimates may change over

time as our actual results against the criteria are re-assessed

Changes in these estimates could have material impact on the

expense we recognize

PROPERTY ACQUISITIONS

During the quarter ended December 31 2010 we completed the

following real estate acquisition

MONTH ACOUIREO

December

PURCHASE PRICE LEASE EXPIRES NET RENTABLE SQUARE FEET

$32.5 million May 2021 807042
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BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We conduct our business through two operating segments

operating real estate including our investments in owned

real properties and

debt investments including our loan investments as well as

our investments in securities

Segment data for the year ended December 31 2010 are as follows

amounts in thousands

CORPORATE UNALLOCATED OPERATING REAL ESTATE DEBT INVESTMENTS TOTAL

Total revenues $856 $138438 $27121 $166415

Total expenses 19799 133647 25945 179391

Loss on extinguishment of debt 293 293

Income loss from Continuing operations 19237 4791 1177 13269

Total assets 48213 1463362 358696 1870271

Segment data for the year ended December 31 200g are as follows

CORPORATE UNALLOCATED

amounts in thousands

OPERATING REAL ESTATE DEBT INVESTMENTS TOTAL

Total revenues $492 $147408 $30268 $178168

Total expenses 21210 150516 30602 202328

Gain on extinguishment of debt 9829 9829

Provision for income tax 201 201

Loss from continuing operations 11090 3109 333 14532

Total assets 54618 1471987 377810 1904415

Segment data for the year ended December 31 2008 are as follows

CORPORATE UNALLOCATED

amounts in thousands

OPERATING REAL ESTATE DEBT INVESTMENTS TOTAL

Total revenues $777 $147172 $34338 $182287

Total expenses 23457 144776 39762 207995

Gain on extinguishment of debt 1713 1713

Income loss from Continuing operations 20967 2396 5424 23995

Total assets 26620 1566405 452500 2045525
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COMPARISON OF YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2010

TO THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2009

The following discussion compares our operating results for the

year ended December 31 2010 to the comparabte period in 200g

Revenue

Total revenue decreased $11.8 million or 7/s to $166.4 million

The decrease was primarily attributabte to decreases in rental

revenue and interest income

Rental revenue and property expense recoveries in the aggre

gate decreased $8.1 million or 6% to $137.8 million primarily

reflecting the vacancy of our property in Johnston Rhode Istand

during the fourth quarter of 2009

Interest income decreased $3.0 mittion or 10/o to $27.6

million during 2010 primarily as result of tower loan balances

and tower interest rates on cash batances

Other revenue decreased $0.6 million or 36/s to $1.0 million

from $1.5 million primarily reflecting the tease termination pay

ment we received on the Omaha Nebraska properties during 200g

Expenses

Total expenses decreased $22.9 million or 11/s to $179.4

million The decrease in expenses was primarily attributable to

higher investment tosses in the 2009 period and tower interest

expense and depreciation expense in the 2010 period offset in

part by higher property expenses in the 2010 period

Interest expense decreased $5.4 million or 6/s to $84.8

million from $90.3 mittion The decrease in the 2010 period

resufted primarily from $2.1 million of tower interest expense

on floating rate borrowings resutting from tower borrowings

in the 2010 period $1.5 mittion of tower interest expense on

convertibte debt due to repurchases of the convertibte debt

$0.8 mittion of tower interest expense on property mortgages

$0.7 million of tower interest expense on the secured term toan

and $0.4 million of tower interest expense on cottateratized debt

obtigations due to repurchases in 200g The Companys average

balance outstanding and effective financing rate under its float

ing rate borrowings was approximately $107 mittion at 3.66/o

during the 2010 period average one-month LIBOR of O.27/

compared with approximatety $157 mittion at 3.71/c during the

2009 period average one-month LIBOR of O35% Market inter

est rates remained tow during 2010 but we cannot predict the

tevet of market interest rates in the future

Property expense increased $4.3 mittion or 21/s to $24.7 mit

lion primarity reflecting carrying costs associated with the John

ston Rhode Istand property of approximately $1.7 mittion and

expenses on the Omaha Nebraska properties where the teases are

now gross and were previousty net during 2009 when the prop

erty was teased to singte tenant The net amount of property

expenses we incurred in 2010 net of expense recoveries from our

tenants was $12.6 million compared to $9.0 mittion in 2009

We had tosses on investments of $7.9 mittion during 2010

compared to tosses on investments of $26.9 mittion in 2009 The

2010 tosses reflect other-than-temporary impairment tosses pri

marity on one security investment see Note The 2009 tosses

reflect $11.9 million impairment toss on the Johnston Rhode

Istand property that is now vacant see Note an aggregate of

$14.4 mittion of impairment tosses on four assets that were sotd

during 2009 two toans one property and one security and one

asset that was sold during 2010 Cott property see Note

$444 of impairment tosses on mezzanine toan investment see

Note and $133 of impairment tosses on security investment

see Note

General and administrative expense in 2010 was targety

unchanged from 2009 as it decreased $0.2 mittion or 2/s to

$10.7 mittion from $10.9 million

General and administrative expense-stock based compensation

increased $0.4 mittion or 20/o to $2.5 mittion The increase was

primarity resutt of higher share prices year over year which pri

marity impacted the vatue of prior year performance share grants

that do not price untit the etigibte vesting year As of December

31 2010 $3.2 mittion of unvested shares fair vatue at the grant

dates is expected to be charged to our Consolidated Statement

of Operations ratabty over the remaining vesting period through

March 2014 As of December 31 2010 the grant date fair vatue

for awards of 31350 restricted shares made in 2007 78690

restricted shares made in 2008 314145 restricted shares made

in 2009 and 192900 restricted shares made in 2010 has not

yet been determined because the grant date as defined under

retevant accounting guidance had not yet occurred

Depreciation and amortization expense on reat property

decreased $3.0 mittion or 6/a to $48.4 mittion primarity due

to the vatue of our in ptace tease on the property in Johnston

Rhode Istand being futty amortized at the scheduted tease matu

rity in Juty 2009

Gain/loss on extinguishment of debt

We had $9.8 mittion of non-cash gains on extinguishment of

debt in 2009 compared to toss of $0.3 in the 2010 pe

riod These amounts retated primarity to repurchases of our

convertible senior notes see Note

Net loss

Net toss decreased $0.8 mittion to $13.1 mittion in 2010

from $14.O mittion in 2009 as tower toss on investments

interest expense and depreciation and amortization expense

on reat property during 2010 was substantiatty offset by tower

revenues and gain on debt extinguishment and higher property

expenses during 2010 Net toss attocabte to common stockhotd

ers was $18.8 mittion in 2010 reflecting dividends to preferred

stockhotders of $5.6 mittion
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COMPARISON OF YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2009

TO THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 2008

The following discussion compares our operating resutts for the

year ended December 31 2009 to the comparabte period in 2008

Revenue

Totat revenue decreased $4.1 million or 2/o to $178.2 mittion

The decrease was primarily attributable to decrease in interest

income

Rental revenue and property expense recoveries in the ag

gregate was basically unchanged as it decreased $0.5 million

or less than 10/0 to $146.0 million While we had one tenant

vacancy during 2009 Johnston Rhode Istand property the

impact on revenue during 2009 was modest as the tenant heLl

over for three months beyond the scheduted tease maturity in

Juty and paid higher rent during the hotdover period

Interest income decreased $4.4 million or 12/s to $30.7

million during 2009 primarily as resutt of tower nan batances

and lower interest rates on cash balances

Other revenue increased $0.8 million or 100/o to $1.5

million primarity reflecting the tease termination payment we

received on the Omaha Nebraska properties during 2009

Expenses

Totat expenses decreased $5.7 million or 3/o to $202.3 million

The decrease in expenses was primarity attributabte to tower

interest expense and various other expenses in the 2009 period

offset in part by higher investment losses in the 2009 period

Interest expense decreased $7.9 miltion or 8/o to $90.3

mittion from $98.2 mittion The decrease in the 2009 period

resulled primarity from $5.0 miltion of tower interest expense on

floating rate borrowings resulting from tower borrowings and

interest rates in the 2009 period $1.6 million of lower interest

expense on convertibte debt due to repurchases of the convert

ible debt $0.8 mittion of tower interest expense on property

mortgages and $0.5 million of lower interest expense on the

secured term toan The Companys average batance outstanding

and effective financing rate under its floating rate borrowings

was approximatety $157 million at 3.71/s during the 2009 period

average one-month LIBOR of O.35/ compared with approxi

mately $202 mithon at 5.44/s during the 2008 period average

one-month LIBOR of 2.91/o Market interest rates were low

during 2009 but we cannot predict the tevet of market interest

rates in the future

Depreciation and amortization expense on real property

decreased $1.7 million or 3/s to $51.4 mittion primarity due

to the value of our in ptace lease on the property in Johnston

Rhode Istand being fully amortized at the scheduled lease matu

rity
in Juty 2009

Property expense increased $0.9 mittion or 5/o to $20.4

mitlion reflecting increased expenses inctuding costs paid to one

of our tenants and reat estate taxes The net amount of property

expenses we incurred in 2009 net of expense recoveries was

$9.0 million compared to $8.1 mittion in 2008

We had no loss on derivatives in 2009 compared to $19.5

mittion toss on derivatives in the 2008 period The loss in the

2008 period retates primarity to $18.1 mitlion of losses we reat

ized in November 2008 when we ctosed our only open hedge

position As of December 31 2007 and during most of 2008

we had singte open interest rate swap intended to manage

our exposure to interest rate movements for ptanned tong-

term financing of assets financed on our credit agreement with

Wachovia Bank During November 2008 we ctosed the swap as

resutt of unprecedented credit market dislocations and associat

ed declines in the 10-Year Treasury and other benchmark market

interest rates The full amount of the realized loss on ctosing

the swap of $15.2 million along with $2.9 million of related

tosses previousty deferred in Other Comprehensive Income/Loss

on our Consotidated Batance Sheet were charged directty to our

Consolidated Statement of Operations as the swap position no

tonger represented an effective cash flow hedge under appticable

accounting guidance We currently have no open hedge positions

and did not have any open hedge positions during 2009 or 2010

Loss on investments was $26.9 mitlion in 2009 Compared

to $3.7 million in 2008 The 2009 tosses reflect $11.9 million

impairment toss on the Johnston Rhode Istand property that is

now vacant see Note an aggregate of $14.4 mittion of im

pairment tosses on four assets that were sotd during 2009 two

toans one property and one security and one asset that was

sotd during 2010 Cott property see Note $444 of impair

ment tosses on mezzanine loan investment see Note and

$133 of impairment tosses on security investment see Note

Losses in 2008 reflect $1.1 mittion write-off of the invest

ment in Matàpeake in the fourth quarter $1.0 mittion impair

ment toss on securities investments in the fourth quarter see

Note $0.7 mittion write-off of development loan in the

third quarter $0.5 mittion generat reserve for toan losses in the

fourth quarter see Note and $0.4 mittion impairment loss

on the Cott property in the third quarter see Note

Generat and administrative expense decreased $0.8 mithon or

7/s from $11.7 miltion to $10.9 mitlion primarity reflecting high

er tegat expenses in the 2008 period retated to our tegat actions

involving the reat property we own in Johnston Rhode Istand

Generat and administrative expense-stock based compensa

tion increased $0.1 mittion The increase was primarity resutt of

an additionat year of stock awards and an increase in estimated

vesting percentage in the 2009 period offset in part by reduced

amortization expense related to the vesting of prior year awards

As of December 31 2009 $3.3 million of unvested shares fair

value at the grant dates is expected to be charged to our

Consotidated Statement of Operations ratabty over the remaining
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vesting period through March 2014 As of December 31 200g

the grant date fair vatue for awards of 23557 restricted shares

made in 2006 62700 restricted shares made in 2007 118035

restricted shares made in 2008 and 418859 restricted shares

made in 200g had not yet been determined because the grant

date as defined under retevant accounting guidance had not yet

occurred

Gain on extinguishment of debt

We had $9.8 million of non-cash gains on extinguishment of

debt in 2009 compared to $1.7 million in the 2008 period

Gains in the 2009 period reLated to the repurchase of our con

vertibte senior notes and COO debt see Note Gains in the

2008 period retated to the repurchase of our convertibte senior

notes in December 2008 see Note

Net loss

Net toss decreased to $14.0 million in 2009 from $23.2

million in 2008 primariLy as resuft of tower interest expense

in the 2009 period Net toss attocabte to common stockhotders

was $16.8 million in 2009 reflecting dividends to preferred

stockhotders of $2.8 million

FUNDS FROM OPERATIONS

Funds from operations or FF0 is non-GAAP financiaL measure

We beLieve FF0 is usefuL additionaL measure of our performance

because it facilitates an understanding of our operating perfor

mance after adjustment for reat estate depreciation non-cash

expense which assumes that the vaLue of reaL estate assets di

minishes predictabty over time In addition we betieve that FF0

provides usefuL information to the investment community about

our financiat performance as compared to other REITs since FF0

is generally recognized as an industry standard for measuring the

operating performance of an equity REIT FF0 does not represent

cash generated from operating activities in accordance with

GAAP and is not indicative of cash avaiLabte to fund cash needs

FF0 shouLd not be considered as an atternative to net income or

earnings per share determined in accordance with GAAP as an in

dicator of our operating performance or as an afternative to cash

flow as measure of hquidity Since att companies and anatysts

do not catcutate FF0 in simitar fashion our catcutation of FF0

may not be comparabte to simitarty titted measures reported by

other companies

We catcutate FF0 in accordance with standards estabtished

by the Nationat Association of Reat Estate Investment Trusts

NAREIT which defines FF0 as net income toss computed in

accordance with GAAP excLuding gains or Losses from sates of

property ptus depreciation and amortization and after adjust

ments for unconsoLidated partnerships and joint ventures

The fottowing tabte reconcites our net income Loss attocabte

to common stockhotders to FF0 for the years ended December

31 2010 December 31 2009 and December 31 2008

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3D

in thousands except per share amounts 2010 2DD9 2008

Net Loss attocabte to common stockhotders $18758 $16811 $26008

Add deduct

Non controLting interest in consoLidated subsidiaries 52 51 124

Depreciation and amortization expense on reat property 48409 51410 53132

Depreciation and amortization expense on discontinued operations 282 889

Funds from operations $29599 $34830 $27889

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding dituted 56189 49291 45526

Weighted average number of OP units outstanding 156 156 230

Weighted average number of common shares and OP units outstanding dituted 56345 49453 45756

Net Loss per common share basic and dituted $0.33 $0.34 $0.57

Funds from operations per share $0.53 $0.70 $0.61
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Short-Term Liquidity

We define our short-term Liquidity as our ability to generate ad

equate amounts of cash to meet day-to-day operating expenses

and materiaL cash commitments over the next 12 months Our

primary sources of short-term Liquidity are avaiLabLe cash and

cash equivaents cash provided by operations and portion of

the cash proceeds from issuances of debt and equity capitaL We

may aLso use revoLving Loan borrowings under our credit agree

ment with WeLLs Fargo Bank to finance LikeLy on short-term

basis portion of our new investment activity As of Decem

ber 31 2010 we had $32.7 miLLion in avaiLabLe cash and cash

equivaLents As of February 11 2011 we had $40.4 miLlion in

avaiLabLe cash and cash equivaLents We beLieve that our sources

of short-term Liquidity will be sufficient to enabLe us to satisfy

our short-term Liquidity requirements-incLuding the payment of

our dividend

As REIT we are required to distribute at east 90/c of our

taxabLe income to our stockhoLders on an annuaL basis and we

intend to distribute aLL or substantiaLLy all of our REIT taxabLe

income in order to compLy with the distribution requirements of

the Code and to avoid federaL income tax and the nondeductibLe

excise tax We decLared totaL cash dividends of $O.245 per share

of common stock during the year ended December 31 2010

incl.uding $0.06 per share in each of the first second and third

quarters and $0.065 per share in the fourth quarter We declared

cash dividend of $0.5078125 per share of 8.125/a Series

cumuLative redeemabLe preferred stock in each of the first

second third and fourth quarters of 2010 Our dividend poLicy

is subject to revision at the discretion of our board of directors

AR distributions wiLL be made at the discretion of our board of

directors and wiLL depend on our cash avaiLabla for distribution

our funds from operations our maintenance of REIT status mar

ket conditions and such other factors as our board of directors

deems reLevant

While we beLieve we wiLL be abLe to satisfy our short-term

liquidity requirements the following are the primary factors that

we beLieve couLd have materia adverse effect on our pLans

payment defauLts on our assets which we expect couLd be

triggered primariLy in the event of the bankruptcy of the

underLying tenant or tenants

unexpected capitaL expenditures on our owned properties

margin caLLs on our WeLLs Fargo Bank credit agreement or

margin calls on any future risk management transactions

Long-Term Liquidity

We define our Long-term Liquidity as our abiLity to generate

adequate amounts of cash to meet cash demands and

commitments beyond the next 12 months incLuding balloon

payments on our debt obligations and capitaL expenditures on

our owned properties Our primary sources of Long-term liquidity

are our cash and cash equivaLents cash provided by operations

cash from lang-term financings on our asset investments and

issuances of debt and equity capitaL We may continue to

seLectiveLy seLL assets to aLLow us to generate additionaL lang-

term liquidity We believe that our various sources of Long-term

liquidity wiLL be sufficient to enabLe us to satisfy our Long-term

liquidity requirements

Our primary Long-term liquidity requirement is repayment of

our debt obligations We intend generally to manage our debt

maturities by refinancing or repaying the reLated debt at matu

rity We expect to utilize combination of cash on hand ii

cash from saLes of assets which may incLude the coRatera for the

debt and iii cash from future debt or equity capitaL raises to

fund any liquidity needed to satisfy these obligations These ac

tions however may not enabla us to generate sufficient liquidity

to satisfy our borrowings and therefore we cannot provide any

assurance we wiLL be abla to refinance or repay our debt obliga

tions as they come due Our ability to refinance debt sell assets

and/or raise capitaL on favorabLe terms will be highLy dependent

upon prevailing market conditions See Item lARisk Factors

Our use of debt financing couftl have materiaL adverse effect on

our financiaL condition in this AnnuaL Report on Form 10-K

We have two recourse debt obligations that are scheduLed

to mature over the next few years Our convertibla senior notes

can be put to us at the option of the note hoLders for repur

chase price of 100/c of the principa amount of the notes in

October 2012 and our credit agreement with WeLLs Fargo Bank is

scheduLed to mature in JuLy 2013 The convertibla senior notes

are unsecured obligations and the credit agreement with WeLLs

Fargo Bank is secured borrowing agreement With respect

to the convertibla notes we have through various repurchase

transactions reduced the principa amount of notes outstanding

to $35.0 million as of December 31 2010 from $75 miLlion at

originaL issuance in October 2007 We may continue to seek to

opportunisticaLLy repurchase this debt over time and then intend

to repay or refinance any remaining obligation at or prior to

maturity With respect to the WeLLs Fargo Bank agreement we

entered into an amendment and restatement of the agreement

in JuLy 2010 which among other things extended the maturity

date untiL Jury 2013

WhiLe we believe we wiLL be successfu in either refinancing

or repaying these obligations at or prior to maturity we cannot

provide any assurance we wiLL be abla to do so If we are unsuc

cessfu in refinancing these obligations we may not have suffi

cient liquidity to repay the debt in full at maturity Our faiLure to

do so is defauLt under the debt and couLd materially adverseLy

affect our financia condition and operating resuLts in variety

of ways For exampLe if we defauLt under the WeLLs Fargo Bank

agreement the bank couftl forecLose on the reLated coLLateraL

causing us to Lose some of our assets WeLLs Fargo Bank and
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the convertible note holders also would have general recourse

against our company if we default in our obligations to them In

addition each of these obligations is cross-defaulted with the

other meaning that default under one obligation could result

in the other lender accelerating the maturity of our obligations

to them

We have various non-recourse mortgage debt obligations that

are scheduled to mature in the future beginning in September

2011 See the schedule of mortgage note maturities included at

Note in our consolidated financial statements included in this

Form 10-K In connection with the maturity of our mortgage

debt obligations we intend to evaluate variety of alternatives

with respect to our investment in the subject property including

refinancing the debt utilizing cash on hand and other sources

of liquidity to repay the mortgage debt and selling the property

If we are unsuccessful with one or more of these alternatives

we could convey the property to the lender to satisfy in full our

obligations under the non-recourse debt

We hold two mortgage note obligations on the Travelers

Corporation property in Hartford Connecticut one scheduled to

mature in September 2011 and the second in October 2011 and

our lease with Travelers Corporation is scheduled to mature in

October 2011 The remaining rent payments from Travelers will

be fully utilized to amortize in full the principal on the note

that matures in September 2011 while the note that matures in

October 2011 does not require current debt service and is sched

uled to accrete in value to $18.9 million due at maturity We

do not expect Travelers to renew its lease at this property Our

willingness to re-lease the property will be dependent to large

degree on our ability to either restructure the existing mortgage

debt or secure new debt If we are unsuccessful in our efforts to

restructure the existing debt or secure new debt we could con

vey the property to the lender to satisfy in full our obligations

under the non-recourse mortgage debt which would trigger an

impairment charge on the property with fully offsetting gain

on extinguishment of debt The above impairment charge and

gain on debt extinguishment if any may not be recorded in the

same financial reporting period

Our mortgage debt obligations are non-recourse and not

cross-defaulted with our other debt obligations and therefore

default of any of our mortgage debt obligations will not threaten

the viability of our company although it could result in us los

ing all or some of our remaining investment in the property

As an owner of commercial real estate we will be required to

make capital expenditures to maintain and upgrade our proper

ties We expect the vast majority of these expenditures will be

made as the leases mature and we renew existing leases or find

new tenants to occupy the property Any estimates we make of

expected capital expenditures are highly subjective and actual

amounts we spend may differ materially and will be impacted

by variety of factors including market conditions which are

beyond our controL We may be required to incur additional debt

sell assets and/or raise capital to generate the liquidity needed

to pay for capital expenditures on our properties and our abil

ity to do so on favorable terms will be highly dependent upon

prevailing market conditions Our ability to satisfy our long-term

liquidity requirements could be materially adversely affected by

capital expenditures we make on our owned properties

Sources of Equity Capital

We have implemented dividend reinvestment and direct stock

purchase plan and an at the market offering program as

defined in Rule 415 of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended

each of which may be utilized by us from time to time to sell

shares of our common stock and increase liquidity During March

2010 we expanded our at the market offering program to en

able us to sell shares of our Series preferred stock and increase

liquidity During December 2010 we expanded our common stock

at the market offering program to include new sales agent

Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith Incorporated We completed

refresh of our shelf registration statement in February 2011

and now have an effective shelf registration statement under

which we can offer an aggregate of $500 million of common

stock preferred stock and/or senior or subordinated debt securi

ties from time to time

In March 2007 we implemented dividend reinvestment and

direct stock purchase plan The plan allows interested stockhold

ers to reinvest all or portion of their cash dividends in shares

of our common stock and to make monthly purchases of our

common stock generally up to maximum of $10000 unless

higher amount is approved by us in our sole discretion Shares

purchased through the plan may be either newly issued by us

which may be sold at discount of up to 5fo off of the average

of the high and low sales prices on the applicable investment

date or ii purchased by the plan administrator in the open

market at our discretion During the year ended December 31

2010 we issued 103 shares of common stock through the plan

at price of $5.85 per share During the year ended December

31 2009 we issued 807661 shares of common stock through

the plan at an average price of $3.60 per share As of December

31 2010 we have reserved an aggregate of 6857740 shares

of common stock for future issuance pursuant to the dividend

reinvestment and direct stock purchase plan We issued small

number of new shares through the plan during December 2010

and January 2011 at 2/s discount off of the market price of

the common stock as determined under the plan We are not

currently issuing new shares through the plan although we

reserve the right to elect to do so in our sole discretion at any

time in the future

We have entered into sales agreement with Brinson Patrick

Securities Corporation that permits us to issue and sell through

Brinson Patrick from time to time shares of our common stock
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and Series preferred stock and Brinson Patrick agrees to use

its best efforts to sell such shares during the term of the agree

ment and on the terms set forth therein Our board of direc

tors initially
authorized the sale of up to 5000000 shares Of

common stock and 1000000 shares of Series preferred stoe

through the program from time to time of which 2306100

shares of common stock and 4900 shares of Series preferred

stock have been sold We are not obligated to sell any shares

pursuant to the agreement and we may start and stop selling

shares pursuant to the program at any time in our sole discre

tion We must pay Brinson Patrick commission of 1.5/a of the

gross sales price per share sold

We have entered into separate sales agreement with Merrill

Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith Incorporated pursuant to which we

may selL from time to time up to 9000000 shares of common

stock through or to Merrill Lynch and Merrill Lynch agrees to

use its commercially reasonable efforts to sea such shares during

the term of the agreement and on the terms set forth therein

We may sell our common stock to Merrill Lynch as principal for

its own account at prices agreed upon at the time of sale We are

not obligated to sell any shares pursuant to the agreement and

we may start and stop selling shares pursuant to the program

at any time in our sole discretion We must pay Merrill Lynch

commission of 2.0I of the gross sates price per share sold

The following table summarizes our shares of common stock

and Series preferred stock through the Brinson Patrick and

Merrill Lynch at the market offering programs during the quar

ter and year ended December 31 2010

DURING THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31 2010

NUMBER AVERAGE C0MpENSAm0N NET

OF SHARES PRICE TO AGENT PROCEEDS

283100 $6.11 $25953 $1704253

$24.95 $1609 $105671

DURING THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31 201D

NUMBER AVERAGE COMPENSATION NET

OF SHARES PRICE TO AGENT PRDCEEDS

2134400 $4.86 $176745 $10202192

4900 $24.96 $1835 $120473

3100 $6.01 $373 $18256

We completed refresh of our shelf registration statement in

February 2011 and now have an effective shelf registration

statement under which we can offer an aggregate of $500 mittion

of common stock preferred stock and/or senior or subordinated

debt securities from time to time including an aggregate of

2693900 shares of common stock and 995100 shares of Series

preferred stock reserved for sale under the Brinson Patrick sates

agreement and an aggregate of 8996900 shares of common

stock reserved for sate under the Merrilt Lynch sates agreement

We intend to continue to raise additional capitat from time to

time to enabte us to continue to implement our strategy Our

abitity to raise capitat is influenced by market conditions and

we cannot assure you that conditions for raising capital witt be

favorabte for us at any time In addition to the stock issuances

through our at the market offering program discussed above

we executed the following transactions off of our shelf registra

tion statement during the year ended December 31 2010

On March 30 2010 we issued 3144654 shares of our

common stock to an institutional investor for price of $4.77

per share or net proceeds of approximately $15 million

On March 31 2010 we issued 1800000 shares of 8.125/a

Series cumulative redeemable preferred stock in public of

fering at price of $23.06 per share resulting in an effective

annual yield of 9.OO0/a We received net proceeds in the transac

tion after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions

and estimated offering expenses of approximately $40.1 million

including $0.9 million of accrued dividends

We have now fully deployed the approximately $65.3 million

of net proceeds from the share issuances we completed in 2010

with $49.4 million used to reduce recourse indebtedness and the

remaining $15.9 million utilized to fund portion of the pur

chase price of the real property we purchased in December 2010

Leverage

We rely on leverage to allow us to invest in greater number

of assets and enhance our asset returns Leverage also exposes

us to variety of risks which are discussed in more detail in

our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K under the heading

Risk Factor In reviewing and analyzing our debt we look at

variety of financial metrics such as our leverage ratios weighted

average and individual interest rates on the debt weighted aver

age and individual maturity dates and scheduled principal amor

tization and balloon balances due at maturity We also evaluate

variety of subjective factors such as present and expected future

market conditions

Leverage ratios are widely used financial measure by the

real estate investment community especially for REITs We mea

sure our leverage ratios by dividing total debt by total assets

as adjusted We measure total assets as adjusted at historical

cost before depreciation and amortization on owned properties

Therefore our leverage ratios do not account for any fluctua

tions in value up or down that may have occurred since we

acquired our owned properties Other companies including other

REITs may compute leverage ratios in different manner and

therefore our leverage ratios may not be comparable to similarly

titled measures reported by other companies

Brinson Patrick common stock

Brinson Patrick Series preferred stock 4300

MerrilL Lynch common stock 3100 $6.01 $373 $18256

Net proceeds obove does not include incidental third party expenses
associoted with the ot-the market programs
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The following table sets forth the computation of our overall portfolio

leverage ratio as of December 31 2010 and December 31 2009

DECEMBER31

dollars
in thousands 2010 2009

Debt

Mortgages on reaL estate investments $928429 $943811

Collateralized debt obligations 254210 263310

Credit agreement 105345 126262

Secured term loan 101880 114070

Convertible senior notes 33926 49452

Other long-term debt 30930 30930

TotaL Debt $1454720 $1527835

Assets

Total assets $1870271 $1904415

Accumulated depreciation and amortization on owned properties 239990 190166

Intangible Liabilities on real estate investments 37405 39591

Prepaid expenses and deposits 2197 1267

Accrued rental income 39506 35317

Debt issuance costs net 5999 7653

Other 720 988

TotaL Assets as adjusted $2024434 $2009765

Leverage TotaL Debt/Total Assets as adjusted 72% 76%

The following table sets forth the computation of our leverage ratios

by segment as of December 31 2010

5ECURED TERM CREDIT

dollars
in thousands MORTGAGE DEBT CDO DEBT LOAM DEBT AGREEMENT DEBT TOTAL DEBT INVE5TMENT LEVERAGE

Owned Properties $928429 $30521 $30498 $95610 $1085058 $1648892 66/o

Debt Investments 223688 71382 9735 304805 356906 85/v

Represents our carry value far financial reporting purposes befare depreciation and amartisatian an owned properties The
carry

value of aur debt investments has been

adjusted to exrlude $500 general lass reserve

We expect our leverage level to continue to decrease over time

as result of one or more of the following factors scheduled

principal amortization on our debt voluntary debt reduction

including potentially through selected asset sales and lower or

no leverage on new asset acquisitions

Our portfolio financing strategy is to finance our assets with

long-term fixed rate debt as soon as practicable after we invest

generally on secured non-recourse basis Through non-recourse

debt we seek to limit the overall company exposure in the event

we default on the debt to the amount we have invested in the

asset or assets financed We seek to finance our assets with

match-funded or substantially match-funded debt mean

ing that we seek to obtain debt whose maturity matches as

closely as possible the maturity of the asset financed Through

December 31 2010 our long-term fixed rate asset financings

have been in the form of traditional third-party non-recourse

first mortgage financings on most of our owned real properties

and two non-recourse term financings including secured term

loan completed in December 2007 and one CDO completed in

March 2005 As of December 31 2010 we have financed on

long-term basis an aggregate of approximately $1.77 billion of

portfolio assets with third-party first mortgage debt of $928.4

million and term financings of $356.1 million

Long-Term Mortgage Financings

We have financed most of our owned properties through tradi

tional first mortgage financings provided through the commercial

mortgage-backed securitization market We also have utilized the

term financings described below to add incremental leverage on

many of our owned properties
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During the quarter ended December 31 2010 we did not

obtain any new mortgage financings AS of December 31 2010

we had $928.4 million of non-recourse first mortgage debt at

weighted average coupon of 5.62/s and weighted average ef

fective financing rate of 5.6/s

Our mortgage financings are all fixed rate financings The

notes typically mature over long-term period of approximately

10 years and debt service is payable monthly The notes are

non-recourse to us subject to limited recourse exceptions and

are secured by mortgage on the property and an assignment

of the undertying tease and rents on the property The notes

are often interest only for aft or portion of the note term and

thus require balloon payment at maturity As described above

we cannot provide any assurance we will be able to refinance or

repay these obligations at maturity and our ability to do so on

favorable terms will be highly dependent upon prevailing market

conditions See Business Environment above and Item 1A
Risk Factors in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

Term Finandngs

We have financed most of our lean and securities investments

as well as select number of our owned properties through the

term financings described below As noted above we have also

utilized term financings to add incremental leverage on our

owned properties financed with mortgage debt

In December 2007 we completed $129.5 million originat

principa balance secured term lean Upon dosing of the financ

ing we pledged approximatey $163.1 million principal amount

of collateral to secure our obligations under the lean As of De

cember 31 2010 we had $101.9 million outstanding under the

secured term lean The interest coupon on the lean is fixed at

5.81% annually until the lean matures in January 2018 Our ef

fective financing rate on the lean is 6.0/c annually inclesive of

hedge and dosing costs The lean is non-recourse to us subject

to limited non-recourse exceptions

We also completed an entirety fixed rate CDO financing in

March 2005 We aggregated approximately $300 million face

amount of assets and then transferred these assets into

wholly-owned securitization vehicle and issued $285 million

face amount of mutti-class notes and $15 million face amount

of preferred equity through the securitization vehicte The as

sets serve as collaterat for our obligations under the notes The

securitization vehicte is special purpose entity or SPE with its

business limited to the issuance of the notes and the preferred

equity the acquisition of the collateral and certain other matters

related thereto The net amount of the debt we initially issued

was $268.1 million inclusive of $0.4 million discount to face

as we retained the three most junior note classes aggregating

face amount of $16.5 million and the full $15 million face

amount of preferred equity As of December 31 2010 we had

$254.2 million outstanding under the CDO

The CDO notes have stated maturity in January 2040 at-

though the actual life of the notes is expected to be substantially

shorter Our weighted average effective financing rate inclusive

of original issue discount and debt issuance and hedge costs on

our CDO is approximately 5.6/s Our CDO debt is non-recourse to

us but is secured by the collateral assets We reduced the debt

outstanding under our CDO by repurchasing $5 million of our

Class CDO notes during the year ended December 31 2009

We have financed certain of our portfolio assets pursuant to

credit agreement we entered into with Wells Fargo Bank in April

2008 We entered into an amendment and restatement of the

credit agreement with Wells Fargo in July 2010 which among

other things

established maximum revolving credit commitment of $140

million

extended the maturity date of the credit agreement to Juty

16 2013 from Aprit 28 2011 and

set the interest rate on our borrowings at one-month LIBOR

plus 275 basis points an increase from one-month LIBOR

plus 250 basis points at June 30 2010

Also in connection with the July 2010 amendment and restate

ment we made $13.4 million principal payment to the tender

and agreed to repay another $10 million of principal in four equal

quarterty installments beginning on October 2010 the first two

installments of which have been paid Our outstanding borrowings

under the agreement were $105.3 million as of December 31 2010

The agreement is floating rate LIBOR based facility Our

borrowings under the agreement are secured by combination of

first mortgage lean investments intercompany mortgage loans

on our owned property investments commercial mortgage-backed

securities and first lien on our ownership interest in the real

property located in Johnston Rhode Island Our obligations under

the credit agteement are also fully recourse to all of our other as

sets and pursuant to the margin call provisions in the agreement

we may be obligated to prepay portion of the debt if Wells

Fargo determines the value of our collateral has declined includ

ing as result of an underlying tenant credit rating downgrade or

other adverse tenant-credit event Wells Fargo may require us to

prepay portion of our borrowings provided that Wells Fargo may

not reduce the value of any of our collateral other than CMBS se

curities due to general credit spread or interest rate fluctuations

As of December 31 2010 we had $3.3 mitlion borrowed against

collateral ctassified as CMBS securities by Wells Fargo

We may utilize the undrawn amount of the tenders revolving

credit commitment to finance assets approved by the tender in

its sole discretion at an advance rate of 60/o of the assets vatue

as determined by the tender We drew $15.6 million under the

credit agreement during December 2010 to fund portion of the

purchase price for the Cooper Tire and Rubber Company asset

discussed under Property Acquisitions above
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We are required to compty with the following financial cov

enants under the credit agreement minimum Liquidity basically

cash and cash equivalents of at teast $12 million minimum

consolidated tangible net worth basically stockhotders equity

before accumulated depreciation and amortization of at teast

$360 million plus 75/o of the aggregate net proceeds from equity

offerings or capitat contributions after July 16 2010 maximum

corporate Leverage basically total liabilities divided by totat as

sets before accumutated depreciation and amortization of 8O/o

and minimum interest coverage basically EBJIDA or net income

before income taxes interest expense depreciation and amor

tization divided by interest expense of 105Io As of Decem

ber 31 2010 we were in compliance with the above financiat

covenants and we do not currently anticipate any difficulty in

maintaining compliance with these covenants in future periods

We had $105.3 million outstanding as of December 31 2010

under our Wells Fargo credit agreement which borrowings were

secured by lean investments with an aggregate carry value of

$11.2 milLion intercompany mortgage leans and investments in

our CDO with an aggregate carry value of $130.2 million CMBS

investments with carry value of $11.1 million and singte

owned property with carry value of $26.8 million

We may pursue variety of strategies for the assets financed

on the credit agreement which may incLude obtaining Long-term

fixed rate financing when market conditions permit pursuing

setected asset sates and retiring the debt on seLected assets and

holding the assets untevered We expect credit market conditions

to impact our ability to achieve these objectives and therefore

we cannot provide any assurance as to the timing or our ability

to do so

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities provided $47.7 mitlion of cash during the

year ended December 31 2010 primarity driven by net toss as

adjusted by various non-cash gains Losses income and charges

of $45.7 mitLion Operating activities provided $56.6 mitlion of

cash during the year ended December 31 2009 primarity driven

by net Loss as adjusted by various non-cash gains Losses

income and charges of $60.2 mitlion partiaLLy offset by increases

in other assets of $4.2 mitlion Operating activities provided

$64.4 mitlion of cash during the year ended December 31 2008

primarity driven by net toss before the Loss on derivatives and

as adjusted by various non-cash gains income and charges of

$52.5 million and decreases in other assets of $11.9 mitlion

We recognize rentaL income on our owned properties on

straight-line basis in accordance with generatLy accepted

accounting principtes As of December 31 2010 this has

resutted in us accruing $3g.5 mitlion of rental income in excess

of actuat rents due under the various teases During the year

ended December 31 2010 rents on straight-line basis

exceeded actuat rents due under the Leases by $4.2 million We

expect the impact of straight-lining of rents to fluctuate over

time as contractuat rents step up and actuat rents due increase

under the various teases and we purchase additional properties

Certain of our owned properties are atso subject to rents which

pay semi-annualLy rather than monthLy and this atso impacts

the quarter-to-quarter changes due to straight-lining of rents

Investing activities used $25.1 miLlion of cash during the

year ended December 31 2010 which primarity resutted from

purchases of reaL estate of $33.5 miLlion reat estate improve

ments and construction in progress of $8.1 mitlion and Leasing

commission costs of $1.2 mitlion partiaLLy offset by net proceeds

from the saLe of owned properties of $3.4 mitlion and principaL

received on toans of $11.2 million and securities of $3.3 mitlion

Investing activities provided $70.3 miLlion of cash during the

year ended December 31 2009 which primarity resuLted from net

proceeds from the sate of toans and securities of $48.7 miLlion

net proceeds from the saLe of owned properties of $6.5 miLlion

and net principaL received on toans of $15.5 mitlion and

securities of $3.1 mitlion Investing activities provided $9.5

mitlion of cash during the year ended December 31 2008 which

primarity resuLted from principal received on toans of $6.9

miLlion and securities of $2.5 miLlion

Cash used in financing activities during the year ended

December 31 2010 was $28.4 mitlion which primariLy resuLted

from net repayments of principal on debt of $56.6 miLlion $20.9

mitlion net on the WeLLs Fargo credit facility $14.4 miLlion net

on property mortgages $12.2 mitlion on the secured term Loan

with KBC Bank and $9.1 mitlion on the coLtateralized debt obli

gations $17.3 million used to repurchase our convertibte senior

notes and dividends and distributions paid of $19.0 mitlion

partiatty offset by net proceeds from preferred stock issuances of

$40.2 mitlion and net proceeds from common stock issuances of

$25.1 mitlion Cash used in financing activities during the year

ended December 31 2009 was $96.8 million which primarity

resutted from net repayments of principal on debt of $84.7 mit-

lion $63.0 million on the WetLs Fargo credit agreement $12.1

mill on net on property mortgages and $9.6 mitlion on the

secured term toan with KBC Bank $12.5 mitlion used to repur

chase our convertibte senior notes and coltateralized debt obli

gations and dividends and distributions paid of $10.3 mitlion

partially offset by net proceeds from common stock issuances of

$11.0 million Cash used in financing activities during the year

ended December 31 2008 was $99.5 mitlion which primarily re

suLted from net repayments of principat on debt of $59.6 million

net of $43.6 million on the Wetts Fargo repurchase agreement

and credit agreement net of $10.1 mitlion on property mort

gages and $5.8 mitlion on the secured term toan with KBC Bank

dividends and distributions paid of $39.3 million and cash paid

in hedging activities of $17.9 mitlion partiatty offset by net

proceeds from common stock issuances of $19.6 million
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See our consolidated statements of cash flows in the histori- CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

cal consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this

filing for reconciliation of our cash position for the periods The following table outlines the timing of payment requirements

described above related to our contractual obligations as of December 31 2010

in thousands

TOTAL LESS THAN YEAR 2-I YEARS 4-N YEARS AFTER YEARS

Mortgages on real estate investments $928429 $35929 $200931 $333914 $357655

Collateralized debt obligations 254209 10266 37014 206929

Credit agreement 105345 8743 96602

Secured term loan 101880 13737 28981 25754 33408

Convertible senior notes 33926 596 34522

Other long-term debt 30930 30930

Operating leases 2132 768 1344 20

TotaL $1456851 $68847 $399394 $566617 $421993
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Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures

about Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of ross from adverse changes in the

tevet of one or more market prices rate indices or other market

factors We are exposed to market risk primarily from changes in

interest rates credit spreads tenant credit ratings and equity

prices We may attempt to mitigate certain of these risks by

entering into hedge and other risk management transactions

during the short-term and fixed-rate financings for the tong-

term We seek to obtain long-term fixed rate financing as soon

as practicabe after we make an asset investment There can be

no assurance however that such mitigation strategies will be

completely or even partially successfuL The level of our exposure

to market risk is subject to factors beyond our control inctuding

political risk including terrorism monetary and tax policy gen

erat economic conditions and variety of other associated risks

Interest Rate Exposure

We are exposed to interest rate risk in various aspects of our

business The most significant ways we can be impacted by inter

est rates are as follows increases in the level of interest rates

may impact our ability to add new assets as spreads on assets

we are targeting may compress unless there is corresponding

increase in asset returns Declines in interest rates could resutt

in increased competition for our asset class

Also to the extent we finance assets in our portfolio on our

floating rate borrowing facilities our net income from these

fixed rate assets wilt decrease as interest rates rise particularly

LIBOR rates and our borrowing cost increases Our Welts Fargo

credit agreement is currently our only floating rate borrowing

facility Low market interest rates kept our borrowing cost on the

Welts Fargo credit agreement tow during 2OO and 2010 although

we cannot predict the tevet of market interest rates in the future

In addition as interest rates rise our anticipated cost to finance

these assets on tong-term fixed rate basis may rise causing

our expected spread on these assets to be reduced We may at

tempt to mitigate these risks by entering into risk management

transactions that react in manner that offsets our increased

interest costs and by locking our tong-term financing cost as

soon as practicable after we commit to an asset As resutt of

market conditions we are not currently carrying an open interest

rate hedge to manage our exposure to interest rate fluctuations

for assets for which we may obtain tong-term financing in the

future Our decision to do so teaves us exposed to increases in

long-term interest rates for those assets and therefore may

make it more difficutt or more costly to obtain long-term financ

ing As noted above there can be no assurance that our mitiga

tion strategies wilt be successfuL

Furthermore shifts in the U.S Treasury yield curve which

represents the markets expectations of future interest rates

woutd also affect the yield required on our toans and real estate

securities Changes in the required yield woutd resutt in higher

or tower value for these assets If the required market yietds

increase as result of these interest rate changes the vatue of

our toans and real estate securities would decline retative to

U.S Treasuries Conversely if the required market yietds decrease

as result of interest rate changes the value of our loans and

reat estate securities woutd increase retative to U.S Treasuries

These changes in the market vatue may affect the equity on our

balance sheet or if the vatue is tess than our cost basis and we

determine the tosses to be other-than-temporary our Statement

of Operations through impairment losses on our loans or securi

ties These value changes may also affect our ability to borrow

and access capitaL

Credit Spread Curve Exposure

We are subject to credit spread risk in various aspects of our

business Credit spreads represent the portion of the required

yield on an income investment attributable to credit quality

Credit spreads fluctuate over time as investor appetite for credit

risk changes

Changes in credit spreads can have many of the same impacts

on us as change in interest rates or principally

increases in credit spreads can resutt in spread compression

on investments we target and thus slowing of our new

investment pace

increases in credit spreads can increase our anticipated cost

to finance assets not yet financed with tong-term fixed rate

debt causing our expected spread on these assets to be

reduced and

increases in credit spreads can tower the vatue of our loans

and securities as required yietds on these assets increase

Tenant Credit RUting Exposure

Substantially alt of our portfolio assets are subject to risks due

to credit rating changes of the undertying tenant or tenants

Deterioration in the underlying tenants credit rating can resuft

in tower vatue for the retated asset which coutd result in re

duction in the equity on our balance sheet or if the value is tess

than our cost basis and we determine the loss to be other-than-

temporary an impairment toss on our Statement of Operations

In addition declines in the credit rating of particutar tenant

prior to our obtaining long-term fixed rate financing could resutt

in margin call by the retated tender and precipitous dectines

may significantly impede or eliminate our abitity to finance the

asset We manage these risks by maintaining diversity among our

credits and assessing our aggregate exposure to ratings ctasses

in particutar lower rated ctasses We atso seek to tock or procure

tong-term financing on our assets as promptty as practicabte

after we commit to invest

CAPLEA5E 2010 ANNUAL REPORT 61



DISCLOSURES

Equity Price Risk Exposure

We may Seek to raise capital by sale of our common stock Our

ability to do so is dependent upon the market price of our com

mon stock and general market conditions Any sales we make

may be dilutive to existing stockholders

Fair Value

For certain of our financial instruments fair values are not

readily available since there are no active trading markets as

characterized by current exchanges between willing parties

Accordingly we derive or estimate fair vaLues using various

valuation techniques such as computing the present value of

estimated future cash flows using discount rates commensurate

with the risks involved However the determination of estimated

cash flows may be subjective and imprecise Changes in assump

tions or estimation methodologies can have material effect on

these estimated fair values The fair vaLues indicated below are

indicative of the interest rate and credit spread environment as

of December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 as the case may

be and may not take into consideration the effects of subse

quent interest rate or credit spread fluctuations or changes in

the ratings of the underlying tenants

The following summarizes certain data regarding our interest

rate sensitive instruments as of December 31 2010 and

December 31 2009

dollars in thousands

WEIGHTED AVERAGE

EFFECTIVE IHTEREST/

CARRYING AMOUNT NOTIONAL AMOUNT FINANCING RATE

12/31/2010 12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2009 12/31/2010

Assets

Loans held for investment111 $210441 $221656 $214049 $225242 6.7/s Various $223099 $219185

Commercial mortgage-backed securities121 145965 153056 189187 191876 8.0/o 2012-2028 121164 113306

Structuring fees receivabLe121 326 1094 N/A N/A 8.9/s 2010-2020 326 1094

LiabiLities

Mortgages on real estate investments141 $928429 $943811 $925264 $939616 5.6/o 2011-2022 $979510 $902408

Collateralized debt obLigations151 254210 263310 254361 263500 5.6/ 2015 220907 150114

Credit agreement131 105345 126262 105345 126262 3.3/s 2013 105345 126262

Secured term Loan141 101880 114070 101880 114070 6.0% 2018 95145 98641

Convertible senior notes151 33926 49452 35009 52444 10.1/o 2012 35004 46956

Other long-term debt161 30930 30930 30930 30930 8.3I 2016 28095 21925

This portfolio of loans bears interest at fixed rates We haee estimated the fair value of this portfolio of loans with discounted cash flaw analysis utilizing scheduled cash

flows and discount rates estimated by management to approximate those that willing buyer and seller might use The maturity dates for the loans range from 2011 through

2033

commercial mortgage backed securities represent subordinate interests in securitizations as well as pass4hraugh certificates cepresenting aur pra rata investments in poo1

of mortgage loans collectively CMBS Structuring fees receivable represent cash flaws receivable by us from the sale of loans ta third party purchasers The notional values

for the CMOS are shown at their respective face amaunts The fair values of CMBS reflect managements best estimate and require considerable amount of judgment and

assumptions Management evaluates variety of inputs and then estimates fair value based on those inputs The primary inputs evaluated by management are broker quota

tions collateral values subordination levels and liquidity of the security Fair value for the structuring fees receivable is shown at our amortized cost for these items For the

CMBS we expect to receive monthly interest coupon payments and contractual principal payments as scheduled

Our credit agreement bears interest at floating rates and we believe that for similar financial instruments with comparable credit risks the effective rates approximate

market value Accordingly the carrying amounts outstanding are believed to approximate fair value

We estimate the fair value of mortgage notes on real estate investments collateralized debt obligations and the secured term loan using discounted cash flow analysis

based on our estimates of market interest rates For mortgages where we have an eariy payment right we also consider the prepayment amount to evaluate the fair value

The maturity date of the collateralized debt obligations of January 2015 reflects the first date the auction call mechanism in the notes is triggered and is used to compute

the related fair value and weighted average effective interest rate

The cony value and effective financing rate on the convertible senior notes reflect the impact of the accounting guidance applicable to the notes as of January 2009 See

Nate in our cansolidated financial statements inriuded in this Farm 50 We estimate the fair value of our convertible seniar notes using discounted cash flow analysis

based upon managements estimates of market interest rates and indications af market yields where available The maturity date of our convertible senior notes reflects our

expected maturity date in October 2012 when the note investors have the right to require us to repurchase their notes far cash and is used to compute the related fair value

and weighted average effective interest rate

We estimate the fair value of our other long-term debt using discounted cash flaw analysis based upon managements estimates of market interest rates The maturity date

of our other long term debt reflects our expected maturity date in January 2016 and is used to compute the related fair value and weighted average effective interest rate

MATURITY

DATE FAIR VALUE

12/31/2010 12/31/2010 12/31/2009
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Scheduled maturities of interest rate sensitive instruments as

of December 31 2010 are as follows

in thousands notional amounts where appropriate otherwise carrying amounts

EXPEcTED MATURITY DATES

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 THEREAFTER

Loans hold for investment $13721 $12884 $10034 $7520 $7645 $162245

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 3231 26703 4381 7114 7756 140002

Structuring foes receivable 72 79 86 49 33

Mortgages on real estate investments 35929 131486 69445 67678 266235 357656

Collateralized debt obligations 10266 10949 26065 lg221 187709

Credit agreement 8743 7976 88626

Secured term loan 13737 15380 13602 1234g 13405 33407

Convertible senior notes 596 34522

Other long-term debt 30930

The above table includes regularly scheduled principal amor

tization and balloon payments due to maturity on our debt

obligations See Note in our consolidated financial statements

included in this Form 10-K Negative amounts with respect to

our convertible senior notes represent amortization of the debt

discount related to the
liability component of the instrument as

measured in accordance with the accounting guidance applicable

to the notes See Note in our consolidated financial statements

included in this Form 10-K

The expected maturity dates shown for loan investments

commercial mortgage-backed securities and structuring fees

receivable are based on the contractual terms of the underlying

assets These assets based on our current operating strategy are

held for investment The material assumptions used to determine

fair value are included in footnotes through in the immedi

ately preceding table
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Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of CapLease Inc the Company is responsibe

for estabtishing and maintaining adequate internat controt over

financiat reporting Internat controt over financiat reporting is

defined in Rute 13a-15f and lSd-15f under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1g34 as amended as process designed by or

under the supervision of the Companys principat executive and

principat financiat officers and effected by the Companys board

of directors management and other personneL to provide reason

abte assurance regarding the retiabiUty of financiat reporting and

the preparation of financiat statements for externat purposes in

accordance with accounting principtes generally accepted in the

United States and inctudes those poticies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonabte

detail accuratety and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of assets of the Company

provide reasonabe assurance that transactions are recorded

as necessary to permit preparation of financiat statements in

accordance with accounting principtes generally accepted in

the United States and that receipts and expenditures of the

Company are being made onty in accordance with authoriza

tions of management and directors of the Company and

provide reasonabte assurance regarding prevention or timety

detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of

the Companys assets that couftl have materiat effect on the

financiat statements

Because of its inherent Umitations internat controt over finan

cia reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements PJso

projections of any evatuation of effectiveness to future periods

are subject to the risks that controts may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of comph

ance with the poticies or procedures may deteriorate

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys

internat controt over financiat reporting as of December 31

2010 In making the assessment management used the criteria

set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO in Interna ControtIntegrated

Framework

Based on this assessment management conctuded that as of

December 31 2010 the Companys internat contrd over financiat

reporting is designed and operating effectivety
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

TO TUE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS

CapLease Inc

We have audited the accompanying consobdated babnce sheets

of CapLease Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31 2010 and

200g and the rebted consohdated statements of operations

changes in equity and cash flows for each of the three years in

the period ended December 31 2010 Our audits ako inctuded

the financiat statement schedutes of CapLease Inc tisted in Item

15a We atso have audited CapLease Inc.s internat controL over

financiat reporting as of December 31 2010 based on criteria

estabtished in Internat ControtIntegrated Framework issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission CapLease Inc.s management is responsibte for

these financiat statements and financiat statement schedutes for

maintaining effective internat controt over financiat reporting

and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internat controt

over financiat reporting inctuded in the accompanying Manage

ments Annuat Report on Internat Controt over Financiat Report

ing Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financiat

statements and an opinion on the Companys internat controt

over financiat reporting based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of

the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we ptan and perform the audits to

obtain reasonabte assurance about whether the financiat state

ments are free of materiat misstatement and whether effective

internat controt over financiat reporting was maintained in aft

materiat respects Our audits of the financiat statements inctuded

examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disctosures in the financiat statements assessing the accounting

principtes used and significant estimates made by management

and evatuating the overatt financiat statement presentation Our

audit of internat controt over financiat reporting inctuded obtain

ing an understanding of internat controt over financiat reporting

assessing the risk that materiat weakness exists and testing

and evatuating the design and operating effectiveness of internat

controt based on the assessed risk Our audits atso inctuded per

forming such other procedures as we considered necessary in the

circumstances We believe that our audits provide reasonabte

basis for our opinions

companys internat controt over financiat reporting is

process designed to provide reasonabte assurance regarding the

reliability of financiat reporting and the preparation of financiat

statements for externat purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principtes companys internat controt

over financiat reporting inctudes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reason

abte detaiL accuratety and
fairty

reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonabte

assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit

preparation of financiat statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principtes and that receipts and expendi

tures of the company are being made onty in accordance with

authorizations of management and directors of the company

and provide reasonabte assurance regarding prevention or

timety detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition

of the companys assets that coutd have materiat effect on the

financiaL statements

Because of its inherent timitations internat controt over fi

nanciat reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Atso

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods

are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate be

cause of changes in conditions or that the degree of comphance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred

to above present fairly in alt material respects the financiat

position of CapLease Inc and subsidiaries as of December 31

2010 and 200g and the resufts of their operations and their

cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2010 in conformity with accounting principtes

generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our

opinion the related financiat statement schedules when consid

ered in retation to the basic consolidated financiat statements

taken as whote present fairly the information set forth therein

Atso in our opinion CapLease Inc maintained in alt materiat

respects effective internat controt over financiat reporting as

of December 31 2010 based on criteria established in Internal

ControtIntegrated Framework issued by the Committee of

Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

/s/ McGtadrey Putten LLP

New York New York

February 18 2011
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

DECEMBER31

Amounts in thousands except
share and

per
share amounts 2010 2009

Assets

Real estate investments net $1398399 $1408819

Loans held for investment net 210040 221211

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 145965 153056

Cash and cash equivalents 32742 38546

Asset held for sale 3410

Structuring fees receivable 326 1094

Other assets 82799 78219

Total Assets $1870271 $1904415

LiabiLities and StockhoLders Equity

Mortgages on real estate investments $928429 $943811

Collateralized debt obligations 254210 263310

Credit agreement 105345 126262

Secured term loan 101.880 114.070

Convertible senior notes 33.926 49452

Other long-term debt 30930 30930

TotaL debt obLigations 1454720 1527835

Intangible liabilities on real estate investments 37405 39591

Accounts payable accrued expenses and other liabilities 21134 18700

Oividends and distributions payable 5373 3822

TotaL Liabilities 1518632 1589948

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders equity

Preferred stock $0.01 par value 100000000 shares authorized Series cumulative redeemable preferred 73880 33651

liquidation preference $25.00 per share 3204900 and 1400000 shares issued and outstanding respectively

Common stock $0.01 par value 500000000 shares authorized 51411268 and 51109511 shares issued and 576 511

outstanding respectively

Additional paid in capital 296232 303368

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 20216 24332

TotaL StockhoLders Equity 350472 313210

Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiaries 1167 1257

TotaL Equity 351639 314467

TotaL LiabiLities and Equity $1870271 $1904415

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Operations

Amounts in thousands except per
share amounts 2010 2009 2008

Revenues

Rental revenue $125662 $134496 $135026

Interest income from loans and secunties 27620 30667 35040

Property expense recoveries 12159 11473 11457

Other revenue 974 1532 164

Total revenues 166415 178168 182287

Expenses

Interest expense 84850 90270 98211

Property expenses 24715 20442 19526

Loss on derivatives 19496

Loss on investments 7949 26885 3663

General and administrative expenses 10659 10894 11669

General and administrative expenses-stock based compensation 2541 2118 1978

Depreciation and amortization expense on real property 48409 51410 53132

Loan processing expenses 268 309 314

Total expenses 179391 202328 201995

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt 293 9829 1713

Provision for income taxes 201

Loss from continuing operations 13269 14532 23995

Income from discontinued operations 77 514 707

Net Loss before non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiaries 13192 14018 23288

Non controlling interest in consolidated subsidiaries 52 51 124

Net loss 13140 13961 23164

Dividends allocable to preferred shares 5618 2844 2844

Net Loss allocable to common stockholders $18758 $16811 $26008

Earnings per share

Net loss per common share basic and diluted $0.33 $0.34 $D.57

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding basic and diluted 56189 49297 45526

Dividends declared per common share $0.25 $0.21 $0.60

Dividends declared per preferred
share $2.03 $2.03 $2.03

Cee nntec to consolidntedfinondol
ctntemnts
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

STOCKHOLDERS EOUITY

ACCUMULATED

COMMON ADDmONAL OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME LOSS

6020

PREFERRED STOCK PAID-IN

NON-

Amounts in thousands STOCK AT PAR CAPITAL

CONTROLLING

INTEREST

TOTAL

IOUITY

BaLance at December 31 2007 $33657 $444 $348359 $2616 $359056

Incentive stock plan compensation expense 1978 1978

Incentive stock plan grants issued and forfeited

Net loss 23164 23164

Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiaries 124 124

Issuance of common Stock 25 19624 19649

Operating partnership units redeemed for common stock 1013 1014

Dividends declared-preferred 2844 2844

Dividends decLared-common 27397 27397

Distributions declared-operating partnership units 137 137

Amortization of losses on securities previously classified as 505 505

available for sale

Increase decrease in fair vaLue of securities available for sale 9398 9398

Increase decrease in fair vaLue of derivatives 4522 4522

Reclassification of derivative items into earnings 20126 20126

ReaLized gain toss on derivatives 17853 17853

BaLance at December 31 2008 33657 474 317565 28118 1341 324919

Incentive stock pLan compensation expense 2118 2118

Incentive stock pLan grants issued and forfeited 11 11

Net loss 13967 13967

Non-controlLing interest in consolidated subsidiaries 51 51

Issuance of common stock 32 11014 11046

Dividends declared preferred 844 2844

Dividends declared-common 10507 10507

Distributions declared-operating partnership units 33 33

Amortization of tosses on securities previously cLassified as 562 562

available for sate

Increase decrease in fair value of securities avaiLable for sale 2463 2463

Reclassification of derivative items into earnings 761 761

BaLance at December 31 2009 33657 517 303368 24332 1257 314467

Continued
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

CO Nil

STOCKHOLDERS EOUITY

NON

CONTROLLINO

INTEREST

TOTAL

EOUITY

$2541

ACCUMULATED

Amounts in thousands

PREFERRED

STOCK

COMMON

STOCK

AT PAR

ADDmONAL

PAID-IN

CAPITAL

OTHER

COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME LOSS

Incentive stock plan compensation expanse $2541

Incentive Stock plan grants issued and forfeited

Net loss 13140 13140

Non-controlling interest in consolidated subsidiarieS 52 52

Issuance of common stock 54 25048 25102

Issuance of
preferred

stock 40223 40223

Repurchase of convertible senior notes-equity component 1050 1050

Dividends declared-preferred 6501 6501

Dividends declared-common 14029 14029

Distributions declared-operating partnership units 38 38

Amortization of losses on securities previously classified as 1765 1765

available for sale

Increase decrease in fair value of Secunties available for sale 1759 1759

Reclassification of derivative items into earnings 592

BaLance at December 31 2010 $73880 $576 $296232 $20216 $1167 $351639

See notes to consolidated financial statements

592
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

Amounts in thousands 2010 2009 2DD8

Operating activities

Net loss $13140 $13967 $23164

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 48465 51g36 5434g

Stock based compensation 2541 2118 1978

Amortization of above and below market leases 1663 1344 1436

Gain attributable to non controlling interest in consolidated subsidiaries 52 51 124

Loss gain on extinguishment of debt 293 9829 1713

Loss on investments 794g 26885 3663

Loss on derivatives 1946

Straight-lining of rents 4189 1377 6145

Amortization of discounts/premiums and origination fees/costs net 625 495 376

Amortization of debt issuance costs leasing commissions

and fair market value of debt issued or assumed 2785 3603 3069

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Structuring fees receivable 767 77D 712

Other assets 1203 4216 11928

Accounts payable accrued expenses and other liabilities 2433 59 258

Deposits and escrows 48 492

Net cash provided by operating activities 47689 56614 64359

Investing activities

Purchases of real estate investments 33513

Real estate improvements additions rebates and construction in progress 8077 1389 224

Proceeds from sale of real estate investments 3410 6544

Leasing commission costs 1298 794

Proceeds from sale of loans 41206

Additions to loans held for investment 790

Principal received from borrowers 11205 15458 6863

Purchase of commercial mortgage-backed securities 496

Proceeds from sale of securities 7475

Repayments of commercial mortgage-backed securities 3256 3134 2480

Deposits on potential equity investments 350

Return of deposits on potential equity investments 350

Purchases of furniture fixtures equipment and leasehold improvements 34 20

Net cash provided by used in investing activities 25051 70342 9547

Continued
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

CONTINUED

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31

Amounts in thousands 2010 2009 2008

Financing activities

Repayments of repurchase agreement obligations $232870

Borrowings from mortgages on real estate investments 1752 1574 1414

Repayments of mortgages on real estate investments 16105 13650 11560

Repayments of collateralized debt obligations 9139

Repayments on secured term Loan 12191 964g 5801

Borrowings from credit agreement 15610 2103g2

Repayments on credit agreement 36526 63000 21131

Convertible senior notes repurchased 17335 9583 1272

Collateralized debt obligations repurchaseci 2881

Debt issuance costs 815 645 1783

Escrows held with mortgage lender 212 600

Funds used in hedging and risk management activities 17853

Common stock issued net of
offering

costs 25102 11046 19649

Preferred stock issued net of offering costs 40223

Distributions to non controlling interest 37 23 189

Dividends paid on common and preferred stock 18981 10250 39110

Net cash used in financing activities 28442 96849 99514

Net decrease increase in cash and cash equivalents 5804 30107 25608

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 38546 8439 34047

Cash and cash equivaLents at end of period $32742 $38546 $8439

SuppLementaL discLosure of cash fLow information

Cash paid during the year for interest expense excluding capitalized interest $81026 $86332 $95312

Cash paid during the year for income taxes 201

Distributions declared but not paid 10

Dividends declared but not paid 5363 3813 711

SuppLementaL discLosure of noncash operating investing and financing information

Value of in-place leases and above-market leases acquired $2820

Securities transferred to loans held for investment 24453

Mortgage notes payable transferred on properties sold 14400

Operating partnership units redeemed in exchange for common shares 1014

lee notes to consolidated financial statements
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Dollar
amounts in thousands except per share amounts

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Organization and Business Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

CapLease Inc CapLease and collectively with its majority-

owned subsidiaries the Company is real estate investment

trust or REIT that invests primarily in single tenant commercial

real estate assets subject to leng-term leases to high credit

quality tenants The Company focuses on properties that are

subject to net lease or lease that requires the tenant to

pay alt or substantially all property operating expenses such as

utilities reat estate taxes insurance and routine maintenance

The Company also continues to be opportunistic and has made

and expects to continue to make investments in single tenant

properties where the owner has exposure to property operating

expenses when we determine we can sufficiently underwrite that

exposure and isolate predictable cash flow

The Companys primary business line is and it expects wilt

continue to be the ownership of single tenant properties The

Company also has portfolio of first mortgage toans and other

debt investments on single tenant properties and may continue

to make such debt investments from time to time on an opportu

nistic basis in the future

CapLease has made an election to qualify and believes it is

operating so as to qualify as REIT for federal income tax pur

poses As such it wilt generally not be subject to federat income

tax on that portion of its taxable income that is distributed to

stockhotders if it distributes at least 90% of its taxable income

to its stockholders by prescribed dates and complies with various

other requirements

CapLease conducts its business through variety of subsid

iaries CapLease owns most of its owned properties through its

predecessor and operating partnership Captease LP the Oper

ating Partnership CapLease is the indirect sole general partner

of and owns approximately 99.7% of the common equity of the

Operating Partnership

CapLease completed its initial public offering of common

stock in March 2004 and completed its initial public offering of

its 8.l25/ Series cumulative redeemable preferred stock in Oc

tober 2005 As of December 31 2010 CapLease had 57471268

shares of common stock and 3204900 shares of 8.125% Series

cumulative redeemable preferred stock outstanding See Note 13

Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are

prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States or GAAP and include the assets

liabilities and results of operations of the Company Results of

operations of properties acquired are included in the Consoli

dated Statements of Operations from the date of acquisition

The Company accounts for properties that it intends to dispose

of in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board

FASB Accounting Codification Statement ASC 360-10-45

Alt significant intercompany transactions batances and accounts

have been eliminated in consolidation

Use of Estimates

Management of the Company has made number of estimates

and assumptions relating to the reporting of assets and liabili

ties revenues and expenses and the disctosure of contingent

assets and liabilities to prepare these consolidated financial

statements in conformity with GAAP Actual resufts could differ

from those estimates

Risks and Uncertainties

In the normat course of business among the risks the Company

encounters are credit risk and market risk Credit risk is the risk

of defautt on the Companys leases leans securities and any

derivative instruments that results from lessees borrowers

or derivative counterpartys inability or unwillingness to make

contractually required payments Market risk reflects changes in

the vatue of investments in real estate loans securities or deriva

tive instruments due to changes in interest rates or other market

factors including the value of real estate heW by the Company

and the collateral undertying loans and securities Management

believes that the carrying valees of its investments are reasonable

taking into consideration these risks aleng with estimated collat

eral values payment histories and other relevant information

Accounting for Real Estate

Real estate is carried on the Companys Consolidated Balance

Sheet at cost net of accumulated depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization are determined by the straight

line method over the remaining estimated economic useful lives

of the properties The Company generally depreciates build

ing and building improvements over periods not exceeding 40

years As resutt of the Companys adoption of FASB ASC 805 on
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share amounts

December 31 2D1D 2DD9 and 2DD8

January 2009 direct costs incurred in acquiring compteted

properties that meet the dassification of business are now

required to be charged to operations as incurred Prior to Janu

ary 2009 and under previous accounting guidance these costs

were required to be capitalized and amortized over the estimated

usefut life of the asset acquired Expenditures for maintenance

and repairs of owned properties are charged to operations as

incurred Significant renovations which extend the usefut life of

the properties are capitalized

The Company reviews its owned reat properties for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverabte in accor

dance with FASB ASC 360-10-35-21 The evatuation inctudes esti

mating and reviewing anticipated future undiscounted cash flows

to be derived from the asset If such cash flows are tess than

the assets carrying vatue an impairment charge is recognized

to earnings to the extent by which the assets carrying vatue

exceeds the estimated fair vatue Estimating future cash flows is

highty subjective and inctudes an evatuation of factors such as

the anticipated cash flows from the property which may indude

rent from current teases in pbce and projected future teases

estimated capitat expenditures and an estimate of proceeds to

be realized upon sate of the property The Companys estimates

coutd differ rnateriaty from actuat resutts The Company recog

nized no impairment tosses on ong-tived assets during the year

ended December 31 2010 The Company recognized $15999 of

impairment tosses on ong-tived assets during the year ended De

cember 31 2009 inctuding $11923 write-down to estimated

fair vatue during the fourth quarter of 2DD9 on property that

is now vacant see Note $2853 toss on an owned property

that was sotd during the second quarter of 2DD9 see Note

and $1223 ross on an owned property that was sotd during the

first quarter of 2010 see Note The Company recognized $354

of impairment tosses on ong-tived assets during the year ended

December 31 2008 retated to the property it soW during the

first quarter of 2010 see Note

The Companys purchase price of rentat rear estate acquired is

attocated to the fottowing based on estimated fair values on the

acquisition date

acquired tangibte assets consisting of tand buitding and

improvements and

identified intangibte assets and liabilities consisting of

above-market and betow-market teases in-ptace teases and

tenant retationships

The fair vatue of tangibte and intangibte assets acquired is

considered to be Levet input in accordance with the fair

vatue measurement topic in the applicablu accounting guidance

as described in Note betow In estimating the fair vatue of the

tangiblu and intangibte assets acquired the Company considers

information obtained about each property as resuft of its due

diligence activities and other market data and utilizes vari

ous vatuation methods such as estimated cash flow projections

utilizing appropriate discount and capitalization rates estimates

of reptacement costs and avaitabte market information The fair

vatue of the tangiblu assets of an acquired property considers

the value of the property as if it were vacant the dark value

Above-market and betow-market tease vatues for acquired

properties are recorded based on the present vatue of the differ

ences between the contractuat amounts to be paid pursu

ant to each in-ptace luase and ii managements estimate of

fair market luase rates for each corresponding in-ptace luase

Fair market tease rates are measured over period equat to the

remaining term of the tease for above-market luase and the

initiat term plus the term of any beluw-market rate renewat op

tions for beluw-market teases In computing present vatue the

Company considers the costs which woutd need to be invested to

achieve the fair market luase rates The Company uses discount

rate which reflects the risks associated with the teases acquired

The capitalized above-market tease values are amortized as

reduction of base rentat revenue over the remaining term of the

respective teases and the capitalized betow-market tease vatues

are amortized as an increase to base rentat revenue over the re

maining initiat terms ptus the terms of any betow-market renewat

options of the respective teases

Other intangibte assets acquired indude amounts for in-ptace

tease vatues and tenant retationship values which are based on

managements evatuation of the specific characteristics of each

tenants tease and the Companys overatt retationship with the

respective tenant Factors considered by management in its

anaysis of in-ptace tease values inctude estimates of the dark

vatue of the property carrying costs during the hypotheticat

expected time it woufti take management to find tenant to

tease the space for the existing tease term tease-up period

considering current market conditions and costs to execute

simitar teases Management estimates carrying costs including

such factors as reat estate taxes insurance and other operat

ing expenses during the expected tease-up period considering

current market conditions and costs to execute simitar teases In

estimating costs to execute simitar teases management considers

teasing commissions and other retated expenses Characteristics
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considered by management in estimating the vabie of tenant

retationships inctude the nature and extent of the Companys

existing business retationships with the tenant growth prospects

for devetoping new business with the tenant the tenants credit

quatity and expectations of tease renewats The vatue of in-ptace

teases is amortized as component of depreciation expense over

the remaining initiat terms of the respective teases The value

of tenant retationship intangibtes if any is amortized as com

ponent of depreciation expense over the anticipated tife of the

relationships Through December 31 2010 the Company has as

signed no vatue to tenant retationships on any of its acquisitions

When tease is terminated the net impact if any of

writing-off att retated intangibte assets and tiabitities and any

straight-tine rent adjustment ii any tease termination pay

ments received and iii recording the property at its tower of

the carry amount and estimated fair vatue is recognized through

the Companys Consotidated Statement of Operations Any net

gain is inctuded as component of Other revenue and any net

toss is inctuded as component of Loss on investments

For property acquisitions where the Company assumes exist

ing mortgage debt the debt is recorded at its estimated fair

value based on managements estimate of current market yields

available for comparable financing The Company amortizes any

discount or prem4um as part of interest expense on the related

debt using the effective interest method

Development Activities

Project costs and expenses associated with the development

construction and tease-up of real estate project are capitatized

as construction in progress Once the devetopment and construc

tion of the building is substantiatty completed the costs capitat

ized to construction in progress are transferred to lend and

ii buildings and improvements

Loan Investments

The Company ctassifies its toans as tong-term investments as

its strategy is tn hntd the loans for the foreseeahle future or

until maturity Loan investments are carried on the Companys

Consotidated Batance Sheet at amortized cost unpaid principat

batance adjusted for unearned discount or premium and loan

origination fees net of any attowance for lean tosses Unearned

discounts or premiums and lean origination fees are amortized

as component of interest income using the effective interest

method over the life of the loan

From time to time the Company may determine to seft loan

in which case it must reclassify the asset as held for sale Loans

held for sate are carried at lower of cost or market value As of

December 31 2010 the Company had not ctassified any of its

loans as held for sale

The Company evaluates its loan investments for possible im

pairment on quarterly basis The Companys impairment analy

sis inctudes both general reserve component under FASB ASC

310-10-35-10 and an asset-specific component under FASB ASC

310-10-35-16 The general reserve component covers performing

loans and in accordance with FASB ASC 310-10-35-10 provisions

for loan losses are recorded when available information as

of each balance sheet date indicates that it is probable toss

has occurred in the portfolio and ii the amount of the toss can

be reasonably estimated Actuat toan tosses are then charged

against the attowance when management believes that uncot

tectibitity of loan balance is confirmed Subsequent recoveries

if any are credited to the attowance Significant judgment is

required in determining reserve balances for the performing loan

portfotio including estimates of the likelihood of default and

tease rejection given the credit characteristics of the tenant and

estimates of stressed cottaterat vatues and potentiat bankruptcy

ctaim recoveries These estimates are highty subjective and coutd

differ materiatty from actuat resutts As of December 31 2010

the Company has general toan toss reserve in accordance with

FASB ASC 310-10-35-10 of $500 See Note

The asset-specific component of the toan toss impairment

anatysis is conducted in accordance with FASB ASC 310-10-35-

16 and covers specific toans where the Company has deemed it

probabte that it witt not be abte to cottect att amounts due ac

cording to the cantractuat terms of the toan Any resutting toan

specific toss is measured based on the present vatue of expected

future cash flows from the toan or the fair vatue of the toan

cottaterat if the toan is cottaterat dependent Significant judg

ment is required in determining any resutting toan specific toss

inctuding factors such as the status of the toans i.e current or

actuat or expected payment or other defautts the credit quatity

of the undertying tenants the present vatue of expected future

cash flows on the toans the fair vatue of any rottaterat and the

amount and status of any senior debt These estimates are highty

subjective and coutd differ materiatty from actuat resutts The

Companys accounting poticy is to continue to accrue interest

income on specific impaired toans as tong as it conctudes it is

tikety to cottect it As of December 31 2010 the Company had

an asset-specific toan toss reserve of $444 on singte impaired

toan See Note
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Commerdal Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company designates its commercial mortgage-backed

securities and other real estate securities CMBS investments

pursuant to FASB ASC 320-10 FASB ASC 320-10 creates two

classifications that are relevant with respect to the Companys

securities investments

Held to maturity are those securities that the Company has

the positive intent and ability to hotd until maturity All of

the Companys securities classified as held to maturity were

transferred to this classification from availabte for sate

classification in January 2008 For security transferred

into the hetd to maturity category -the security is recorded at

estimated fair vatue on the date of transfer with any unreat

ized gain or toss amortized against the retated fair vatue

adjustment recorded as component of Other Comprehensive

Income Loss within Stockhotders Equity over the expected

term of the security using the effective interest method

Available for sate are those securities that the Company

does not hotd for the purpose of setting in the near-term but

may dispose of prior to maturity They are presented on the

Consotidated Batance Sheet at fair vatue with any temporary

changes in fair vatue included in Accumutated Other Compre

hensive Income Loss component of Stockholders Equity

on the Companys Consotidated Balance Sheet

The Company classifies its securities investments that are

financed in its March 2005 collateralized debt obtigation or in

the December 2007 secured term toan transaction discussed at

Note as hetd to maturity and att other securities invest

ments inctuding those financed within the credit agreement

discussed at Note as avaitabte for sale

Any premiums or discounts on securities are amortized as

component of interest income using the effective interest

method

The Company estimates fair vatue on att securities invest

ments quarterty based on variety of inputs Under appticabte

accounting guidance securities where the fair vatue is tess than

the Companys cost are deemed impaired and therefore must

be measured for other-than-temporary impairment If an im

paired security i.e fair vatue betow cost is intended to be sotd

or required to be sold prior to expected recovery of the impair

ment toss the futt amount of the toss is charged to earnings as

other-than-temporary impairment Otherwise impairment losses

on the security must be further anatyzed for separation into

two categories credit losses and ii tosses due to factors

other than credit The portion which is considered credit loss is

charged to earnings as other-than-temporary impairment The

portion which is due to other factors is not charged to earn

ings Atso if the security is ctassified as avaitabte for sate the

non-credit portion of the impairment loss is charged to other

comprehensive income toss component of equity on the

Companys Consotidated Batance Sheet The Company had tosses

on securities charged to the Statement of Operations of $7949

during the year ended December 31 2010 $133 during the year

ended December 31 2009 and $1000 during the year ended

December 31 2008 See Note

Structuring Fees Receivable

Structuring fees receivabte represent fees which the Company is

entitted to receive over time for structuring originating and/or

setting loans and are initiatty recorded at the discounted vatue of

expected cash receipts and are periodicatty evatuated for impair

ment The Company amortizes the receivabte batance as cash is

collected attocating the cash received to principat and interest

Deferred Fees and Costs

In connection with its teasing efforts the Company may incur

primarity two types of costs attowances paid to the tenant

or on its behalf for the construction of teasehotd improvements

or tenant improvement atlowances and ii commissions paid

to teasing brokers or teasing commissions Tenant improvement

attowances are initiatly capitatized as part of Construction in

progress and then transferred to Building and improvements

at completion and depreciated on straight-bne basis over

periods not ekceeding 40 years Leasing commissions are capital

ized as Deferred teasing costs and amortized on straight-tine

basis over the term of the related lease

In accordance with applicable accounting guidance the

Company defers the recognition of fees and expenses associated

with the origination of its loans held for investment These items

include lender fee income rate lock income direct loan origina

tion costs certain legal fees insurance costs rating agency fees

and certain other expenses Deferred fees and costs are recog

nized as an adjustment to the effective yield over the life of the

related asset

Risk Management Transactions

The Company may enter into risk management transactions as

part of its overall portfolio financing strategy These transactions

are intended to manage the Companys exposure to changes in

interest rates associated with its expected future debt issuances

76 CAPLEASE 2010 ANNUAL NEPORT



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Dollar amounts in thousands except per share amounts

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Tithe Company employs risk management transactions they

will be treated as cash flow hedges under applicable account

ing guidance as long as they have been designated and qualify

as such which basically means so long as the Company has

satisfied variety of technical accounting requirements such as

hedge documentation requirements and initial and subsequent

quarterly hedge effectiveness tests Tf the cash flow hedge

criteria are met the transactions are marked to fair value at each

reporting date and recorded as an asset or liability depending

on the Companys rights or obligations under the applicable

contract The effective portion of the Companys realized and

unrealized gains and losses on such transactions are treated as

component of Other Comprehensive Tncome Loss on the

Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet and are not reported as

component of current income or loss on the Companys Consoli

dated Statement of Operations The effective portion of the Com

panys realized gains and losses which generally represent the

net payments the Company makes or receives on the interest rate

swaps are then reclassified and amortized as part of interest

expense on the Companys Consolidated Statement of Operations

beginning at issuance of the related debt and continuing over

the expected term of such debt

Tf cash flow hedge criteria are not met or the hedge is

deemed ineffective some or all of the realized and unrealized

gains and losses on such transactions are treated as compo

nent of current income or loss on the Companys Consolidated

Statement of Operations

If the Company employs risk management transactions no

assurance can be made that the Company will satisfy the cash

flow hedge requirements and as to the portion of the Companys

gains and losses that will be deemed effective under applicable

accounting guidance Changes in managements initial assump

tions regarding any proposed debt issuance e.g timing and the

amount and type of debt and changes in the shape of the swap

curve which represents the markets expectations for future LI

BOR rates are among the factors that could cause the Company

to include greater portion of its gains and losses from the as

sociated risk management transactions as current income or loss

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company defines cash equivalents as highly liquid invest

ments purchased with maturities of three months or less at date

of purchase From time to time the Companys account balance

held at financial institutions exceeds Federal Depository Tnsur

ance Corporation FDIC insurance coverage and as result

there is concentration of credit risk related to the balance

on deposit in excess of FDIC insurance coverage The Company

believes that the risk of loss is not significant

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes rental revenue on real estate on

straight-line basis over the non-cancelable term of the lease The

excess of straight-line rents over base rents under the lease is

included in Accrued rental income on the Companys Con

solidated Balance Sheet and any excess of base rents over the

straight-line amount is included as Deferred rental income on

the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet The Companys leases

also generally require the tenants to pay directly or reimburse

the Company for occupancy and operating costs of the proper

ties or in certain cases reimburse the Company for increases in

certain operating costs and real estate taxes above their base

year costs The Company recognizes such income in the period

the related expenses are incurred

Interest income from loans securities and structurinq fees

receivable is recognized on the accrual basis of accounting

Interest income from securities including interest-only strips

is recognized over the life of the investment using the effective

interest method The cost basis of interest-only strips is adjusted

to reflect any prepayments from underlying assets using the

initial yield-to-maturity at the purchase date The Company has

adopted the cost-recovery method in which all receipts are ap

plied to reduce the Companys cost basis on limited number of

its securities investments

On occasion the Company may consider loan to be non-

performing and place the loan on non-accrual status While on

non-accrual status the loan is accounted for on either cash

basis in which case interest income is recognized only upon

actual receipt or on cost-recovery basis based upon manage

ments judgment as to the collectibility of the investment

Lease Enhancement Mechanisms

The Company utilizes the following lease enhancement mecha

nisms primarily as part of its lending programs

casualty and condemnation insurance policies that protect

the Company from any right the tenant may have to termi

nate the underlying net lease or abate rent as result of

casualty or condemnation and

with respect to double net lease borrower reserve funds

that protect the Company from any rights the tenant may

have to terminate the underlying net lease or abate rent as

result of the failure of the property owner to maintain and

repair the property or related common areas

CAPLEA5E she ANNUAL NEPORT 77



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Dollar amounts in thousands except per

share amounts

December 31 2010 2009 and 2008

Costs incurred by the Company for tease enhancement mecha

nisms as part of the Companys tending programs are typicatty

charged to the borrowers In instances where not futty
absorbed

by the borrower costs are treated as cost of toan origination

under appticabte accounting guidance Costs for tease enhance

ment mechanisms for the Companys owned reat properties are

treated as cost of financing and are amortized as part of inter

est expense over the expected term of the retated financing

Marketing and Advertising Costs

The Company expenses marketing and advertising costs as

incurred Marketing and advertising expense totated $200 $145

and $431 in 2010 2009 and 2008 respectivety

Income Taxes

CapLease has made an etection to quatify and betieves it is

operating so as to quatify as REIT for federat income tax pur

poses As such it witt generatty not be subject to federat income

tax on that portion of its taxabte income that is distributed to

stockhotders if it distributes at teast 90/c of its taxabte income

to its stockhotders by prescribed dates and compties with various

other requirements From time to time the Company may con

duct portion of its business through taxabte REIT subsidiary

IRS and the income from the activities of the IRS is subject

to federat and state taxation at the appticabte corporate rates

Other Comprehensive Income Loss

In accordance with appticabte accounting guidance the Company

recognizes temporary changes in the fair vatue of its securi

ties avaitabte for sate as component of Other Comprehensive

Income Loss on the Companys Consotidated Batance Sheet

The Company atso recognizes the change in fair vatue and reat

ized gains and tosses from the effective portion of its cash flow

hedges as component of Other Comprehensive Income Loss

on the Companys Consotidated Batance Sheet Reatized gains

and tosses from the effective portion of the cash flow hedges are

then amortized as component of interest expense on the Com

panys Consotidated Statement of Operations over the term of the

retated financing using the effective interest method

Earnings per Share

In accordance with FASB ASC 260-10-15 the Company presents

both basic and dituted earnings per share EPS Basic EPS

exctudes ditution and is computed by dividing net income toss

attocabte to common stockhotders by the weighted average num

ber of shares outstanding for the period Dituted earnings per

share reflects the potentiat ditution that coutd occur if securi

ties or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or

converted into common stock where such exercise or conversion

woutd resutt in tower EPS amount The Companys computation

of dituted earnings per share does not inctude shares of common

stock that may be issued in the future upon conversion of the

convertibte senior notes issued in October 2007 as the impact

woutd not be ditutive The number of weighted average common

shares not inctuded was 3648768 5014100 and 6627296

respectivety for the years ended December 31 2010 December

31 2009 and December 31 2008

The fottowing summarizes the Companys computations

for the years ended December 31 2010 December 31 2009 and

December 31 2008

DECEMBER31

in thousands except per share amounts 2010 2009 2008

Net toss altocabte to common

stockhotders $18758 $16811 $26008

Weighted average number of

common shares outstanding

basic and dituted 56189 49297 45526

Loss per share basic and dituted $0.33 $0.34 $0.57

Non-vested shares included in

weighted average number of shares

outstanding above 1739 1801 930

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2009 the FASB issued new accounting guidance

formerty SFAS No 166 Accounting for Tronsfers of Einonciol

Assetson omendment of FASB Stotement No 140 which

requires additionat information regarding transfers of financiat

assets inctuding securitization transactions and where compa

nies have continuing exposure to the risks retated to transferred

financiat assets The guidance etiminates the concept of

quatifying speciat-purpose entity changes the requirements for

derecognizing financiat assets and requires additionat discto

sures The guidance was effective for the Company on January

2010 The Companys adoption of this guidance on January

2010 did not have materiat effect on the Companys consoti

dated financiat statements

In June 2009 the FASR issued new accounting guidance

formerty SFAS No 167 Amendments to FASB Interpretotion

No 46R which modifies how company determines when

an entity that is insufficientty capitatized or is not controtted

through voting or simitar rights shoutd be consotidated The

guidance ctarifies that the determination of whether company
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is required to consoLidate an entity is based on among other

things an entitys purpose and design and companys abihty to

direct the activities of the entity that most significantLy impact

the entitys economic performance The guidance requires an

ongoing reassessment of whether company is the primary ben

eficiary of variabte interest entity The guidance atso requires

additionat disclosures about companys invotvement in variabLe

interest entities and any significant changes in risk exposure due

to that invotvement The guidance was effective for the Company

on January 2010 The Companys adoption of this guidance on

January 2010 did not have materiat effect on the Companys

consoLidated fi nanciat statements

In January 2010 the FASB issued new accounting guidance

ASU 2010-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures requir

ing new disctosures and clarification of existing disclosures for

assets and Liabilities that are measured at fair vatue on either

recurring or non-recurring basis The guidance requires the

separate disclosure nf significant transfers in and nut of evet

and Levet fair vatue measurements atong with the reasons for

the transfers The guidance atso requires separate information

about purchases sates issuances and setttement activity within

Levet fair vatue measurements on gross basis rather than one

net number The new disclosures and clarifications of existing

disclosures are effective for interim and annuat reporting periods

beginning after December 15 2009 except for the disclosures

about purchases sates issuances and setttement activity within

Levet fair vatue measurements Those disclosures are effective

for fiscat years beginning after December 15 2010 and for in

terim periods within those fiscat years The Companys adoption

of this ASU on January 2010 did not have materiat effect on

the Companys consotidated financiat statements

In February 2010 the FASB issued new accounting guidance

ASU 2010-09 Subsequent Events which amends ASC 855 The

amendments remove the requirement for an SEC fiter to disclose

the date through which subsequent events have been evatuated

in both issued and revised financiat statements This amendment

atteviates potentiat conflicts between GAAP and SEC require

ments The new guidance became effective immediatety upon

finat issuance The Companys adoption of this ASU did not have

materiat effect on its consotidated financiat statements

In March 2010 the FASB issued new accounting guidance

ASU 2010-11 Derivatives and Hedging which amends ASC 815-

15 The amendments ctarify the scope exemption for embedded

credit derivative features retated to the transfer of credit risk in

the form of subordination of one financiat instrument to another

The new guidance is effective for each reporting entity at the be

ginning of its first fiscat quarter beginning after June 15 2010

The Companys adoption of this ASU on Juty 2010 did not

have materiat effect on its consoLidated financiat statements

In Juty 2010 the FASB issued new accounting guidance

ASU 2010-20 Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing

Receivables and the Allowance for Credit Losses which amends

various sections of ASC 310-10 and outLines specific disctosures

that witt be required for the attowance for credit tosses and aft

finance receivabtes Finance receivabtes inctudes toans tease

receivabtes and nther arrangements with cnntractual right tn

receive money on demand or on fixed or determinabte dates that

is recognized as an asset on an entitys statement of financiat

position The amendment requires companies to provide disag

gregated tevets of disclosure by portfotio segment and ctass

to enabte users of the financiat statement to understand the

nature of credit risk how the risk is anatyzed in determining the

retated attowance for credit tosses and changes to the attowance

during the reporting period The required disctosures under this

amendment as of the end of reporting period are effective for

the Companys December 31 2010 reporting period and discto

sures regarding activities during reporting period are effective

for the Companys March 31 2011 interim reporting period The

Companys adoption of this ASU did not have materiat effect

on the Companys consotidated financiat statements

Red ossifications

Certain prior year amounts have been rectassified to conform

to the current presentation There was no effect on net toss or

equity retated to these rectassifications
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Real Estate Investments

Real estate held for investment and related intangible Liabilities

on real estate investments consisted of the following at

December 31 2010 and December 31 2009

DECEMBER ai

2010 2DD9

ReaL estate investments at cost

Land $190521 $189021

Building and improvements 1268320 1237249

Construction in progress land 951

Construction in progress building and improvements 5557 310

Intangible assets 183543 180722

Less Accumulated depreciation and amortization 250493 198483

Real estate investments net $1398399 $1408819

IntangibLe Liabitities on reaL estate investments

Intangible Liabilities $47908 $47908

Less AccumuLated amortization 10503 8317

Intangible liabilities on real estate investments net $37405 $39591

During the three months ended December 31 2010 the Company

completed the following real estate acquisition

TENANT OR OUARANTOR LOCATION

Cooper Tire Rubber Company

500 Bartram Parkway Franklin IN

There were no acquisition costs or interest charges capitalized as

part of buiLdings and improvements for the above acquisition

NET RENTABLE SQUARE FEET

807042

MONTH ACQUIRED

December

PURCHASE PRICE

$32500

LEASE EXPIRES

May 2021
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Development in Process

In August 2010 the Company entered into joint venture that

is developing warehouse/distribution building for Michelin

North America Inc in Louisville Kentucky with construction

budget of $8391 The Company owns 99% ownership interest

in and will fund all of the construction costs associated with the

project Therefore the Company consolidates the joint venture

for financial accounting purposes

Construction activity and funding of the project commenced

during the third quarter and the project is scheduled to be com

pleted during the beginning of the second quarter of 2011

The table below details the Companys construction in progress

associated with the Michelin joint venture as of December 31

2010 The information included in the table below represents

managements estimates and expectations at December 31 2010

which are subject to change The Companys disclosures regard

ing certain projections or estimates of completion dates may not

reflect actual results

PROPERTY

TYPE

Warehouse/

distribution

The lease is scheduled to commence upon substantial completion of the building and the satisfaction of certain other conditions

Interest and fees the Company will earn during the construction period are expected to reduce the total investment to $a069

Straight-Line Rent Adjustment

The impact on rental revenue of the straight-line rent adjustment

under FASB ASC 840-20-25-1 may be recorded on the Companys

Consolidated Balance Sheet through accrued rental income and

deferred rental income As of December 31 2010 and December

31 2009 the straight-line rent adjustment was recorded entirely

through accrued rental income as follows

DECEMBER31

2010 2009

Acctued Rental Income $39506 $35317

Accrued rental income is included in Other assets on the

Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet See Note Deferred

rental income if any is included in Accounts payable accrued

expenses and other liabilities on the Companys Consolidated

Balance Sheet See Note 10

ESTIMATED

ESTIMATED TOTAL COMPLETiON

INVESTMENT DATE

$8391 Beginning

of 20 2011

Depredation and Amortization Expense

Depreciation expense and amortization of intangible assets and

liabilities on real estate investments for the years ended Decem

ber 31 2010 December 31 2009 and December 31 2008 were

as follows

DECEMBER31

2010 2009 2008

Depreciation on real estate

included in depreciation and

amortization expense $32171 $32804 $32783

Amortization of inptace leases

included in depreciation and

amortization expense 15989 18530 20349

Amortization of above-market

teases included as reduction of

rental revenue 3849 3849 3849

Amortization of below-market

leases included as an increase to

rental revenue 2186 1593 2535

TENANT LOCATION

MicheLin North America Inc

Louisville KY

CONSTRUCTION IN E5TIMATED

APPROXIMATE LEASE TERM PROGRESS AT REMAINING

SQUARE FEET YEARS 12/31/10 PUNDING

150000 10 $3222 $5169
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As of December 31 2010 the Companys weighted average

amortization period on intangibte assets was 7.5 years and the

weighted average amortization period on intangibe tiabitities

was 26.0 years

Scheduted amortization on existing intangibte assets and

tiabitities on reaL estate investments as of December 31 2010

on reat estate investments is as follows

INTANGIBLE A55ET5 INTANGIBLE LIABILITIES

2011 $1939D $2186

2012 14972 2186

2013 9300 2051

2014 8942 1954

2015 8283 1678

Thereafter 24692 27350

$85579 $37405

Owned Property In vestment and Finandng Strategy

Substantially all of the Companys owned properties are subject to

financing and have been ptedged as collaterat to the Companys

tender that has provided the appticabte financing The Companys

strategy is to own and finance on tong-term basis each property

through separate and distinct specia purpose entity or SPE

with each property and the retated tease or teases on the property

generally representing the sote assets of the SPE and the sote cot

taterat avaitabte to the Companys render in the event the Company

defautts on the debt that finances the property Atso see Note

Hartford Connecticut Property

As of December 31 2010 the Company performed an impairment

anaysis of its investment in the property in Hartford Connecti

cut teased to Traveters Corporation The Company conctuded that

no impairment toss was necessary as the estimated future cash

flows from the investment are in excess of the Companys carry

vaue of the property of $19939 The cash flows are based on

estimates the Company betieves to be reasonabte and con

temptate rent for the remaining tease term pWs managements

estimates of future tease cash flows

Johnston Rhode Island Property

The Company recognized an impairment toss on its Johnston

Rhode Istand property as of December 31 2009 The Company

estimated the fair vatue of the property based on variety of as

sumptions inctuding the time expected to tease up the buitding

expected rents and operating expenses an estimate of amounts

the Company expects to invest to improve the buitding and an

estimate of sate proceeds in connection with potentiM sate of

the property at future date These estimates are highy subjec

tive and coutd differ materiatty from actuat resutts Based on the

Companys impairment anatysis it recognized an impairment toss

of $11923 on this property which is inctuded in Loss on invest

ments in the Consotidated Statement of Operations for the year

ended December 31 2009

As of December 31 2010 the Companys carry vatue of the

Johnston Rhode Istand property was $26812

Omaha Nebraska Properties

At December 31 200g the Company terminated in advance of

the June 2010 scheduted maturity its tease with the sote tenant

at each of the two Omaha Nebraska properties one on West

Dodge Road which is referred to as the Dodge Buitding and

the other on Farnam Street which is referred to as the Land

mark Buitding and assumed the subteases that had been

previousty entered into by the tenant

In connection with the tease termination the Company re

ceived $812 from the tenant to settte various obtigations under

the tease This payment was inctuded as component of Other

revenue on the Companys Consotidated Statement of Operations

for the year ended December 31 2009

Prior to the tease termination the Company had the following

tease-retated tiabitities

$7150 of intangibte tiabitities on the properties represent

ing betow market tease intangibtes and

$1430 of deferred rentat income on the properties repre

senting the aggregate straight-tine rent adjustment for rent

received in advance

In addition to the tease termination payment the Company

recorded the following items of income expense on its Con

sotidated Statement of Operations as component of Other

revenue for the year ended December 31 2009

Extinguishment of intangible tiabilities $7150

Recognition of deferred rentaL income 1430

Write down of building to fair vaLue 8580

Total

The Company performed an impairment anatysis of the proper

ties in connection with the tease termination As it did with the

Johnston Rhode Istand property the Company estimated the fair

vatue of the properties based on variety of assumptions Based
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on the analysis management concluded that write-down to fair

value was appropriate for the two Omaha properties as reflected

above Inclusive of the related income items from the extin

guishment of the lease liabilities there was no net impairment

charge on the properties

As of December 31 2010 the Companys carry value of the

Omaha Nebraska properties was $29618 for the Landmark

Building and $11736 for the Dodge Building

Loans Held for Investment

primarily on an analysis of the tenant including review of tenant

credit ratings including changes in ratings and other measures

of tenant credit quality trends in the tenants industry and

general economic conditions and an analysis of measures of coL

lateral coverage such as an estimate of the nans nan-to-va We

LTV ratio principal amount outstanding divided by estimated

value of the property and its remaining term until maturity

The following table is summary of the Companys loans

held for investment by credit category with the credit ratings of

the underlying tenants presented as of each applicable balance

sheet date

Loans heft for investment at December 31 2010 and December

31 2009 are summarized in the following table These invest

ments consist predominantly of mortgage loans on properties

subject to leases to investment grade tenants As of December

31 2010 the weighted average credit rating of the underlying

tenants was BBB from Standard Poors

Except as described below as of December 31 2010 none

of the Companys loans held for investment were on non-accrual

status or past due go days or more

Principal

Discount Premium

Cost basis

Allowance for loan tosses

Carrying amount of loans

Deferred origination fees net

TotaL $210040

As of December 31 2010 the Companys loan investments car

ried interest rates ranging from 5.OO/o to g.32/0 compared to

5.28/c to 10.00/c as of December 31 2009 At December 31

2010 and December 31 2009 the weighted average effective

interest rate on the Companys loan investments as measured

against its cost basis was 6.7/c and 6.8/c respectively

The Companys loan portfolio is comprised primarily of
fully

amortizing or nearly fully amortizing first mortgage loans on

single tenant commercial real estate Payments of debt service

on the Companys loans is in substantially all cases funded

directly by rent payments typically paid into lockbox account

by the underlying tenant Therefore the Companys monitoring

of the credit quality of its loans held for investment is focused

COST BASIS

12/31/2010 12/31/2009

$39780 $40814

CREDIT RAHNGnn

Investment grade rating of A- or A3

and above

Investment grade rating of beLow or A3 113001 116813

ImpLied investment grade rating 38285 39491

Non-investment grade rating 18881 24038

Unrated 1432

$211385

1444

$222600

Reflects the underlying tenants or lease guarantors actual or implied senior

unsecured credit rating from Standard Paars or equivalent rating if rated only

by Moodys Investors Seivice

The Company implies an investment grade credit rating far tenants that are not

publicly rated by Standard Poors or Moodys but are 100% owned by an

investment grade parent ii for which the Company has obtained private

investment grade rating from either Standard Poors or Moodys or iii are

governmental entity branches or units of another investment grade rated govern

mental entity

As of December 31 2010 the Company has general loan loss

reserve in accordance with FASB ASC 310-10-35-10 of $500

reflecting managements estimate of losses that have probably

occurred in its mortgage loan portfolio The loan loss reserve was

established at December 31 2008 and to date the Company has

not had any actual losses charged against the allowance

As of December 31 2010 the Company had one loan

investment which is on non-accrual status and past due more

than 90 days The loan which has remaining principal outstand

ing of $1444 has been classified as impaired in accordance

with FASB ASC 310-10-35-16 The Company intends to account

for any interest income it collects on the impaired loan on

cost-recovery basis The Company performed an impairment

analysis for the impaired loan as of December 31 2010 and con

cluded that no loss reserve beyond reserve of $444 recorded at

June 30 2009 was warranted The credit category of this loan

in the above table is unrated

DECEMBER31

2010

$214049

2664

211385

944

210441

401

2009

$225242

2642

222600

944

221656

445

$221211
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The following tables summarize certain financial information

with respect to the Companys impaired loan

________
CARRYING AMOUNT_______ AVERAGE CARRYING AMOUNT

BORROWER 12/31/2010 12/31/2009 2010 2009

West End Mortgage Finance Fund L.P $988 $1000 $999 $1987

FO

BORROWER

INTEREST INCO ME RECOGNIZED

TNE YEAR ENDED DEC EMBEB 31 2010 FOR TNE YEAR EN DED DECEMBER 31 2009

ACCRUAL CA5H ACCRUAL CA5N

West End Mortgage Finance Fund L.P $115 $115

During the quarter and year ended December 31 2010 the

Company received $12 in payments on the above loan and the

payments were applied to reduce the carry value of the investment

Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities and

Structuring Fees Receivable

The following is summary of the Companys securities

investments at December 31 2010

NUMBER OF

DESCRIPTION SECURmES FACE VALUE CARRY VALUE AMORTIZED COST FAIR VALUE

GROSS

UNRECOGNIZED GAIN

GROSS

UNRECOGNIZED LOSS

Held to Maturity 16 $153406 $132168 $140275 $113367 $945 $27853

Available For Sale 35781 13797 21754 13797 7958

Total 24 $189187 $145965 $162029 $127164 $945 $35811

The following is summary of the Companys securities

investments at December 31 2009

NUMBER OF

DESCRIPTION SECURmES FACE VALUE CARRY VALUE AMORTIZED COST FAIR VALUE

GROSS

UNRECOGNIZED GAIN

GROSS

UNRECOGNIZED LOSS

Held to Maturity 16 $155556 $140013 $149885 $100262 $433 $50056

Available For Sale 36320 13043 22760 13044 9717

Total 24 $191876 $153056 $172645 $113306 $433 $59773
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detailed schedule of the Companys securities investments at

December 31 2010 follows

Reflects face amount or in the case of the NLFC 1999 LTL Class 10 band amortized cast

The security had an original scheduled maturity in November 2009 and the refare the Company held the security beyond its original scheduled maturity date See Nate 23

All credit ratings in the above table are as of December 31 2010

SCHEDULED

DESCRIPTION 2010 CLASSIFICATION MATURITY DATE

FACE AMOUNT AMORTIZED COST

12/11/2010 12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2009

BSCMS 1999 CLF1 Class rated Available For Sale May 2028 $3326 $3326 $262

BSCMS 1999 CLF1 Class not rated Available For Sate Sep 2025 251 251

CMLBC 2001-CMLB-1 Class rated B- Available For Sale Mar 2024 11907 11907 6978 6836

CMLBC 2001-CMLB-1 Class rated Available For Sale Oct 2025 6383 6383 1149 1538

NLFC 1999-LTL-1 Class 10 rated AAA Available For Sale Jan 2024 4392 5055 4392 5055

WBCMT 2004 CiS Class 18OML-E rated CCC Available For Sale Nov 20122 8000 8000 8008 7979

BACMS 2002-2 Class V-i 7-Eleven Inc

tenant rated AA-

Available For Sale Sep 2019 602 553 493 437

BACMS 2002-2 Class V-2 Sterling JeweLers not rated Available For Sale Jan 2021 920 845 735 652

BACM 2006-4 Class rated CCC Held To Maturity Aug 2016 8000 8000 400 8118

Banc of America 2007-1 Class rated Held To Maturity Feb 2017 500 500 173 156

CALFS 1997-CTLI Class rated B- Held To Maturity Apr 2016 6000 6000 5952 5942

CMLBC 2001-CMLB Class rated BBB Held To Maturity Jul 2022 9526 9526 10033 10056

CMLBC 2001-CMLB-1 Class rated BB- Held To Maturity Feb 2023 9526 9526 8953 8923

JP Morgan 2006-LDP9 Class AJ rated BB Held To Maturity Dec 2016 200 200 99 90

NLFC 1999-LTL-1 Class rated BB Held To Maturity Mar 2022 11081 11081 5926 5707

Wachovia 2007-C30 Class AJ rated Held To Maturity Feb 2017 200 200 95 87

Wachovia 2007-C31 Class AJ rated Held To Maturity May 2017 200 200 96 88

Wachovia 2007-C33 Class AJ rated Held To Maturity Jul 2017 200 200 96 89

WBCMT 2004-C15 Class 18OML-D rated CCC Held To Maturity Nov 20122 15000 isnnn 15013 14957

WBCMT 2006-C27 Class rated BB Held To Maturity Aug 2016 11000 11000 11148 11174

Certificated Mortgage Loan

with Alcatel-Lucent USA Inc as tenant tenant rated

Held To Maturity Sep 2020 34722 35754 35172 36255

Certificated Mortgage Loan

with CVS Corporation as tenant tenant rated BBB
Held To Maturity Jan 2028 17480 18058 17480 18058

Certificated Mortgage Loan

with Koninklljke Ahold N.V as tenant tenant rated BBB

Held To Maturity Jan 2019 8032 8283 8142 8413

Certificated Mortgage Loan with Yahoo Inc as tenant

tenant impUed rating BBB-

Held To Maturity Aug 2026 21739 22028 21496 21773

TotaL $189187 $191876 $162029 $172645
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The Company evatuated each of its securities for other-than-

temporary impairment at December 31 2010 The Company

determined to recognize an other-than-temporary impairment

of $7741 on the BACM 2006-4 Ctass bond which effectivety

reduced the Companys cost basis on the bond to its current

fair value estimate based on broker quotations of $5.00 per

$100.00 of face amount The toss recognized is highty subjec

tive and is based on variety of estimates inctuding estimates

of the amount of any reaLized toss on Loans in the pooL currentLy

in speciat servicing the tength of time it wilt take the speciat

servicer to resotve toans in defaul.t and tiquidate the retated

toan cottaterat the amount of future servicer advances white

toans remain in speciaL servicing and the impact on scheduted

cash flows to the various bond ctasses of appraisat reductions

apptied by the servicer on Loans transferred to speciat servic

ing Scheduted payments on the BACM Ctass bond which

presentty comprise monthty interest coupons on the Companys

face amount are current and beginning in 2011 the Company

intends to emptoy the cost-recovery method for att cash flows

received on the bond

At December 31 2010 the Company atso recognized an

other-than-temporary impairment of $208 on the BSCMS Ctass

bond thereby reducing the Companys cost basis on the bond

to zero The 2010 toss on the BSCMS Ctass bond is in addition

to tosses of $133 during the year ended December 31 2009

and $1000 during the year ended December 31 2008 on the

same bond ctass During the quarter ended December 31 2010

the BSCMS trust stopped paying scheduted interest on the Ctass

bond and the Company does not expect to receive any future

interest or principat payments on this bond ctass

Unreatized gains and tosses on securities at December 31

2010 and December 31 200g inctuded as component of Other

Comprehensive Income Loss on the Companys Consotidated

Batance Sheet consisted of the fottowing

DECEMBER31

2Db 2009

Unreatized gains on securities previousty

availabte for sate

$750 $801

UnreaLized tosses on securities previousty

avaiLabLe for saLe

8851 10673

Unrealized Losses on securities availabLe for saLe 7958 9717

The foLLowing tabte summarizes the Companys securities in an

unrealized loss position as of December 31 2010

In unrealized loss position

12 or more months $98404 $35811 12

The fottowing table summarizes the Companys securities in an

unrealized toss position as of December 31 2009

In unreatized Loss position

Less than 12 months $354 $66

In unrealized toss position

12 or more months 102925 59707 15

Credit ratings on the 12 securities in continuous unreatized

toss position for more than 12 months as of December 31 2010

range from AAA to with weighted average of BB- and those

securities have weighted average maturity of approximatety

7.1 years Except for the other-than-temporary impairment

tosses described above the Company betieves that none of the

unreatized tosses on investment securities are other-than-tem

porary because management expects the Company wilt receive

att contractuat principat and interest reLated to these invest

ments In addition the Company expects to hotd these

securities for period of time sufficient to attow for futt

recovery in fair vatue

At December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 the weighted

average effective interest rate yietd to maturity on adjusted

cost basis on securities was approximatety 8.0% and 7.S/e

respectivety

Structuring fees receivabte of $326 and $1Og4 at December

31 2010 and December 31 2009 respectivety represented fees

earned by the Company in conjunction with the structuring and

subsequent sate of certain net tease Loans Such fees are pay

abte to the Company monthty without interest through March

2020 and accordingty have been discounted based on imputed

interest rates estimated by management to approximate market

Structuring fees receivabte are shown at their amortized cost

AGGREGATE

AGGREGATE UNREALIZED

FAIR VALUE Loss

NUMBER OF

SECURmEN

AGGREGATE

AGGREGATE UNREALIZED

FAIR VALUE LOSS

NUMBER OF

SECURmE5
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Assets Sold and Discontinued Operations

Year Ended December 31 2010

The Company soW one owned property during the year ended

December 31 2010 The property which is t.ocated in Wyomiss

ing Pennsykrania and was teased to Cott Corporation had been

rectassified to discontinued operations at December 31 2009 in

connection with the Companys expected disposat of the asset

The impact of the expected sate as wett as tease termination

with the tenant in separate transaction was recognized at the

time of the rectassification The Company recognized tess on

the tease termination and sate of $1223 which was inctuded in

Loss on investments on the Companys Consotidated Statement

of Operations during the quarter and year ended December 31

2009 The Company atso recognized $354 of impairment tesses

on this property during the year ended December 31 2008

inctuded in Loss on investments representing the Companys

estimate at that time of the dectine in the fair vatee of the

property betew the Companys carry vatue

Year Ended December 31 2009

During September 2009 the Company sotd $22244 outstand

ing principat batance 7.9O/e tong-term mortgage nan on

property in Danvers Massachusetts backed by Koninktijke

Ahotd N.y tease In connection with the sate of this asset the

Company recognized tess of $3807 during the quarter ended

September 30 2009 The tess was inctuded in Loss on invest

ments in the Companys Consotidated Statement of Operations

During August 2009 the Company sotd $9500 of face amount

of 6.65/s pass through certificates backed by teans on two

office buitdings in Sunnyvate Catifornia teased to Yahoo Inc

At the time of the sate the security was ctassified as avaitabte

for sate In connection with the sate of this asset the Company

recognized tess of $2105 during the quarter ended September

30 2009 The tess was incteded in Loss on investments in the

Companys Consotidated Statement of Operations

During Aprit 2009 the Company sotd the OSHA technotegi

cat taboratory facility
in Sandy Utah teased to the United States

Government In connection with the sate of this property the

Company recognized tess of $2853 during the quarter ended

March 31 2009 The tess was incteded in Loss on investments

in the Companys Consotidated Statement of Operations Operat

ing resutts from this property are reflected as discontinued op

erations in the Companys Consotidated Statement of Operations

During Aprit 2009 the Company sotd majority participation

interest in teng-term mortgage toan on property in Framing

ham Massachusetts backed by Lowes Companies Inc tease

During the quarter ended March 31 2009 the Company recorded

toss of $4397 in connection with the sate of this toan The

toss was inctuded in Loss on investments in the Companys

Consotidated Statement of Operations
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Fair Value

FASB ASC 825-10-50-10 requires disclosure of fair value informa

tion about all of the Companys financial instruments whether

or not these instruments are measured at fair value on the

Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet For purposes of FASB ASC

825-10-50-10 substantially all of the Companys assets and Ii

abilities other than its owned property investments are classified

as financial instruments

The Company estimates that the fair values of cash and cash

equivalents other assets accounts payable accrued expenses

and other liabilities and dividends payable approximate their

carrying values due to the short-term maturities of these items

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the

Companys other financial instruments at December 31 2010

and December 31 2009 are as follows

NOTIONAL AMOUNT

12/31/2010 12/31/2009

ES11MATEO FAIR VALUE

12/31/2010 12/31/2009

The fair values indicated above are indicative of the interest

rate and credit spread environment as of December 31 2010 and

December 31 2009 respectively and may not take into con

sideration the effects of subsequent interest rate credit spread

fluctuations or changes in the ratings of the underlying tenants

on the related leases The methodologies used and key assump

tions made to estimate fair values are as follows

Loans heLd for investmentThe fair value of the Companys

fixed-rate nan portfolio is estimated with discounted cash

flow analysis utilizing scheduled cash flows and discount

rates estimated by management to approximate those that

willing buyer and seller might use

CommerciaL mortgage-backed securitiesThe fair values

of the securities reflect managements best estimate and

require considerable amount of judgment and assumptions

Management evaluates variety of inputs and then estimates

fair value based on those inputs The primary inputs evalu

ated by management are broker quotations collateral values

subordination levels and liquidity of the security

Structuring fees receivabLeThe fair value of structuring

fees receivable is estimated with discounted cash flow

analysis utilizing scheduled cash flows and discount rates

estimated by management to approximate those that

willing buyer and seller might use

Credit agreementManagement believes that the stated

interest rate which floats based on short-term interest rates

approximates market rates when compared to similar credit

facilities with similar credit risk As such the fair value of

these obligations is estimated to be equal to the outstanding

principal amount

Mortgages on reaL estate investments coLLateraLized

debt obLigations and secured term LoanThe fair value of

mortgages payable on real estate investments collateralized

debt obligations and the secured term loan is estimated us

ing discounted cash flow analysis based on managements

estimates of market interest rates For mortgages where the

Company has an early prepayment right management also

considers the prepayment amount to evaluate the fair value

CARRYING AMOUNT

12/31/2010 12/31/2009

Assets

Loans held for investment $210441 $221656 $214049 $225242 $223099 $219185

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 145965 153056 189187 191876 127164 113306

Structuring fees receivable 326 1094 N/A N/A 326 1094

LiabiLities

Mortgages on real estate investments $928429 $943811 $925264 $939616 $979510 $902408

Collateralized debt obligations 254210 263310 254361 263500 220907 150114

Credit agreement 105345 126262 105345 126262 105345 126262

Secured term loan 101880 114070 101880 114070 95145 98641

Convertible senior notes 33926 49452 35009 52444 35004 46956

Other long-term debt 30930 30930 30930 30930 28095 21925
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ConvertibLe senior notes The carry value of convertible

senior notes reflects the impact of accounting guidance for

the notes adopted as of January 200g See Note The

fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow analysis

based on managements estimates of market interest rates

and indications of market yields where available

Other Long-term debtThe fair value of the Companys

other tong-term debt is estimated using discounted cash

flow analysis based on managements estimates of market

interest rates

On January 2008 the Company adopted accounting guidance

codified at FASB ASC 820 that defines fair value establishes

framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands dis

closures about fair value measurements The guidance does not

impose any new requirements around which assets and liabilities

are to be measured at fair value and instead applies to asset

and liability balances required or permitted to be measured at

fair value under existing accounting pronouncements

The guidance applies principally to the Companys securities

classified as available for sate as that is the only asset or liabil

ity
which the Company measures on recurring basis at lair value

FASB ASC 820-10-35-37 establishes valuation hierarchy

based on the transparency of inputs used in the valuation of

an asset or liability Classification is based on the lowest level

of inputs that is significant to the lair value measurement The

valuation hierarchy contains three levels

LeveL Quoted prices are available in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities at the reporting date As of

December 31 2010 the Company has not classified any of its

securities available for sale as Level

LeveL Pricing inputs other than quoted prices included

within Level that are observable for substantially the full

term of the asset or liability Level assets include quoted

prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets

quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities that

are not active and inputs other than quoted prices that are

observable such as models or other valuation methodologies

As of December 31 2010 the Company has not classified any

of its securities available for sale as Level

LeveL Inputs reflect managements best estimate of

what market participants would use in pricing the asset or

liability at the measurement date These valuations require

considerable amount of judgment and assumptions As of

December 31 2010 the Company has classified all of its

securities available for sale as Level Management evaluates

variety of inputs and then estimates fair value based on

those inputs The primary inputs evaluated by management

are broker quotations observable collateral values observ

able subordination levels observable and liquidity of the

security unobservable These inputs are the factors em

ployed by management and to its knowledge other parties in

determining where to price actual transactions The Companys

securities available for sale are unique in that in most cases

the Company owns the entire bond class As result the

broker quotes obtained by the Company reflect expected pric

ing rather than actual trades and may also reflect distressed

transactions in inactive markets Therefore the Company be

lieves Level is the appropriate classification in the fair value

hierarchy for the Companys available for sale securities

The table below presents the fair value of the Companys

securities available for sale as of December 31 2010 aggregated

by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those

measurements fall

QUOTED PRICES IN

ACTIVE MARKETS SIGNIFICANT

FOR IDENTICAL OTHER SIGNIFICANT

ASSETS AND ORSERVARLE UNORSERVARLE RALANCE AT

LIARILITIES INPUTS INPUTS DECEMRER 31

LEVEL LEVEL LEVEL 2010

Assets

Securities

available for sale $13797 $13797
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The following tabLe summarizes the change in the fair vaue for

Lever items for the years ended December 31 2010 and

December 31 2009

Other Assets Debt Obligations

Other assets as of December 31 2010 and December 31 2009

consisted of the following

ReceivabLes and accrued interest

Prepaid expenses and deposits

Reserve accounts

Funds with CDO trustee pending

distribution

Restricted cash

Amounts held by servicer

Accrued rentaL income

Debt issuance costs net

Deferred leasing costs net

Investment in statutory trust

Other

TotaL

Credit Agreement

The Company has financed certain of its portfoho assets pursuant

to credit agreement it entered into with Wells Fargo Bank N.A

as successor to Wachovia Bank N.A in April 2008 The Compa

ny and Wells Fargo entered into an amendment and restatement

of the credit agreement in uy 2010 which among other things

estabLished maximum revolving credit commitment of

$140000

extended the maturity date of the credit agreement to

JuLy 16 2013 from ApriL 28 2011 and

set the Companys interest rate on its borrowings at one-

month LIBOR plus 275 basis points an increase from one-

month LIBOR plus 250 basis points at June 30 2010

Also in connection with the July 2010 amendment and restate

ment the Company made $1341g principa payment to the

lender and agreed to repay another $10000 of principa in four

equal quarterly installments beginning on October 2010 the

first two installments of which have been paid The Companys

outstanding borrowings under the agreement were $105345 as

of December 31 2010

The agreement is floating rate LIBOR based facility As of

December 31 201D the Companys effective financing rate on

the credit agreement was 3.3%

YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31 2010

YEAR ENDED

DECEMBER 31 2009

Securities avaiLabLe for sate

Beginning baLance $13D44 $13483

Gains Losses included in net income loss

Included in loss on investments 2D8 133

Included in interest income 3D9 455

Gains included in other comprehensive income 1758 559

Purchases saLes issuances and settlements net 1106 1320

Ending baLance $13797 $13044

DECEMBER31

2010

$5553

2157

15598

4697

1126

666

39506

5999

1767

930

720

$82799

2009

$11304

1267

14868

4697

276

261

35317

7653

718

930

988

$78279
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The Companys borrowings under the credit agreement are

secured by combination of first mortgage loan investments

intercompany mortgage loans on owned property investments

commercial mortgage-backed securities and first lien on the

Companys ownership interest in the real property located in

Johnston Rhode Island The Companys obligations under the

credit agreement are also
fully recourse to all of its other assets

In the event Wells Fargo determines in its sole discretion that

the value of the Companys collateral assets has declined includ

ing as resuft of an underlying tenant credit rating downgrade

or other adverse tenant-credit event Wells Fargo may require the

Company to prepay portion of its borrowings provided that

Wells Fargo may not reduce the value of any of the Companys

collateral other than CMBS securities due to general credit spread

or interest rate fluctuations

The Company may utilize the undrawn amount of the lenders

revolving credit commitment to finance assets approved by the

lender in its sole discretion at an advance rate of 60% of the

assets value as determined by the lender The Company drew

For the years ended December 31 2010 December 31 200g and

December 31 2008 the following interest rates applied with

respect to the Companys credit agreement borrowings

DECEMBER 31

$15610 under the credit agreement during December 2010 to

fund portion of the purchase price for the Cooper Tire and Rub

ber Company asset discussed at Note

The Company is required to comply with the following

financial covenants under the credit agreement minimum liquid

ity basically cash and cash equivalents of at least $12000

minimum consolidated tangible net worth basically stockhold

ers equity before accumulated depreciation and amortization of

at least $360000 plus 75/e of the aggregate net proceeds from

equity offerings or capital contributions after July 16 2010

maximum corporate leverage basically total liabilities divided by

total assets before accumulated depreciation and amortization

of 80/e and minimum interest coverage basically EBITDA or

net income before income taxes interest expense depreciation

and amortization divided by interest expense of lose/c As of

December 31 2010 the Company was in compliance with the

above financial covenants

Amounts related to the Companys credit agreement as of

December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 were as follows

CD LI ATE RAL

CARRY VALUE

COLLATERAL

CARRY VALUE

2010 2009 20DB

Weighted average effective financing rate 3.66/c 3.71/s 5.44/c

Average One Month LIBOR rate O.27/ 0.35/s 2.91/c

AT DECEMBER 31 2010

BORROWINGS

AT DECEMBER 31 2009

BORROWINGS

Credit Agreement

Loans held for investment $6452 $11195 $6157 $11481

Intercompany mortgage Loans and investments in CapLease COO 95609 130225 115851 141332

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 3284 11141 3648 11485

Owned property 26812 28131

TotaL $105345 $179373 $126262 $192429
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Mortgages Notes on Real Estate In vestments

The Company has financed most of its owned real properties with

third party mortgage debt The Companys mortgage notes payable

are summarized in the following table

DECEMBER 31 2010 DECEMBER 31 2009

EFFECTIVE

PROPERTY LEVEL DEBT FIXED RATE FACE CAREY VALUE FACE CAREY VALUE COUPON FINANCING RATE MATURITY

Abbott Laboratories $14710 $14710 $14920 $14920 5.11/a 5.2/a Aug 2015

Waukegan IL

Aetna Life Insurance Company 16043 16043 16043 16043 5.63/a 5.7/a Dec 2016

Fresno CA

ALlstate Insurance Company 19721 19721 19981 19981 5.68/a 5.7/a Jan 2016

Chariatte NC

Allstate Insurance Company 20996 20996 21273 21273 5.68/a 5.8/a Jan 2016

Raanoke VA

AMVESCAP PLC 43700 43700 43700 43700 6.03% 6.1/a Jul 2016

Denver CO

Aon Corporation 60870 60870 62313 62313 5.23/a 5.8/a Nov 2014

Gienview IL

Bunge North America Inc 6262 6262 6262 6262 5.45/a 5.5/a May 2017

Fart Worth JX

Cadbury Holdings Limited 33237 33237 33881 33881 5.26/a 53/a Mar 2015

Whippany NJ

Capital One Financial Corporation 19850 19850 20277 20277 5.24/a 5.3/a May 2013

Piano JX

Choice Hotek International Inc 28025 28025 29094 29094 5.30/a 5.3/s May 2013

Silver Spring
MD

County of Yolo California 10332 10332 10332 10332 5.68/a 5.7/s Feb 2017

Woodland CA

Farmers Group Inc 25620 25620 25620 25620 5.81/a 5.8/s Jan 2017

Simi Valley CA

Farmers New WorLd Life Insurance Company 30200 30200 30200 30200 5.69/a 5.7/a Jan 2016

/lercer Island WA

General Motors Financial Company Inc 27190 26937 27682 27395 5.28/a 5.5/s Sep 2017

Arlington IX

III Industries Inc 40393 40393 40902 40902 5.33/a 5.4/a Jun 2015

Herndon VA

Johnson Controls Inc 16200 16200 16200 16200 5.48/a 5.5/a Jan 2017

Largo FL

KoninkLijke Ahold N.y 14040 14040 14.246 14.246 6.05/a 6.1/a Jul 2016

Levittown PA

Lowes Companies Inc 41892 41892 42125 42125 5.10/a 5.4/a Jul 2015

Ahso Viea CA

NestlØ Holdings Inc 117000 117000 117000 117000 6.32/a 5.7% Aug 2012

Breinigsville PA Fart Wayne IN and Lathrap CA

Omnicom Group Inc 12784 12784 13080 13080 5.24/a 5.3/a May 2013

Irving IX

Pearson PLc 15818 15818 16009 16009 5.84/a 5.9/a May 2016

Lawrence KS

1-Mobile USA Inc 10749 10749 10885 10885 5.59/a 5.7/a Dec 2016

Nashrilla TN

Continued
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PROPERTY LEVEL DEBT FIXED RATE

The TraveLers Corporation

Hartford CT

The TraveLers Corporation

Hartford CT

Tiffany Co

Parsippany NJ

Time Warner Entertainment Company L.P

Milwaukee WI

TJX Companies Inc

Philadelphia PA

United States Government DEA
Birmingham AL

United States Government EPA
Kansas City KS

United States Government FBI
Albany NY

United States Government FBI
Birminghuu AL

United States Government NIH
Bethesda MD

United States Government SSA
Austin Pt

United States Government VA
Ponce PR

Watgreen Co

Pennsauken NJ

WaLgreen Co

Portsmouth VA

S.4Io Oct 2022

S.7Io Nov 2016

5.3010 Sep 2015

5.6/o Sep 2015

S.5Io Sep 2015

6.4Io Apr 2016

6.0Io Oct 2016

The effective rate is the Companys approximate borrowing cost including the effect of hedge gains or losses and other deferred financing costs associated with the related

borrowing

The mortgage notes are non-recourse to the Company subject to

limited non-recourse exceptions and are secured by the respec

tive properties and an assignment of the relevant leases on the

properties See Note regarding the separate and distinct nature

of the Companys SPEs The Companys hook value before accumu

lated depreciation and amortization on owned properties encum

bered with mortgage debt aggregated $1435087 at December

31 2010 and $1431g47 at December 31 2009

Collateralized Debt Obligations

During March 2005 the Company issued collateralized debt

obligation or COO The COO is an entirely fixed rate on-balance

sheet financing The Company aggregated approximately $300000

face amount of assets and then transferred these assets into

wholly-owned securitization vehicle and initially issued $285000

face amount of multi-class notes and $15000 face amount of pre

ferred equity through the securitization vehicle The assets serve

as collateral for the Companys obligations under the notes The

securitizatinn vehicle is an SPE with its business limited to the

issuance of the notes and the preferred equity the acquisition of

the collateral and certain other related matters The net amount of

the debt the Company initially issued was $268130 inclusive of

$370 discount to face as the Company retained the three most

junior note classes aggregating face amount of $16500 and the

full $15000 face amount of preferred equity

The COO notes have stated maturity in January 2040

although the actual life of the notes is expected to be substan

tially shorter The Companys weighted average effective financing

DECEMBER 31 2010 DECEMBER 31 200e

MATURITY

Sep 2011

7.7/o Oct 2011

5.3Io Oct 2015

5.6Io Dec 2016

5.6Io Mar 2016

5.4k Sep 2015

PACE CARRY VALUE

$4856 $4925

17251 17656

58274 58274

17500 17500

69547 69547

11086 11086

19059 21694

10137 10137

18508 18508

59459 59459

5291 5297

4108 4836

1306 1365

2644 2766

EFFECTIVE

FACE CARRY VALUE COUPON FINANCING RATE

$10298 $10614 9.80Io 5.5Io

15499 16360 10.16/c

58400 58400 5.33Io

11500 11500 5550/

10209 70209 5.51k

11242 11242 5.23%

19616 22535 1.57/o

10131 10137 S.5O/

18141 18741 5.23Io

60929 60929 5.32%

5312 5372 5.23/o

5308 5477 1.3O/o

1418 1554 1.65Io

2196 2937 7.20/o

TotaL $925264 $928429 $939616 $943811

6.2Io Jul 2018
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rate inclusive of original issue discount and debt issuance and

hedge costs on its COO is approximately 5.6/a The COO debt is

non-recourse to the Company but is secured by the collateral as

sets The Company reduced the debt outstanding under the CDO

by repurchasing $5000 of the Class CDO notes during the year

ended December 31 2009 Amounts related to the Companys

CD0 as of December 31 2010 were as follows

COLLATERAL

BORROWINGS CARRY VALUE

Loans held for investment $150587 $163463

Intercompany mortgage loans on 30521 33131

CapLease properties

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 73102 79353

TotaL $254210 $275947

Secured Term Loan

During December 2007 the Company completed $129521 se

cured term loan with BC Bank N.y Upon closing of the financing

the Company pledged approximately $163145 principal amount

of collateral to secure its obligations under the loan The inter

est coupon on the loan is fixed at 5.8l/ annually until the loan

matures in January 2018 The Companys effective financing rate

on the loan is approximately 6.0/a annually inclusive of hedge

and closing costs The loan is non-recourse to the Company

subject to limited non-recourse exceptions Amounts related to the

secured term loan as of December 31 2010 were as follows

COLLATERAL

BORROWINGS CARRY VALUE

Loans held for investment $25390 $35211

Intercompany mortgage loans on 30498 41420

CapLease properties

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 45992 52814

TotaL $101880 $129445

Convertible Senior Notes

During October 2007 CapLease issued $75000 principal amount

of 7.SO/c convertible senior notes due 2027 The notes represent

general unsecured recourse obligations of CapLease and rank

equally in right of payment with all of its other existing and

future obligations that are unsecured and unsubordinated The

notes are jointly and severally fully and unconditionally guaran

teed on senior unsecured basis by four of CapLeases subsidiar

ies Caplease LP Caplease Debt Funding LP Caplease Services

Corp and Caplease Credit LLC

Since original issuance CapLease has repurchased an ag

gregate of $39991 principal amount of the notes and therefore

as of December 31 2010 the Company had $35009 principal

amount of convertible senior notes outstanding

As of January 2009 the Company adopted accounting

guidance codified primarily at FASB ASC 470 that retrospec

tively changed the accounting for the convertible senior notes

The guidance affected the accounting for the Companys

convertible senior notes by requinng the initial proceeds from

their sale to be allocated between
liability component and an

equity component in manner that results in interest expense

on the liability component at the Companys estimated noncon

vertible debt borrowing rate on the date of issue The initial

bifurcation between the
liability

and equity components of the

convertible senior notes at January 2009 was $67761 and

$7239 respectively The equity component carry value remained

at $7239 at December 31 2009 and was reduced to $6189 at

December 31 2010 with the decline caused primarily by the

Companys repurchase of convertible senior notes atpar as part

of the note tender offer the Company closed during the quarter

ended June 30 2010

Convertible senior notes included the following amounts at

December 31 2010 and December 31 200g

2010 2009

Convertible notes principal $35009 $52444

Unamortized debt discount 1083 2992

Convertible senior notes net $33926 $49452

The remaining debt discount will be amortized over the next 22

months ending in October 2012

The following table summarizes the Companys repurchases of

convertible senior notes during the years ended December 31

2008 2009 and 2010

GUARTER EHDED

N0m0NAL AMOUNT

OF NOTES

REPURCHASED

PURCHASE

PRICE

GAIN LOSS ON

EXTINGUISHMENT

OF DEBT

December 31 2008 $3240 $1179 $1713

March 31 2009 5500 2090 2821

June 30 2009 12316 6512 4581

September 30 2009 1500 949 415

March 31 2010 2500 2400 96

June 30 2010 13500 13500 184

September 30 2010 1435 1435 14

DECEMBER31
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December 31 2DID 2D09 and 2DD8

The notes bear interest at an annua fixed rate of 7.SD/a and are

scheduted to mature on October 2027 uness earNer con-

vet-ted redeemed or repurchased The Companys effective financ

ing rate on the notes which includes the effect of the offenng

discount and expenses of the transaction is approximatety 8.1%

The Companys effective interest rate on the
LiabiLity component

of the instrument as measured under the January 2009 ac

counting guidance was 10.1/a 11.5/a and 11.6/s respectivety

at December 31 2010 December 31 2009 and December 31

2008 The Company recorded interest expense retating to the

convertibte senior notes under the January 2009 accounting

guidance of $4063 $5666 and $7159 respectivety for the

years ended December 31 2010 December 31 2009 and Decem

ber 31 2008

HoWers may require CapLease to repurchase their notes

in whote or in part on October 2012 October 2017 and

October 2022 for cash price equat to 1OO/ of the principat

amount of the notes to be repurchased pus any accrued and

unpaid interest

HoWers wiR atso have the right to require CapLease to repur

chase their notes in whote or in part for cash if change of

controt or termination of trading occurs prior to October 2012

The repurchase price will be 1OO/ of the principat amount of the

notes to be repurchased ptus any accrued and unpaid interest

The hotders may convert their notes into cash shares

of CapLease common stock or any combination thereof at

CapLeases option under certain circumstances including in

connection with certain change of controt events defined in the

note indenture each change of contro or transaction

that resutts in CapLeases common stock or other securities into

which the notes are convertibW not being approved for Listing on

U.S nationat securities exchange termination of trading

Upon conversion if CapLease does not etect otherwise it will

settte its conversion obLigation in shares of its common stock

The initiat conversion rate for each $1 principat amount of

notes is 88.3704 shares of CapLeases common stock which is

equivatent to an initiat conversion price of approximately $11.32

per share As of December 31 2010 the if-converted vatue

of the convertibte senior notes does not exceed the principat

amount of the notes The initiat conversion rate will be adjusted

for certain events including in the event CapLease makes any

quarterly cash dividend in excess of $0.20 per share

CapLease has the right to redeem the notes in whote or in

part for cash at any time or from time to time on or after Octo

ber 2D12 Prior to October 2012 CapLease may atso redeem

the notes to preserve its status as reat estate investment trust

The redemption price will be 100% of the principat amount of

the notes to be redeemed ptus any accrued and unpaid interest

Trust Preferred Securities

In December 2005 the Operating Partnership issued $30000

in aggregate principat amount of fixed/floating rate preferred

securities through its wholly-owned subsidiary Captease Statu

tory Trust The trust preferred securities represent an unsecured

subordinated recourse debt obLigation of the Company and

require quarterly interest payments catcutated at fixed interest

rate equat to 76RIa
per annum through January 30 2016 and

subsequentty at variabte interest rate equat to LIBOR ptus

2.60/o per annum The securities must be redeemed on Janu

ary 30 2036 and may be redeemed in whote or in part at par

at the Companys option beginning on January 30 2011 The

Companys effective financing rate on the trust preferred securi

ties inclusive of deferred issuance costs is approximatety 8.3/o

per annum

Scheduted principat amortization and balloon payments for

all of the Companys outstanding debt obLigations as of

December 31 2010 for the next five years and thereafter are

as follows

SCHEDULED BALLOON

AMORTIZATION PAYMENTS TOTAL

2011 $49219 $18861 $68080

2012 483D4 152009 200313

2013 56389 141349 197738

2014 45769 53479 99248

2015 23725 443625 467350

Thereafter 40297 381694 421991

$263703 $1191017 $1454720
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10 Accounts payable accrued expenses and other

liabilities

Accounts payable accrued expenses and other liabilities as of

December 31 2010 and December 31 2009 consisted of the

following

DECEMBER31

201D 2DDB

Accounts payabLe and other Liabilities $4105 $1039

Accrued interest 7131 7623

Accrued expenses 5559 5487

Unearned rental income 4339 4551

TotaL $21134

11 Risk Management Transactions

$18700

As part of its financing strategy the Company may use interest

rate swap transactions to manage its exposure to interest rate

fluctuations on assets not yet financed with long-term fixed rate

debt During the years ended December 31 2010 and December

31 2009 the Company had no open interest rate swap positions

During most of 2008 the Company had single open interest

rate swap intended to manage the Companys exposure to inter

est rate movements for planned long-term financing of assets

financed on its credit agreement with Wells Fargo Bank During

November 2008 the Company closed the swap as result of un

precedented credit market dislocations and associated declines in

the 10-Year Treasury and other benchmark market interest rates

During the quarter ended December 31 2008 the full amount

of the realized loss on closing the swap of $15216 along with

$2862 of related losses previously deferred in Other Comprehen

sive Income/Loss on the Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet

was charged directly to the Companys Consolidated Statement

of Operations as the swap position no longer represented an

effective cash flow hedge under applicable accounting guidance

See Note In addition during 2008 and prior to closing the

swap position as described above the Company had another

$1418 of losses on the position recorded through the Companys

Consolidated Statements of Operations These losses primar

ily
include hedge ineffectiveness resulting from changes in

managements estimates of when the related hedged debt was

expected to be issued and ii the shape of the yield curve The

above losses are included in Gain loss on derivatives on the

Companys Consolidated Statements of Operations

As of December 31 2010 the Company had $4152 of net

realized losses on derivatives deferred on the Companys Con

solidated Balance Sheet as component of Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income/Loss related to prior interest rate swaps

for certain of the Companys long-term debt issuances Within

the next 12 months the Company estimates that $562 of these

losses will be reclassified to the Companys Consolidated State

ments of Operations as additional interest expense

The Cumpany classifies the cash flows from derivatives as

financing activity on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

12 Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved from time to time in litigation arising

in the ordinary course of business The Company is not currently

involved in any matter which management believes will have

material adverse effect on the Companys business results of

operations or financial condition However periodicsettlements

and/or professional or other fees and expenses related to any

matter could have an adverse impact on our results of operations

in the quarterly or annual period in which they are recognized

As an owner of commercial real estate the Company is

subject to potential environmental costs At December 31 2010

the Company was not aware of any environmental concerns that

would have material adverse effect on the Companys business

results of operations or financial condition

As of December 31 2010 the Company was obligated under

non-cancelable operating lease agreements for office space and

copy machines The future minimum lease payments under these

lease agreements at December 31 2010 were

2011 $768

2012 766

2013 578

2014 13

2015

Thereafter

132

Included in general and administrative expense is rent expense

of approximately $546 $657 and $669 for the years ended

December 31 2010 December 31 2009 and December 31 2008

respectively
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13 Stockholders Equity

Stock Issuances

CapLeases authorized capital stock consists of 500000000

shares of common stock $0.01 per share and 100000000

shares of preferred stock $0.01 per share As of December 31

2010 CapLease had 57471268 shares of common stock and

3204900 shares of 8.125/e Series cumulative redeemable

preferred stock outstanding

Common Stock

The following table summarizes CapLeases common stock issu

ances from its incorporation date October 31 2003 through

Oecember 31 2010

DATE

OFFEEING PRICE NET PROCEEDS

SHARES ACTUAL OR AVERAGE AFTER EXPENSES TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION

Pre-IPO Capitalization

November 2003

March 2004

139134

3968800

$0.10 $14 Initial
capitalization issuances to current and former employees of

the Operating Partnership

N.A NA Initial
capitalization issuances of CapLease common stock in

exchange for the acquisition of the Operating Partnership from its

former omners

N.A Issuance of CapLease common stock in exchange for the same number

of Operating Partnership Units

$10.38 $11538 Issuances of CapLease common stock through CapLease Dividend Rein

vestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan

$7.95 $9692 Issuances of CapLease common stock through CapLease Dividend Rein

vestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan

$3.60 $2910 Issuances of CapLease common stock through CapLease Dividend Rein

vestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan

$5.85 $1 Issuances of CapLease common stock through CapLease Dividend Rein

vestment and Direct Stock Purchase Plan

$11.91 $1851 Issuances of CapLease common stock through at the market

offering ATM program

$3.49 $8136 Issuances of CapLease common stock through ATM program

$4.86 $10117 Issuances of CapLease common stock through ATM program

$10.50 $221778 Initial
public offering of CapLease common stock

$10.55 $57282 Follom on public offering
of CapLease common stock

$10.75 $104682 Follom-on public offering of CapLease common stock

$7.59 $9957 Direct issuance of CapLease common stock to institutional buyer

$4.77 $14985 Direct issuance of CapLease common stock to institutional buyer

N.A.I

Marketed Offerings

March 2004 23000000

May 2006 5747000

May/June 2007 10350000

Direct PLacements

September 2008 1317524

March 2010 3144654

OP Unit Exchange

September 2008 107131

DRIP/DSP Plan Issuances

Various 2007 1111641

Various 2008 1222855

Various 2009 807661

Various 2010 103

ATM Issuances

November/December 2006 160900

Various 2009 2410800

Various 2010 2137500

Continued
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DATE

OFFERING PRICE NET PROCEEDN

NHAEES ACTUAl OR AVERAGE AFTER EXPENSES TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION

CapLease 2004 Stock Ince ntive PLan Awards

Various 2DD4 2010 3369955 N.A N.A Issuances of CapLease common stock through CapLease 2004 Stock

Incentive Plan See Note 14

Less Stock Repurchases

October 2007 1524390 $9.84 $7976 Repurchase of CapLease common stock in connection with convertible

senior note issuance

TotaL 57471268

Units were originally issued at price of $11.40
per

unit

8.125% Series CumuLative RedeemabLe Preferred Stock

In October 2005 CapLease issued 1400000 shares of 8.125%

Series cumulative redeemable preferred stock in pubhc of

fering at price to the public of $25.00 per share The Com

pany received net proceeds in the transaction after deducting

unrierwriting discounts anri commissions anri offering expenses

of approximately $33657

On March 31 2010 CapLease issued 1800000 shares of

g125e/0 Series cumulative redeemable preferred stock in pub

lic offering at price of $23.06 per share resulting in an effec

tive annual yield of 9.0OYo The Company received net proceeds

in the transaction after deducting underwriting discounts and

commissions and offering expenses of approximately $40109

including $884 of accrued dividends

During the quarter ended December 31 2010 CapLease is

sued an aggregate of 4300 shares of 8.125/e Series cumula

tive redeemable preferred stock through its at the market offer

ing program with Brinson Patrick Securities Corporation at an

average price of $24.95 per share for net proceeds of $106 For

the full year ended December 31 2010 CapLease issued an ag

gregate of 4900 shares of 8.125% Series cumulative redeem

able preferred stock through this program at an average price of

$24.96 per share for net proceeds of $120

The Series preferred stock ranks senior to CapLeases

common stock and junior to all of the Companys existing and

future indebtedness Investors in the Series preferred stock

are entitled to receive cumulative cash distributions at rate

of 8.125e/e per annum of the $25.00 liquidation preference per

share equivalent to $2.03125 per annum per share The annual

dividend rate will increase to g5e/o if the Series preferred

stock is delisted from the New York Stock Exchange following

change of control of CapLease

If CapLease liquidates dissolves or wind ups its operations

the Series preferred stock holriers will have the right to receive

$25.00 per share plus all accrued and unpaid dividends whether

or not declared to the date of payment before any payment

is made to CapLeases common stock holders The Series pre

ferred stock does not have any stated maturity date and is not

subject to any sinking fund or mandatory redemption provisions

CapLease may redeem the Series preferred stock for cash at its

option in whole or from time to time in part at redemption

price of $25.00 per share plus accrued and unpaid dividends

whether or not declared to the redemption date

Holders of Series preferred stock generally have no voting

rights However Series preferred stock holders will have lim

ited voting rights if CapLease fails to pay dividends on the Series

preferred stock for six or more quarterly periods whether or

not consecutive or if CapLease issues shares of capital stock

senior to the Series preferred stock or makes changes to the

terms of the Series preferred stock that would be materially

adverse to the rights of holders of Series preferred stock

The Series preferred stock is not convertible into or ex

changeable for CapLeases common stock or any of the Companys

other securities or property
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Dividends 14 Stock Based Compensation

The foRowing tabe summarizes the dividend history on shares of

CapLease common stock for the periods indicated The Company adopted stock incentive pbn for its empoyees

and directors during March 2004 in connection with its initia

DIVIDEND TOTAL

QUARTER ENDED RECORD DATE PAYMENT DATE PER SHARE AMOUNT pubhc offering 5123000 shares of common stock are autho

rized for issuance under the stock pbn As of December 31
12/31/2007 12/31/2007 1/15/2008 $0.20 $8870

2010 the Company had awarded 336gg55 shares of common
3/31/2008 3/31/2008 4/15/2008 0.20 8949

stock under the stock pan all in the form of stock awards to ex
6/30/2008 6/30/2008 7/15/2008 0.20 8973

ecutive officers other employees and directors of the Company
9/30/2008 9/30/2008 10/15/2008 0.20 9475

As of December 31 2010 the Company has not awarded any
3/31/2009 3/31/2009 4/15/2009 0.05 2396

options stock appreciation rights or other stock based compen
6/30/2009 6/30/2009 7/15/2009 0.05 2433

sation under the stock pbn
9/30/2009 9/30/2009 10/15/2009 0.05 2577

summary of the Companys activity under the stock plan from

12/31/2009 12/31/2009 1/15/2010 0.06 3103
January 200g through December 31 2010 is presented beow

3/31/2010 3/31/2010 4/15/2010 0.06 3431

NUMRER Of SHARES

6/30/2010 6/30/2010 7/15/2010 0.06 3431

Stock Awards at January 2009 1791195
9/30/2010 9/30/2010 10/15/2010 0.06 3431

12/31/2010 12/31/2010 1/18/2011 0.065 3736
Granted During the Year Ended December 31 2009 llO7600U1

Forfeited During the Year Ended December 31 2009 8340

The Company did not declare dividend on CapLease common Stock Awards at January 2010 2890455

stock during the fourth quarter of 2008
Granted During the Year Ended December 31 2010 47950012

The following table summarizes the dividend history on Stock Awards at December 31 2010 3369955

shares of CapLease Series preferred stock for the periods

Shares are srheduled to vest between Marrh 2010 and March 2014 but will

indicated
generally be forfeited if the recipient either terminates his employment with

DIVIDEND TOTAL the Company or ceases to be member of CapLeases board of directors at any

QUARTER ENDED RECORD DATE PAYMENT DATE PER SHARE AMOUNT
______________________________________________________________________ time prior to the vesting date Vesting of an aggregate of 523572 shares is

12/31/2007 12/31/2007 1/15/2008 $D.5D78125 $711 also subject to satisfaction of objective and subjective performance criteria to

be determined by CapLeases Compensation Committee

3/31/2008 3/31/2008 4/15/2008 0.5078125 711

Shares are scheduled to vest between March 2011 and March 2015 but will

6/30/2008 6/30/2008 7/15/2008 0.5078125 711
generally be forfeited if the recipient either terminates his employment with

9/30/2008 9/30/2008 10/15/2008 0.5078125 711 the Company or ceases to be member of CapLeases board of directors at any

time prior to the vesting date Vesting of an aggregate of 241125 shares is

12/31/2008 12/31/2008 1/15/2009 0.5078125 711
also subject to satisfaction of objective and subjective performance criteria to

3/31/2009 3/31/2009 4/15/2009 0.5078125 711 be determined by CapLeases Compensation Committee

6/30/2009 6/30/2009 7/15/2009 0.5078125 711

9/30/2009 9/30/2009 10/15/2009 0.5078125 711

12/31/2009 12/31/2009 1/15/2010 0.5078125 711

3/31/2010 3/31/2010 4/15/2010 0.5078125 1625

6/30/2010 6/30/2010 7/15/2010 0.5078125 1625

9/30/2010 9/30/2010 10/15/2010 0.5078125 1625

12/31/2010 12/31/2010 1/18/2011 0.5078125 1627
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The Company uses the dosing stock price on the grant date as

its estimate of the fair value of the award

As the immediately preceding table indicates not all

Company share awards have been valued for purposes of FASB

ASC 718-10-30 as the Companys stock awards include shares

awarded with vesting dependent upon satisfaction of perfor

mance criteria and with the performance criteria on portion of

the shares to be determined in the future Prior period awards

represent share awards made in prior period which have been

valued for purposes of FASB ASC 718-10-30 in the current period

when the CapLease Compensation Committee determined the

performance criteria

As of December 31 2010 $3153 of unvested shares fair val

ue at the grant dates is expected to be charged to the Companys

Consolidated Statement of Operations ratably over the remaining

vesting period through March 2015 As of December 31 2010

the grant date fair value for awards of 31350 restricted shares

made in 2007 78690 restricted shares made in 2008 314145 re

stricted shares made in 2009 and 192900 restricted shares made

in 2010 has not yet been determined because the grant date as

defined under at FASB ASC 718-10-20 has not yet occurred

2010 2009 2008

Net loss $13140 $13967 $23164

Increase decrease in fair value

of securities available for sale 1759 2463 9398

Increase in fair value of

derivatives 4522

Amortization of unrealized Loss

on securities previously classified

as available for saLe 1765 562 505

Reclassification of derivative

items into earnings 592 761 20126

Realized Loss on derivatives 17853

Comprehensive income Loss $9024 $1O181 $25262

FASB ASC 220-10-45-6 divides comprehensive income loss into

net income loss and other comprehensive income loss

Other comprehensive income loss is defined as revenues

expenses gains and losses that under GAAP are included in com

prehensive income loss but excluded from net income loss

Other comprehensive income loss is component of Stockhold

ers Equity and is shown on the Companys Consolidated State

ment of Changes in Stockholders Equity fourth column The

following table summarizes the Companys Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Income Loss as reported on the Consolidated

Statement of Changes in Stockholders Equity

summary of the status of unvested shares from January

2009 through December 31 2010 is presented below

15 Other Comprehensive Income

SHARES

AWARDED

SHARES PRICED

UNDER FASR

WEIGHTED

AVERAGE

Comprehensive income loss is defined as the change in equity

of business enterprise during period from transactions and

UNDER PLAN ASC 718-lo-le FAIR VALUE
other events and circumstances excluding those resulting from

investments by and distributions to owners For the Companys
Nionvested at January 2009 930232 606800 $9.66

Current period awards 1107600 688741 2.23 purposes comprehensive income loss represents net income

Prior period awards N/A 119140 1.88 Loss as presented in the Companys Consolidated Statements of

Vested 228476 228476 6.77 Operations adjusted for unrealized gains or losses on securities

Forfeited 8340 8340 4.31

4.17

available for sale and amortization of unrealized losses on se

curities previously classified as available for sale and amortiza
Nonvested at January 2010 1801016 1177865

Current period awards 479500 286600 4.84
tion of realized losses on derivatives reclassified into interest

Prior period awards

Vested

N/A

541149

198966

541149

4.84

3.84

4.62

expense

The Companys comprehensive income loss for the years

ended December 31 2010 December 31 2009 and December

31 2008 is summarized below
NonVested at December 31 2010 1739367 1122282
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DECEMBER 31

2010 2009

Net unrealized losses on securities

avaiLable for saLe $7958 $9717

Net unrealized Losses on securities previ

ously classified as available for saLe 8107 9872

Net realized tosses on derivatives 4151 4743

AccumuLated other comprehensive Loss $20216 $24332

16 Non-Controlling Interests

During June 2006 CapLeases Operating Partnership issued

263157 units of limited partnership to an unaffitiated third

party All of these units were issued in connection with the

Companys acquisition of property in June 2006 from the third

party During June 2008 the units of limited partnership became

redeemable by the holder at its option on the basis of one unit

for either one share of CapLease common stock or cash equal to

the fair market value of share of common stock at the time of

the redemption The units of limited partnership do not have

liquidation preference During September 2008 the non-control

ling
interest holder redeemed 107131 units for the same number

of shares of CapLease common stock As of December 31 2010

the Operating Partnership had issued an outstanding 156026

units of limited partnership

Cash distributions by the Operating Partnership are paid

in the following priority first to the non-controlling inter

est holder until such holder receives the amount it would have

received if the holders units of limited partnership interest were

converted to an equal number of shares of CapLease common

stock and then to CapLease Since July 2006 at the same time

CapLease has paid cash dividend to its common stockholders

the non-controlling interest holder has been paid cash divi

dend of the same amount per limited partnership unit

17 Rental Income

The Company is the lessor to tenants under operating leases with

expiration dates ranging from 2011 to 2026 The minimum rental

amounts due under the leases are generally subject to scheduled

fixed increases The leases generally also require that the tenants

pay for or reimburse the Company for the occupancy and operat

ing costs of the properties or in certain cases reimburse the

Company for increases in certain operating costs and real estate

taxes above their base year costs Approximate future minimum

rents to be received over the next five years and thereafter for

non-cancelable operating leases in effect at December 31 2010

are as follows

2011 $126695

2012 125527

2013 97358

2014 94220

2015 92666

Thereafter 359048

$895514

18 Concentration Risks

The Company has historically relied on Welts Fargo Bank as

successor to Wachovia Bank to provide significant por

tion of its cash for financing its portfolio investments including

through short-term borrowing facilities to facilitate the Com

panys portfolio investment and mortgage financings on its owned

real properties Deterioration in the financial condition of Wells

Fargo Bank could have negative impact on the Companys

business operating results and financial condition As of Decem

ber 31 2010 Wells Fargo Bank carried senior unsecured

credit rating of AA from Standard Poors

During 2010 approximately 12.4/s of the Companys total

revenues were derived from one tenant the United States

Government
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19 401k Plan 21 Segment Reporting

The Company has 401k Savings/Retirement Plan the 2401k

Plan in place to cover eligible employees of the Company The

401k Plan permits eligible employees of the Company to defer

portion of their annual compensation subject to certain limi

tations imposed by the Internal Revenue Code The employees

elective deferrals are immediately vested and non-forfeitable

upon contribution to the 401k Plan For the years ended

December 31 2010 December 31 2009 and December 31 2008

the Company made matching contributions of $297 $234 and

$312 respectively

20 Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated

Statements of Operations Unaudited

FASB ASC 280 establishes the manner in which public businesses

report information about operating segments in annual and

interim financial reports issued to stockholders FASB ASC 280-

10-50 defines segment as component of an enterprise about

which separate financial information is available and that is

evaluated regularly to allocate resources and assess performance

The Company conducts its business through two segments oper

ating real estate including its investments in owned properties

and debt investments including its nan investments as well as

its investments in securities For segment reporting purposes

the Company does not allocate interest income on short-term

investments or general and administrative expenses

Selected results of operations for the year ended December

31 2010 are as follows

The accompanyinq unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated

Statements of Operations are presented as if at January

2009 the Company acquired the real property purchased during

December 2010 which has been accounted for as business com

bination Earnings per share are presented using the weighted

average shares outstanding during the relevant periods In

management.s opinion all adjustments necessary to reflect the

effects of the above transactions have been made

The unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statements

of Operations are not necessarily indicative of what the actual

results of operations would have been assuming the acquisition

transactions had occurred at the date indicated above nor do

they purport to represent our future results of operations

FOR THE 12 MONTHS ENDED

DECEMBER31

2010 2009

Total revenues $169583 $181368

Loss from continuing operations 11706 12978

Loss per basic and diluted common share

from continuing operations 0.21 016

Net loss allocable to common stockhoLders 17235 15257

Net loss per basic and diluted common share 0.31 0.31

CORPORATE

UNALLOCATED

OPERATING

REAL ESTATE

DEBT

INVESTMENTS TOTAL

Total revenues $856 $138438 $27121 $166415

Total expenses 19799 133647 25945 179391

Loss on

extinguishment

of debt 293 293

Income Loss

from continuing

operations 19237 4791 1177 13269

Total assets 48213 1463362 358696 1870271

Selected results of operations for the year ended December 31

2009 are as follows

CORPORATE

UNALLOCATED

0pERAmNO

REAL ESTATE

DEBT

INVESTMENTS TOTAL

Total revenues $492 $147408 $30268 $178168

Total expenses 21210 150516 30602 202328

Gain on

extinguishment

of debt 9829 9829

Provision for

income tax 201 201

Loss from

continuing

operations 11090 3109 333 14532

Total assets 54618 1471987 377810 1904415
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Setected results of operations for the year ended December 31

2008 are as fottows
23 Subsequent Events

CORPORATE/

UNALLOCATED

OPERATING

REAL ESTATE

DEBT

INVESTMENTS TOTAL

Tota revenues $777 $147172 $34338 $182287

Total expenses 23457 144776 39762 207995

Gain on

extinguishment

of debt 1713 1713

Income toss

from continuing

operations 20967 2396 5424 23995

TotaL assets 26620 1566405 452500 2045525

22 Quarterly Financial Information Unaudited

The following tabte sets forth selected quarterty financial data

for the Company for 2010 and 2009

REVENUE

2010

December 31 $41777 $10439 $0.18

September 30 41366 2779 0.05

June 30 41603 2704 0.05

March 31 41669 2836 0.05

2009

December 31 43632 14039 0.27

September 30 44961 4084 0.08

June 30 44450 5955 0.12

March 31 45126 4642 0.10

The totals for the year may differ from the sum of the quarters as

result of weighting and rounding

During February 2011 the Company sold two of its commercial-

mortgage backed securities investments Both of the securities

are secured by portions of the mortgage financing on the office

building tocated at 180 Maiden Lane New York New York

WBCMT 2004-C15 Class 18OML-D and Class 18OML-E The sate

was executed primarily because the securities were beyond their

original scheduled maturity date of November 2009 and the sate

enabled the Company to realize return of substantially att of

the outstanding principaL The totat of $23000 face amount

of securities were sotd at dottar price of $98 per $100 of

face amount and the Company expects to recognize loss on

investment during the first quarter of 2011 of approximately

$500 The aggregate carrying amount of these securities was

$22236 as of December 31 2010 The proceeds from the sate

of the Class bond face amount of $15000 wilt be utilized

to reduce principat outstanding in the Companys CDO and the

proceeds from the sate of the Ctass bond face amount.of

$8000 will be utitized for generat corporate purposes including

to reduce principat outstanding under the credit agreement and

to reinvest in new assets

NET INCOME LOSS
APPLICABLE TO

COMMON SHARES

BASIC AND DILUTED

INCOME LOSS PER

COMMON SHARE
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December 31 2010

SCHEDULE III

ALLstate Insurance Company

Charlotte NC

ALLstate Insurance Company

Roanake VA

AMVESCAP PLC

Denver CO

Aon Corporation

Glenview IL

Baxter InternationaL Inc

Bloomington IN

Bunge North America Inc

Fart Worth IX

Cadbury HoLdings Limited

Whippany NJ

CapitaL One FinanciaL Corporation

Plane DC

Choice HoteLs InternationaL Inc

Silver Spring MO

Cooper Tire Rubber Company

Franklin IN

County of YoLo CaLifornia

Woodland CA

Crozer-Keystone HeaLth System

Ridley PA

CVS Corporation

Randolph MA

DESCRIPTION LOCATION

COST CAPITALIZEO GROSS AMOUNT AT

SUBSEOUENT TO mHICH CARRIED

INmAL COST ACOUISm0N AT CLOSE OF PERIOD

BUILDING AND BUILDING ANO BUILDING ANO

ENCUMBRANCES LAND IMPROVEMENTS LAND IMPROVEMENTS LAND IMPROVEMENTS

$5293 $1025

15809 2500

18484 3000

TOTAL

Abbott Laboratories

Columbus OH

Abbott Laboratories

Woukegan IL

Aetna Life Insurance Company

Fresno CA

21790 7100

23198 3200

51124 7200

64526 11000

4536 1200

8022 650

35265 6300

20748 6670

28025 5500

15610 1500

12183 2300

2984

7288 6300

Farmers Group Inc 31690 10620

Simi Volley CA

Farmers New WorLd Life Insurance Company 31429 24000

Merrer Island WA

GeneraL Motors FinanciaL Company Inc 26937 5820

Arlington IX

Ill Industries Inc 43792 5300

Herndon VA

Johnson ControLs Inc 19846 4600

$10066

15430

19462

14594

20930

55395

68686

9181

8880

38994

18816

37385

28242

12850

5015

7801

28127

10035

32219

40221

18168

$1025

2500

849 3000

7100

3200

591 7200

1231 11000

1200

650

1232 6300

6670

1133 5500

1500

2300

864

6300

10620

24000

5820

9528 5300

4600

$10066

15430

20311

14594

20930

55986

69917

9181

8880

40226

18816

38519

28242

12850

5879

7801

28127

10035

32219

49749

18168

$11091

17930

23311

21694

24130

63186

80917

10381

9530

46526

25486

44019

29142

15150

5879

14101

38747

34035

38039

55049

22768

Largo FL
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FINANCIAL STATEMINTS

LIFE ON WHICH

Continued ACCUMULATED DATE DEFRECIATION

DESCRIFTION LOCATION DEFRECIATION DATE OF CONSTRUCTION ACOUIRED IS CONFUTED

Abbott Laboratories $1549 1980 renovated in 2003-2004 11/5/04 Various

Columbus OH

Abbott Laboratories 2081 2000 8/9/05 Various

Woukegon IL

Aetna Life Insurance Company 3325 story office 1969 story office 1984 story parking 10/19/06 Various

Fresno CA 1991 interior renovated in 2000 2008 parking lot

reconstructed in 2008

ALLstate Insurance Company 1835 1913 renovated in the 1990s 12/21/05 Various

Chorlotte NC

ALLstate Insurance Company 2632 1969/70 With an addition in 1981 12/21/05 Various

Roonoke VA

AMVESCAP PLC 6648 2001 first floor renovated in 2008 3/23/06 Various

Denver CO

Aon Corporation 10969 1916 renovated in 1999-2001 8/19/04 Various

Glenview IL

Baxter InternationaL Inc 1427 1996 renovation and warehouse addition in 2004 10/13/04 Various

Bloomington IN

Bunge North America Inc 821 2005 4/19/07 Various

Fort Worth lx

Cadbury HoLdings Limited 5530 2005 1/6/05 Various

Whippony NJ

CapitaL One FinanciaL Corporation 2601 1999 renovated in 2005 6/23/05 Various

PIano DC

Choice HoteLs InternationaL Inc 5671 Building 10720 1981 10750 1971 10710 1986 11/23/04 Various

Silver
Spring

MD

Cooper Tire Rubber Company 21 2009 12/21/10 Various

Franklin IN

County of YoLo CaLifornia 1260 2001 1/30/07 Various

Woodland CA

Crozer-Keystone HeaLth System 914 1977 renovated in 2004 8/9/04 Various

Ridley PA

CVS Corporation 1220 1965 renovated in the 1980s and 1993 9/29/04 Various

Randolph MA

Farmers Group Inc 2754 Office 240M SF 1982 Training Facility w/office 21M SF 1/31/07 Various

Simi Volley CA 1999 Warehouse 1014 SF 1982

Farmers New WorLd Life Insurance Company 1261 1982 12/22/05 Various

Mercer Island WA

General Motors FinanciaL Company Inc 3230 1999 12/28/06 Various

Arlington IX

ITT Industries Inc 6660 1999 interior renovated in 2005-2006 5/23/05 Various

Herndon VA

3ohnson ControLs Inc 2937 1963 2001 12/12/06 Various

Lorgo FL

Continued
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule of Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation
amounts in thousands

December 31 2010

SCHEDULE III

CONTINUED

DESCRIPTION LOCATION

COST CAPITALIZED GROSS AMOUNT AT

SUBSEQUENT TO WHICH CARRIED

INITIAL COST ACOUISmON AT CLOSE DI PERIOD

BUILDING AND

ENCUMBRANCES LAND IMPROVEMENTS

BUILDING AND

LAND IMPROVEMENTS

BUILDING AND

LAND IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL

KoninkLijke Ahotd N.y

Levittown PA

$14136 $4000 $15189 $4000 $15789 $19789

Lowes Companies Inc

Aliso Viejo LA

42942 26600 20831 26600 20836 41436

MicheLin North America Inc

DeveLopment Property

Louisville KY

951 2272 951 2272 3223

MULti-Tenant currentLy vacant

Johnston RI

32986 32986 32986

MuLti-Tenant Dodge buiLding

Omaha NE

11626 1609 13235 13235

MuLti-Tenant Landmark buiLding

Omoho NE

9500 31866 1056 32922 32922

N/A DeveLopment Property

Simi Volley CA

1025 1025 1025

NestLØ HoLdings Inc

llreinigsville PA

533212 77439 77439 77439

NestLØ HoLdings Inc

Fort Woyne IN

2970821 37313 37313 37313

NestLØ HoLdings Inc

Lothrop CA

374952 57483 57483 57483

Omnicom Group Inc

Irving 1X

13087 2620 11800 184 2620 11984 14604

Pearson PLc

Lawrence KS

16540 1140 16557 1140 16557 17691

T-MobiLe USA Inc

Nashville TN

10749 2450 11774 2450 11774 14224

The Kroger Co

Various locations in KY five GA four
and TN two

49421 84702 84702 84702

The TraveLers Corporation

Hortford CT

22581 18317 18317 18317

Tiffany Co

Porsippony NJ

59901 7400 62150 47 7400 62197 69597

Time Wamer Entertainment Company L.P

t4llwoukee WI

22492 2300 22299 2300 22299 24599

TJX Companies Inc

Philadelphia PA

73720 6100 79734 6100 79734 85834

United States Government DEA
Birmingham AL

11676 1000 11643 126 1000 11517 12517

United States Government EPA
Kansas City KS

22995 250 29476 250 29476 29726
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIFE ON WHICH

Continued ACCUMULATED DATE DEPRECIATION

DESCRIPTION LOCATION DEPRECIATION DATE OF CONSTRUCTION ACOUIRED IS COMPUTED

KoninkLijke Ahold N.y $1196 2006 6/13/06 Various

Levittown PA

Lowes Companies Inc 2929 1965 renovated in 2004-2005 5/31/05 Various

Aliso Viejo CA

Michelin North America Inc Under construction 9/1/10 Various

Development Property

Louisville KY

Multi-Tenant currentLy vacant 6175 1973 4/18/07 Various

Johnston RI

Multi-Tenant Dodge buiLding 1498 1985 renovated 2010-2011 4/18/07 Various

Omaha NE

Multi-Tenant Landmark buiLding 3304 1991 4/18/07 Various

Omaho NE

N/A DeveLopment Property 5/24/07 Various

Simi Volley CA

NestlØ Holdings Inc 7168 1994 4/18/07 Various

Breinigsville PA

NestLØ Holdings Inc 3454 1994 4/18/07 Various

Fort Wayne IN

NestlØ Holdings Inc 5321 1994 4/18/07 Various

Lothrop CA

Omnicom Group Inc 1640 1997 6/23/05 Various

living DC

Pearson PLc 1953 1997 4/12/06 Various

Luwrence AS

T-MobiLe USA Inc 1216 2002 11/14/06 Various

Nashville TN

The Kroger Co 7841 Various 1995-1996 4/18/01 Various

Various locations in KY five GA four

and TN two

The Travelers Corporation 1938 1986 4/18/07 Various

Hartford CT

Tiffany Co 8176 Office Warehouse 1996-1991 Warehouse 9/28/05 Various

Parsippany NJ Mezzanine 2000 Garage 2001 East Wing

Office 2002 solar rooftop panels installed in 2006

Time Warner Entertainment Company L.P 2281 1903 renovated in 2001 11/28/06 Various

Milwaukee WI

TJX Companies Inc 9586 2001 3/10/06 Various

Philadelphia PA

United States Government DEA 1457 2005 8/11/05 Various

Birmingham AL

United States Government EPA 3966 2003 8/11/05 Various

Kansas City KS

Continued
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule of Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation
amounts in thousands

December 31 2010

SCHEDULE III

CONTINUED

COST CAPITALIZED GROSS AMOUNT AT

SUBSEOUENTTO WHICN CARRIED

INITIAL COST ACOUISmON AT CLOSE OF PERIOD

BUILDING AND BUILDING AND BUILDING AND

DESCRIPTION LOCATION ENCUMBRANCES LAND IMPROVEMENTS LAND IMPROVEMENTS LAND IMPROVEMENTS TOTAL

United States Government FBI $12438 $3000 $12869 $168 $3000 $13037 $16037

Albany NY

United States Government FBI 19452 2200 20111 2440 2200 22610 24810

Birmingham AL

United States Government NIH 59459 10350 61537 909 10350 62446 72796

Bethesda 140

United States Government SSA 5297 1100 4313 138 1100 4511 5611

Austin DC

United States Government VA 4836 2120 10252 14 2120 10326 12446

Ponce PR

WaLgreen Co 1365 463 2629 463 2629 3092

Pennsauken NJ

Waigreen Co 2768 618 3560 618 3560 4178

Partsmauth VA

$1085058 $191472 $1249673 $24204 $191472 $1273877 $1465349

Property serves as collateral under the Companys credit agreement without any specific borrowings against the asset

Three
properties

leased to NestlØ are cross collateralized
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LIFE ON WHICH

Continued ACCUMULATED DATE OEFRECIA1ION

DESCRIFTION LOCATION DEFRECIATION DATE OF CONSTRUCTION ACOUIREO IS CONFUTED

United States Government FBI $1344 1998 building expanded by 3M SF in 2008 10/25/06 Various

Albany NY

United States Government FBI 2864 2005 building expanded by 1OM SF in 2007 8/11/05 Various

Birmingham AL

United States Government NIH 8172 1989 9/9/05 Various

Bethesda 140

United States Government SSA 567 2005 8/11/05 Various

Austin DC

United States Government VA 1583 2000 HVAC system replaced in 2008 11/1/04 Various

Ponce PR

WaLgreen Co 405 1996 11/1/04 Various

Pennuasken NJ

Walgreen Co 549 1998 11/1/04 Various

Portsmouth VA

$152529
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule of Real Estate and Accumulated Depreciation
amounts in thousands

December 31 2010

SCHEDULE III

CONTINUED

Reconciliation of real estate owned

Balance-December 31 2007 $1466152

Property acquisitions

Costs capitalized subsequent to acquisition 4195

Balance-December 31 2008 $1470347

Property acquisitions

Costs capitalized subsequent to acquisition 1389

Property reclassed to asset held for sale 4420

Adjustments due to lease terminations 8579

Writedowns to reflect asset impairment 13410

Property divestitures 20234

Balance-December 31 2009 $1425093

Property acquisitions $30693

Costs capitalized subsequent to acquisition 9563

Balance-December 31 2010 $1465349

Reconciliation of accumulated depredation

Balance-December 31 2007 $55875

Additions during the year

Depreciation on property $33419

Balance-December 31 2008 $89294

Additions during the year

Depreciation on property $32991

Deductions during the year

Property reclassed to asset held for sale 245

AccumuLated depreciation on divested property 1682

Balance-December 31 2009 $120358

Additions during the year

Depreciation on property $32171

Balance-December 31 2010 $152529
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule of Loans Held for Investment
amounts in thousands

December 31 2010

SCHEDULE IV

PRINCIPAL

AMOUNT

OF LOANS

SUBJECT TO

FINAL FACE CARRYING OELINOUENT

INTEREST MATURITY PRIOR AMOUNT OF AMOUNT OF PRINCIPAL

DESCRIPTION LOCATION RATE DATE PERIODIC PAYMENT TERMS LIENS MORTGAGES MORTGAGES11 OR INTEREST

LongTerm Mortgage Loans

Autozone Inc 6.50/a Nov 2D22 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A $1650 $1650

Douglas and Valdosto GA level amount over the Life to maturity

Bank of America N.A 6.42Io Dec 2026 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 3249 3249

Mt Airy MD varying amount over the life to maturity

Bank of America N.A 6.34/s Dec 2028 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 4241 4247

Glenview IL varying amount over the life to maturity

Best Buy Co Inc 6.400/a Ma1 2025 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 16691 16691

Chicago IL varying amount over the life to maturity

City of Jasper Texas 7.DD/o Nov 2024 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 1498 1462

Jasper lx varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 6.53/o Jan 2026 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 2034 2080

Asheville NC varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 6.28/o Jan 2026 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 2064 2035

Bangor PA level amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 6.46/s Jan 2025 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 1235 1235

Athol MA varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 8.100/o Jan 2023 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 2089 2201

Washington DC level amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 8.006 Jan 2021 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 1087 1161

Dluefleld WV varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 7.50/o Jan 2021 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 1341 1316

Sunbunj PA varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 6.22/a Jan 2033 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 3149 3149

Evansville IN level amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 8.26/s Jan 2020 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 1530 1665

Southington CT varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 8.26/o Jan 2023 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 1804 1982

Willimantic CT varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 8.26/o Jan 2020 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 2029 2205

Stow OH varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 6.99/a Aug 2024 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 2762 2762

Oak Ridge NC varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 6.52/o Jan 2030 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 1241 1241

Greensborn GA level amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 5.98M Jan 2031 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 2401 2401

Shelby Twp MI varying amount over the life to maturity

Harris Bankcorp Inc 6.81/o Aug 2025 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 3943 3943

Chicago IL varying amount over the life to maturity

Home Depot USA Inc 5.36/a Jan 2031 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 7807 7807

Chelsea MA varying amount over the life to maturity

Home Depot USA Inc 6.62/s Jan 2033 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 8274 8274

Tullytown PA varying amount over the life to maturity

Continued
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FINANCIAL STAIEMENTS

Schedule of Loans Held for Investment
amounts in thousands

December 31 2010

SCHEDULE IV

CONTINUED

PRINCIPAL

AMeUNT

OF LOANS

SUBJECT TO

FINAL FACE CARRYING DELINOUENT

INTEREST MATURITY PRIOR AMOUNT OF AMOUNT OP PRINCIPAL

DESCRIPTION LOCATION RATE OATE PERIODIC PAYMENT TERMS LIENS MORTGAGES MORTGAGES OR INTEREST

KohLs Corporation 6.69/a May 2030 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A $45110 $45110

Chicago IL varying amount over the life to maturity

Koninktijke Ahoid N.V 7.24/a Nay 2020 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 2549 2587

Bensolem PA varying amount over the life to maturity

Koninktijke Ahold N.V 7.50/a Nov 2025 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 6075 6059

North Kingstown RI varying amount over the life to maturity

KoninkLijke AhoLd N.V 7.50/a Jan 2027 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 5969 5965

Tewksbury MA varying amount over the Life to maturity

Koninktijke AhoLd N.V 7.29% Apr 2024 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 5763 5554

Upper Dorby Township PA varying amount over the life to maturity

Lowes Companies Inc 6.61/a Nay 2030 Principal and Interest are payable monthLy at N/A 6923 6923

Motomoros PA varying amount over the life to maturity

Lowes Companies Inc 0.96% Sep 2031 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 5585 1530

Frominghom MA level amount over the life to maturity

NationaL City Bank 5.89/a Dec 2024 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 2723 2782

Chicago It varying amount over the Life to maturity

Neiman Marcus Group Inc 6.06/s Nov 2021 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 5821 6222

Los Vegas NV varying amount over the life to maturity

United States PostaL Service 7.05/s Oct 2021 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 759 771

Scommon Boy AK level amount over the life to maturity

University of Connecticut 6.34/a Nov 2024 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 18592 19150

HeaLth Center varying amount over the life to maturity

Farmington CT

WaLgreen Co 6.10/a Feb 2030 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 4147 4147

Montebello CA level amount over the life to maturity

WaLgreen Co 6.80/a Sep 2030 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 3350 3350

Nocogdoches DC varying amount over the life to maturity

WaLgreen Co 6.26/a Dec 2029 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 4800 4800

Rosemeod CA level amount over the life to maturity

Watgreen Co 6.46% Dec 2029 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 3130 3130

Dallas IX level amount over the life to maturity

193421 190836
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Schedule of Loans Held for Investment
amounts in thousands

December 31 2010

SCHEDULE IV

CO 11

PRINCIPAL

AMOUNT

OP LOANS

SURJECT TO

FINAL FACE CARRYING DELINOUENT

INTEREST MATURITY PRIOR AMOUNT OF AMOUNT OP PRINCIPAL

DESCRIPTION LOCATION RATE DATE PERIODIC PAYMRNT TERMS LIENS MORTGAGES MORTGAGRS OR INTEREST

Corporate Credit Notes

Atbertsons LLC 6.50/a Sep 2013
Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A $154 $147

Los Angeles CA
vanjing amount over the life to maturity

Atbertsons LLC 6.33/a Dec 2013
PrincipaL and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 174 173

Norwalk CA Level amount over the life to maturity

Best Buy Co Inc 5.40% Jun 2013
Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 586 577

Olathe KS
varying amount over the life to maturity

Best Buy Co Inc 6.15/a Nov 2012
Principal

and Interest are payabLe monthly at N/A 186 183

Wichita Falls IX
varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 6.12/a Aug 2013
Principal

and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 290 287

Garwnnd NJ level amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 6.4O/ Oct 2012
Principal

and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 201 199

Kennett Square PA level amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 5.85/a May 2013
Principal

and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 164 162

Commerce 141
varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 6.12/a Oct 2013 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 136 134

Rutherford College NC varying amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 5.54/a Jan 2015
Principal

and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 136 133

Clemmons NC level amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 6.12/a Oct 2013 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 152 150

Rackingham NC level amount over the life to maturity

CVS Corporation 7.60% Dec 2011 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 44 44

Knox IN level amount over the life to maturity

FederaL Express Corporation 5.78/a Mar 2015 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 196 194

Bellingham WA varying amount over the life to maturity

FedEx Ground Package System Inc 5.90/a Oct 2014 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 629 625

Rena NV varying amount over the life to maturity

FedEx Ground Package System Inc 5.89/a Feb 2015 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 1345 1337

/4cCaak IL varying amount over the life to maturity

HercuLes Incorporated 9.32/a May 2013 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 12664 12664

Wilmington DE varying amount over the life to maturity

Lowes Companies Inc 5.28/a Sep 2015 Principal and Interest are payable monthly at N/A 642 635

Windham MC varying amount over the life to maturity

PerkinELmer Inc 7.68/a Jan 2012 Principal and Interest are payable monthly N/A 140 140

Warwick RI at level amount over the life to maturity

PerkinELmer Inc 7.35/a Dec 2011 Principal and Interest are payable monthly N/A 97 96

Belts yule /40 at level amount over the life to maturity

PerkinELmer Inc 7.35/a Dec 2011 Principal and Interest are payable monthly N/A 44 44

Daytona Beach FL at level amount over the life to maturity

Continued

CAPLEASE 2am ANNUAL REPONT 113



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Schedule of Loans Held for Investment
amounts in thousands

December 31 2010

SCHEDULE IV

CONTINUED

The
aggregate

cost for federal income tax
purposes is $211385

PRINCIPAL

AMOUNT

OP LOANS

SUBJEcT TO

OELINOUENT

PRINCIPAL

OR INTERESTOESCRIPTION LOCAmON

INTEREST

RATE

FINAL

MATURITY

DATE PERIODIC PAYMENT TERMS

PRIOR

LIENS

FACE

AMOUNT OP

MORTGAGES

CARRYING

AMOUNT OP

MORTGAGES

PerkinELmer Inc

Phelps NY

7.35/o Dec 2011 Principal and Interest are payable monthly

at level amount over the Life to maturity

N/A $41 $41

StapLes Inc

Odessa

6.41/o Sep 2012 PrincipaL and Interest are payable monthly at

varying amount over the life to maturity

N/A 106 105

Watgreen Co

Oelray Beach FL

6.20/o Jan 2013 Principal and Interest are payable monthly

at level amount over the Life to maturity

N/A 156 156

Watgreen Co

Waterfard MI

5.50/o Jun 2013 Principal and Interest are payable monthly

at Level amount over the life to maturity

N/A 290 283

Watgreen Co

Riverside CA

6.10I Dec 2013 Principal and Interest are payable monthly

at leveL amount over the Life to maturity

N/A 210 208

Watgreen Co

Jefferson City TN

5.49/o May 2015 Principal and Interest are payable monthly

at leveL amount over the life to maturity

N/A 401 400

19184 19117

Mezzanine and Other Investments

West End Mortgage

Finance Fund L.P

Various

5.000/o Delinquent Principal and Interest are payable monthly

at varying amount over the life to

maturity

N/A 1444 988 1444

1444 988 1444

Provision for vaLuation Loss 500

TotaL $214049 $210441 $1444
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Schedule of Loans Held for Investment
amounts in thousands

December 31 2D1D

SCHEDULE IV

CONTINUED

BaLance-December 31 2007 $270143

Additions during the year

New loan investments

Deductions during the year

Securities reclassified to Loan investments $24453

Principal
received 6863

Principal written-off as uncolLectible 498

Allowance for loan Losses SDO

Amortization of unearned discounts and premiums 172

BaLance-December 31 2008 $286563

Additions during the year

New loan investments $79D

Deductions during the year

Loans recLassified to availabLe for sale 25995

Principal received 15458

Allowance for loan Losses 444

Amortization of unearned discounts and premiums 1D3

Loans soLd 23697

BaLance-December 31 2009 $221656

Additions during the year

New loan investments

Deductions during the year

Principal received 11193

Interest payments treated as reduction of
carry

value 12

AlLowance for loan Losses

Amortization of unearned discounts and premiums ID

BaLance-December 31 2010 $210441
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CHANGES DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS

Item Changes in and Disagreements With Part III

Accountants on Accounting and Financial

Disclosure

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and

None Corporate Governance

The information required by Item 10 is incorporated by reference

Item 9A Controls and Procedures herein to the information contained in our definitive proxy state

ment related to our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures as defined under

Rule 13a-15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1g34 as Item 11 Executive Compensation

amended the Exchange Act that are designed to ensure that

information required to be disclosed in our Exchange Act reports The information required by Item 11 is incorporated by reference

is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time herein to the information contained in our definitive proxy state-

periods specified in the SECs rules and forms and that such ment related to our 2011 annua meeting of stockholders

information is accumulated and communicated to our manage

ment induding our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain

required disdosure Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Pursuant to Rue 13a-15b under the Exchange Act we carried Stockholder Matters

out an evaluation with the participation of management includ

ing our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the The information required by Item 12 is incorporated by reference

effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the herein to the information contained in our definitive proxy state-

end of the period covered by this report Based upon that evalu- ment related to our 2011 annua meeting of stockholders

ation the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer con

duded that our disdosure controls and procedures were effective

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related

Changes in Internal Controls Transactions and Director Independence

There has been no change in our internal control over financial

reporting during the quarter ended Oecember 31 2010 that has The information required by Item 13 is incorporated by reference

materiatly affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect herein to the information contained in our definitive proxy state-

our internal control over financial reporting ment related to our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders

Managements Report on Internal Control over Finandal

Reporting Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Managements Annuat Report on Internal Control over Financiat

Reporting immediately precedes Item Financial Statements The information required by Item 14 is incorporated by reference

and Supplementary Oata and is incorporated herein by reference herein to the information contained in our definitive proxy state

ment related to our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders

Item 9B Other Tnformation

None
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EXHIBITS FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Part IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement

Schedules

and

The consolidated financial statements and supplementary data

including financial statement schedules are included in this

report under Item of Part II hereof

See the exhibit index included herein for list of exhibits to

this report

Exhibits

The following is list of exhibits filed as part of this Annual

Report on Form 10-K Where so indicated exhibits that were

previously filed are incorporated by reference

EXHIBIT NO DESCRIPTION

3.10 Articles of Amendment and Restatement of the registrant

Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of the registrant

333 Articles Supplementary Establishing the Rights and Preferences of the 8.125Io Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stoci

of the registrant

340 Articles of Amendment to Articles Supplementary with respect to the 8.125/o Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock

dated as of March 17 2010

356 ArticLes of Amendment to Articles Supplementary with respect to the 8.125/s Series Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock

dated as of March 29 2010

3.60 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the registrant

372 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Bylaws of the registrant

4.10 Form of Certificate evidencing the Common Stock par value $0.01 per share of the registrant

Junior Subordinated Indenture between Caplease LP and JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association as trustee dated

December 13 2005

434 Amended and Restated Trust Agreement among Caplease LP JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association Chase Bank USA National

Association and the Administrative Trustees named therein dated December 13 2005

447 Indenture among the registrant Caplease LP Caplease Debt Funding LP Caplease Services Corp Caplease Credit LLC and Deutsche

Bank Trust Company Americas as trustee including form of 7.50/o Convertible Senior Note due 2027 dated as of October 2007

458 First Amended and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement of Caplease LP dated June 13 2006

iO.i Promissory Note Note dated October 28 2004 of CLF 1000 Milwaukee Avenue LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association

10.210 Promissory Mote dated December 2004 of the registrant
in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association

10.312 Promissory Note dated February 25 2005 of CLF Parsippany LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association

10.414 Indenture dated as of March 10 2005 by and among Caplease CDO 2005-1 Ltd Caplease CDO 2005-1 Corp Caplease Investment

Management LLC and LaSalle Bank National Association

10.521 Sales Agreement dated as of October 2009 between Brinson Patrick Securities Corporation and the registrant

First Amendment to Sales Agreement dated as of March 17 2010 between Brinson Patrick Securities Corporation and the registrant

10.723 ATM Equity Offering Sales Agreement dated as of December 2010 by and among Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner Smith

Incorporated the registrant and Caplease LP

Promissory Note dated August 16 2005 of CLF FBI Birmingham LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association

Promissory Note dated August 16 2005 of CLF DEA Birmingham LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association

1D.1D35 Promissory Note dated August 16 2DOS of CLF SSA Austin LP in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association
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EXHIBIT NO DESCRIPTION

10.1115 Trust Indenture datBd as of February 2001 between Unified Government of Wyandotte County Kansas City Kansas as issuer and

Security Bank of Kansas City as trustee

Lease dated as of February 2001 between Unified Government of Wyandotte County Kansas City Kansas and Kansas EPA

Laboratory LLC

10.1315 Promissory Note dated as of September 2005 of Caplease Credit LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association

10.1415 Promissory Note dated as of September 28 2005 of CLF Sylvan Way LLC in favor of Wachovia Bank National Association

1Q15rt Parent Guarantee Agreement between the registrant and JPMorgan Chase Bank National Association as guarantee trustee dated

December 13 2005

10.1616 Promissory Note dated as of December 21 2005 of CLF McCullough Drive Charlotte LLC and CLF Electric Road Roanoke LLC in favor of

LaSalle Bank National Association

10.i7 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of October 2007 between the registrant and Deutsche Bank Securities Inc as

representative of the several initial purchasers of the convertible senior notes due 2027

10.18118 Loan Agreement dated as of December 17 2001 between CapLease 2007-STL LLC as borrower and KBC Bank N.y acting through

its New York Branch as Lender and administrative agent

gOO First Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among Caplease Debt Funding LP as the borrower PREFCO II Limited Partnership as

guarantor the registrant as guarantor Caplease LP as guarantor Caplease Services Corp as guarantor and Wells Fargo Bank

National Association as dministrative agent and initial lender dated as of July 16 2010

10.2011 Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan of the registrant Effective March 10 200g

10.2120 Form of Non Employee Director Restricted Stock Award Agreement

10.22 Form of Executive Officer Restricted Stock Agreement

10.2313 Form of Employment Agreement between each of Paul McDowell WilUam PoLlert Shawn Seale and Robert Blanz and

the registrant

10.2418 Amendment No ito the Employment Agreement dated as of March 24 2004 between Robert Blanz and the registrant dated

February 13 2007

10.2517 Employment Agreement dated as of February 13 2007 between Paul Hughes and the registrant

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges and Earnings to Combined Fixed Charges and Preferred Stock Dividends

21.1 List of Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of McGladrey Pullen LLP

31.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer required by Rule i3a-14a/15d 14a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-i4a/lSd 14a of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended

as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

of 2002

Denotes compensorory ploos or orroogemeot or mooogemeot cootrocrs reqoired ro be filed os exbibits ro rhis Aooool Report oo Form 10

Incorporated by reference from the registrants Amendment No to Registration Stotement on Form S-Il flied with the Securities ond Exchonge Commission on March

2004 File No 333 110644

Incorporated by reference from the
registrants Current Report on Form a-K flied with the Securities and Exchange Commission on July 31 2007

Incorporated by reference from the
registronts registration Statement on Form flied with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 17 2005

Incorporated bp reference from the reqistrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December ig 2005

Incorporated by reference from the registrants Form flied with the Securities ond Exchange Commission on March 17 2010

Incorporated by reference from the
registrants Form Kflled with the Securities ond Exchange Commission on March 31 2010

Incorporated by reference from the
registrants Current Report on Form flied with the Securities and Exchange Commission on October 2007

Incorporated by reference from the
registrants registration Statement on Form 5-3 flied with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 14 2008

File No 333-148649

Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K flied with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 2004

10 Incorporated by reference from the
registrants Current Report on Form K/A flied with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 15 2004

11 Incorporated by reference from the
registrants Definitive Proxy Statement flied with the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 17 2009

12 Incorporated by reference from the
registrants Current Report on Form 8-K/A flied with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 2005

15 Incorporated by reference from the
registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K flied with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 30 2005

14 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Ouarteriy Report on Form 10-0 flied with the Securities and Exchange Commission on May 15 2005
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15 Incorporoted by reference from the registronts Quarterly Report on Form 10 flIed with the Securities ond Exchange Commission on November 14 2005

16 Incorporoted by reference from the registrants Annuol Report on Form 10-K flied with the Securities ond Exchonge Commission on March 16 2006

17 Incorporoted by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K flied with the Securities ond Exchange Commission on Februoy 20 2007

18 Incorporated by reference from the registronts Current Report on Form 8-K flied with the Securities ond Exchonge Commission on December 20 2007

15 Incorporated by reference from the registronts Annuol Report on Form ID Kflled with the Securities ond Exchonge Commission on Morch 2008

20 Incorporoted by reference from the registronts Current Report on Form Kflled with the Securities ond Exchonge Commission on June 16 2009

21 Incorporoted by reference from the registronts Current Report on Form Kflled with the Securities ond Exchonge Commission on October 2009

22 Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission an July 19 2010

2s Incorporated by reference from the registrants Current Report an Farm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission an December 2010
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SIGNATURES

Part

Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1g34 the registrant has duty caused this report

to be signed on its behaLf by the undersigned thereunto duty authorized

CAPLEASE INC

Regist root

/s/Paul McDowell

Paut McDowett

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

February 18 2011

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1g34 this report has been signed betow by the fottowing persons on

behatf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

/s/Poul McDowell

Paut McDowett

Chairman of the Board and Chief

Executive Officer

Principat Executive Officer

February 18 2011

/s/Williom Pollert

Wittiam Pottert

President and Director

February 18 2011

/s/Shown Seole

Shawn Seate

Senior Vice President

Chief Financiat Officer and Treasurer

Principat Financiat Officer

February 18 2011

/s/John Worth

John Warch

Seniur Vice President and

Chief Accounting Officer

Principat Accounting Officer

February 18 2011

/s/Michoel Gogliorcii

Michaet Gagtiardi

Director

February 18 2011

/s/Stonley Kreitmon

Stantey Kreitman

Director

February 18 2011

/s/Jeffrey Rogotz

Jeffrey Rogatz

Director

February 18 2011

/s/Howord Silver

Howard Sitver

Director

February 18 2011
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